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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsibie for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

‘Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s regousablawever, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concegi, =
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act , we give in the “Annexure 1* a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

®

(c)

(@

(®

®

(&

®)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinicn, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Baiance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalofie financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended,;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2”
to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2023;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Aundit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinicn and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts as at March 31, 2023 including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.;

iii. =~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred | nvestor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. &) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

vi.

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number:301003E/E300005

x m

ship Number: 502243

UDIN: 23502243BGTIYK7327
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 22, 2023
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ANNEXURE 1 REFFERED TO IN PARAGRAPH [ UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT ON EVEN DATE

Re: Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (‘the Company*)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state

that:
@

() (b)

()

OIGY

010

(i) (a)

(i) (b)

(iii) (a)

@iii) (b)

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including situation and
quantitative details of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

ATl Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in financial year 20-21
in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 3(i) to the financial
statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023,

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate
from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of
current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

During the year the Company has provided loans, given guarantee to banks and financial institutions
against borrowing by Company’s subsidiaries as follows:

- _ INR in lakhs
Particulars Guarantees = Security Loans Advances
in nature of
| . |  loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided |
during the year

‘ - Subsidiaries 10,631 - 10,042 -

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect of above cases
- Subsidiaries 179,371

—
=
[Fy)
o
(=2
]

During the year the investments made, guarantees provided and the terms and conditions of the grant of
loans to subsidiaries are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. The Company has not provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties ;
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(iii) (c)

(i) (@

(iii) (e)

(iif) ()

(iv)

83

(v)

(vii) (a)

(vii) (b)

(viii)

(ix) (@)

(ix) (b)

(ix} (c)

The Company has granted loan(s) during the year to companies where the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular. The
Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms, Limited Liability

Partnerships or any other parties.

There are no amounts of loans to companies which are overdue for more than ninety days. The Company
has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any

other parties.

There were no loans granted to companies which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed
or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties. The
Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company. '

This clause is applicable for the Companies engaged in the generation of electricity if the turnover is
more than Rs. 35 crore in the immediately preceding financial year. The turnover in the immediately
preceding financial year is less than Rs, 35 crore. Hence this clause is not applicable for financial year
2022-23.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees® state insurance,
income-tax, duty of custom, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed
dues in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty
of custom, cess and other statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
cess, goods and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.,

‘The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans wure obtained.
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(ix) (d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix) () On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

(ix) () The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(x)(8) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.,

(x) (b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) (b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xi) (c) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the vear.

(xii) () The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xii) (b) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii) (c) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requiregment to report on clause 3(xii)}{c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under ciause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177
of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business

(xiv) (b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

(xv)  The Company has not entered inte any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Sahal34 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on T”Wb def the Order is not applicable to

the Company. /2 N
pany (o

5
¥
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(xvi) (b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without

obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

(xvi) (c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (*CIC’) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve

Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi) {d) There are no other CIC Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)

of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the year and in the immediately preceding financial

(xviii)

{xix)

(o) (2)

year,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capabie of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, We further state that our reperting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of
the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the
Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

{xx) (b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a

special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act, This
matter has been disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

(xxi) The requirement of Clause 3{xxi) is not applicable in respect of Standalone financial statement.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Ajay Bu

Partn

Mefibership Number: 502243

UDIN: 23502243BGTIYK 7327
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 22, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (""the Act")

We have audited the Internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Juniper Green
Energy Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note"} and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to these standalone financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorization of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
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assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the

company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to these standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controis with reference to
these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Membership Number: 502243
UDIN: 23502243BGTIYK7327
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 22, 2023



JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at Mareh 31, 2023
(Al amounty are stated in ¥ Iakhe, wless otherwise stated)

As at As ot
Particulars Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ABSETS
Non-turrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 13,159.93 13,789.78
Right-of-use asscts 3 790.70 768.58
Intangible assots 4 23.28 21.76
Intangiblo essots under development 4 - 0.59
Investment in subsidiaries 5 61,765.00 58,142.00
Financial asaets
Loans [ 6,139.00 6,77420
Other non-current financial assets 7 49,85 4928
Defrred tax assotz (nef) 8 8.12
Non curment tex assets {net) 9 77.04 3945
Other non current assets 10 0.12 -
Sub total (A) 82, 79,593.76
Current assets
Financial asscts
Investments 11 ‘ 10047
Trade receivables 12 432.68 424,97
Cash and cash equivalents 13 501.21 41820
Other bank balances 14 863,95 6,106.26
Loans 15 4,256.85 1,976.00
Other current financial anseta 16 316.89 5222
Other curtent assets 17 64.30 67.65
Sab total (B) 6,435.89 9,146,77
TOTAL ABSETS (A+B) 0,81 $8,740.53
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity shave capital 18 1,380.72 1,380.72
Other equity 19 75.390.94 75.150.61
Sub total (C) 76,771.66 76,631.33
Non-current liabilities
Defisrred tax Labilitios (net) 8 37.52 -
Financial liabilitisg
Bemowings 20 10,001.00 10,57121
Leass Habilities 41 T36.21 627.58
Provisions 21 39.44 28.99
Sub total (D) 10,814.17 11,227.78
Current linbilities
Financial Liabilitics
Borrowings 2 550.94 526.99
Trade payables 23
Total outstanding dues of micro eaterprises and small emterprises 6.64 318
Total ontstanding dues of creditors other than micro exterprises and small enterprises 50.73 4285
Other current Anancial Habilities 24 186.35 221.18
Other cyrrent liabilitles 25 24.30 60.07
Provisions 26 36.02 27.15
Sub total (E) 854.98 881.42
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (C+DHE) - HE AL 4u,740.53
Basis of preparstion and summary of sigaificant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral pavt of the special purpose financisl statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R, Batlibol & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chariered Accovntants Juniper Groen Encegy Private Limited
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JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of standalone Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Saxtoman Not®% March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 27 2,459.03 2,453.31
Other income 28 760.74 1,080.17
Total income 3.219.77 3533.48
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 29 744.99 420.61
Depreciation and amortization expense 30 688.58 681.02
Finance cost 31 1,187.63 1,179.14
Other expenses 32 413.02 261.27
Total expenses 3.034.22 2.542.04
Profit before tax 185.55 991.44
Tax expense 33
Current tax expense - 15.90
Tax pertaining to earlier years 0.94 32.68
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 45.30 41.36
Total tax expense / (credit) 46.24 89.94
Profit after tax (A) 139.31 901.511
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods :
Re-measurement (losses) on defined benefit plans 1.36 (3.96)
Tax impeact (0.34) 1.00
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods :
Recognition of geins/(losses) in fair value of hedging instrument - 80.17
Tax impact - 120.18)
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (B) 1.0_2 5703
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+B) == 140.33 958.£
Earnings per equity share: [Nominal value of share: ¥10 (March 31, 2022: ¥10)] 34
(1) Basic (%) 1.01 7.99
(2) Dilluted (%) 1.01 7.99
Basls of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the special purpose financial statements

As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batlibol & Co, LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005
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JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cath and cash equivalents at the end of the year*

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 Marech 31, 2022
A Operating activities

Profit before tax 185.55 991.44
Adjustment to reconclle profit before tax to net cash flows
Deprecintion and amortization expense 588.58 681.02
Interest income (741.50) {989.47)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 75.73 62.69
Interest on buyer's credit - 18.01
Finance cost 1,111.90 1,098.44
Profit on sale of mutual fund (19.21) (89.66)
Gain on fiir valuation of financial instruments through profit & loss - (0.71)

1,301.05 1,771.76
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivable (7.71) 17.67
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets (187.28) 89.17
(Increase) in other current agsets 3.23 50.33
Increase in provisions 20.68 18.50
Increasc/(Decrease) in trade payable 11.34 (0.31)
Increase/(Decrense) in other current and financial Liabilities (16.79) 3763 .

1,124,52 1,984.75
Income tex paid (net of refund) (38.53) (57.32)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 1,085.99 1,927.43
Investing activitles
Purchase of property plant and equipment inchading capital work in progress (55.5%3) (273.88)
Purchase of intangible assets / Intangible assets under development (15.89) (5.90)
Interest received 664.11 578.12
Loan given to related parties and movement in security deposits {refer note - 38) (10,041.85) (12,300,00)
Loan repaid by subsidiary companies (refer note - 38) 6,420.20 12,433.95
Investment in / Subscription to Optionally convertible debentures of subsidiary companies (767.00) (21,193.00)
Investment in subsidiary companies (880.00) (20,720.99)
Purchase of mutual fimd (5,128.50) (25,435.17)
Proceed from sale of mutual fand 5,249.18 25,892.20
(Investment)/Redemption Investment in bank deposits (net) 2,306.88 (3,023.34)
(Investment)Redemption in bank deposits pledge {net) 2,934.85 (1,834.14)
Net cash flow (ased In) investing activities B) 686.45 (45,882.65)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares - 45,420.56
Change in ROU and lcase lisbilities 31.27 (1927
Proceeds from loan from finsncial institution - 5,322.00
Repayment of loan from financial institution (553.42) (671.42)
Repayment of Buyers cradit - (4,949.05)
Finance cost (inchiding other incidental cost) paid (1,104.74) (910.38)
Net cash flow from/ (used In) financing activities © (1.689.43) 44,192.44
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis (A+B+C) 83.01 237122
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 418.20 180.98

501.21 418,20




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All emounis are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

*Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13)

Cnsh on hand 0.56 0.53

Balances with schedule banks;

= On current accounts 500.65 317.67
- Deposits with criginal maturity for less than 3 months - 100.00

Total ¢cash and cash equivalents 501.21 418.20

Notes:

There are no non cash movements in financing & investing activities emcept those disclosed above and note 14.
Basls of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the special purpose financlal statements

As per our repart of even date
For §.R, Batlibol & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005
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JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statenent of chnnge in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

(AR driminits fre stafod o € lakimi unless mfwroise maied)

Numher LT
55,53,013 565.30
B1,52,230 gis22
2000 0.20
1,38,07.243 1,380.72
I 3R.87,243 18072 |
Raegerves and Surplns Other components of equity | Other Comprehensive
Imcome
Securitles Capial Ratained Share Other Equity Cauh flow Hedge
Particolsrs premium ressTve Earnlngs | Appiication Reaerve Total
Money
pending
allobment
Balance st April 1, 2021 28,534.74 (1.27) 2,085.10 (871.64) (55.99) 19,686.94
Profit for the year - - 901.50 - - 901.50
Other comprehensive income for the yeer, net of tax - - (2.96) - - - (2.96)
Hedging reserve, net of tax (refer note - 19) - ; - . 5999 59.99
Share application money received (refr note -19) - - 45,420.57 45,420.57
On shares Ismed during the year 44,605.14 - (45,420.56) (815.42)
| Adfustment om account of eguisy sompimen ik b Ind AS 109 - - [EEEIN] RULIN)
|Palasice ut March 31, 2032 T4 | M58 LEN AL N - (N7 Ll TE LAY
Profit for the yoar - 13831 - - 139.31
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Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

|

2.1

22

Corporate information

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited is & private Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is subsidiary of Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte Ltd. The registered office of
the Company is located at F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza 1, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector 10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075.

The Company was incorporated on December 05, 2011, The Company is primarily engaged in the business of setting up,
operating, maintaining, generation, supply and sale of power in the field of renewable energy. The Company had
commissioned 30 MW Solar Power Project in the state of Maharashtra (“Project”) and electricity generated from it is sold
to Maharashira State Electricity Distribution Compeny Limited.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated
September 22, 2023.

Basis of Preparation and Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with the section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule IIT to the Companies Act,
2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT), as applicable to the financial statements,

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, Further, the financial statements have been prepered on historical cost basis except
for derivative finaneial instruments and certain financial assets and financial liabilities which have been measured at fair
value or revalued amount as explained in relevant accounting policies.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013,

The financial statements are presented in Rupees in lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents asscts and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

e  Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

o  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e  (Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelvemonths
after the reporting period

"h\
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Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A liability is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Duce to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the scttlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization/settlement in cash and
cash equivalents. The companies have identified twelve months as their operating cycle for classification of their current
assets and liabilities,

c)

Changes in accounting policies pursuant to amendments in Ind AS which have been issued but not yet effective:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023
dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023,

(D Deflnition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates” and included amendments to Ind AS § to help
cntities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2023,

The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amended requirements,

(ili) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS
12

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates” and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help
entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023,

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments,

d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements
because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer. r—— -




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other incentives,
if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts collected form
customers.

= Sale of Power: The Company’s revenue from sale of electricity generally includes one performance obligation. The
revenue from supply of power is recognized at point in time when electricity is transferred to the customer i.c., on the
supply of units generated from the plant to the grid. The revenue is recognized at the agreed tariff rate as per the terms
of the Power Purchase Agreements ("PPA™) entered into with the customer.

Revenue from operations on account of change in law events in terms of PPA’s with customers is accounted for based
on the orders/ reports of respective regulatory authorities and management best estimates wherever required.

-  Sale of Verified Emission Reductions (VER): Revenue from sale of VER is recognised when following conditions
have been satisfied:

i, The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the VER have been passed on to the buyer;

ii. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

iii. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale of VER will flow to the entity; and
iv. The cost incurred or to be incurred in respect to sale of VER can be measured reliably,

Contract Assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

- Trade Receivable: A receivable represents the company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.c., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

€) Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, and subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment other than
frechold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and aceumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchese price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that fiuture economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
of property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embedied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised.
The cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as and
when incurred. .

Capital work-in-progress/ Assets under construction

Cepital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development and is stated at
cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/
construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

-~

/ £ - _ﬂ"\\'\
[ )
x\ ‘\H_‘_




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives
{as set-out below) prescribed in Schedule I to the Act:

Assets category [ Useful life (in years)

| Plant and Equipment * 25

Office equipment - 5

Furniture and fixtures 10 -
Computers 3

Vehicles | 8

"Lease hold improvements ' Over the pericd of lease term |

* The useful life of plant & equipment ig different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule I of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company, based on technical assessment made by internal expert, has estimated the useful life
of solar power projects as 25 years and believes that it reflects fair approximation of the period over which the asset will
generate economic benefit and is likely to be used.

The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the
principal asset. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there are
indicators for impairment and adjusted prospectively.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss atiging on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the income statement when the asset is derecognized. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in
statement of profit & loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible essets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite usefil
life are reviewed at leest at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset. The software’s are amortised over a period of three years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognized.

g) Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the

right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

2
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Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilitics to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The company recognizes right-of-use asscts at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-usec assets are measured at cost, less any accurnulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received, Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets are follows:

*+  Leasehold Land 28 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated uging the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also
subject to impairment.

if) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term, The lcase payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any leasc incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, 4 change in the lease term, 2
change in the lcase payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of certain plant & machinery,
vehicle ete. (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognized as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of that asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs
are capitalized until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection
with the arrangement of borrowings, other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing cost.

) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lighility or equity

instrument of another entity.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Assets

Injtial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of
financial assets thet require delivery of zssets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
gell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
8) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by teking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
category applies to the Company’s trade receivables, unbilled revenue, other bank balances, security deposits etc.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
g) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting cantractual cash flows and selling the financial

agsets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTQCI category are mersured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals in the statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported es interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instrument included within FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement

of profit and loss.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to standalone financisl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amonnts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a finencial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

a) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and Either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into & pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
besis thet reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an itrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of
investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when;

a) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under &
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and Either () the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially afl of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
bagis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
» Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances
Financial asset that are debt instruments and ere measured as at FVTOCI
Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18,

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on
a twelve-month ECL. -

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instryment. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.c., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument

e  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowence on portfolio of its
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head “other expenses® in the statement of profit and loss.
The balance sheet presentation for financial instruments is described below:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost; ECL is presented as an allowance i.c. as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet, The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria,
the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating en analysis that is designed to enable significant increases
in ¢redit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Non derivative financial liabilities

Initlal Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans
and borrowings.
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Subsequent mezsurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financisl liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial labilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial Habilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This categery also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition et fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTFL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCT. These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process.

Amortized cost is celeulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of profit or loss.

Deri cial instruments and hedge accounti

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge
item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability

For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Company has classified its hedges into cash flow hedge i.e. hedging the exposure
to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability ora
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment. At the inception of
a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company
wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging ingtrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged,
and how the Company will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including
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the analysis of sources of hedge incffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies
for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

e There is ‘an economic relationship® between the hedged item and the hedging instrument,

» The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relationship.

* The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship ig the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the
Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Company actually uses to hedge that quantity
of hedged item,

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Cash Flow Hedges: The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.
The effective portion of cash flow hedges is adjusted to the lower of the cummulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
and the cumnlative change in fair value of the hedged item.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast transactions.
The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in statement of profit & loss, The Compeny
designates only the spot element of a forward contract as a hedging instrument. The changes in fair value of the forward
element of the derivative are recognized in other comprehensive income and are accumulated in ‘Cash Flow Hedge

Reserve’.

The difference between forward and spot element at the date of designation of the hedging instrument is amortised over
the period of the hedge. Hence, in each reporting period, the amortisation amount shall be reclassified from the separate
component of equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. The accumulated balance in cash flow hedge reserve
is transferred to property, plant and equipment on settlernent. However, if hedge accounting is discontinued for the hedging
relationship that includes the chenges in forward element of the hedging instrument, the net amount (.. including
cumuletive amortisation) that has been accumulated in the separate component of equity shall be immediately reclassified
into statement of profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment,

Reclassification of Finaneial instruments

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition, After initial recognition,
no reclassifications are made for financial assets and financial liabilities.

Qffsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offsct the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultancously.

1) Foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR or ¥) which is also the functional and reporting currency of

the Company,
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the fimetional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the finctional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items cutstanding at the balence sheet date are converted to functional currency using the
closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transactions,

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they
arise,
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Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

k) Taxes
Current Income taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
QCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions whers appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss,

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available ageinst which the temporary differences can
be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it i3 no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reparting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other

comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity
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I) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme a8 a2n expense when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized
as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The costs of providing benefits under the scheme
are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial
valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected unit credit method,

Remeasurements, comprising of actnarial gaing and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of
e  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
o  The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognizes

the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
seftlements; and

e  Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit,
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non-current liability.

m) Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly
paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares,
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n) Provisions

General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the cbligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certzin. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an cutflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of its solar power plants. Decommissioning costs are
provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recogniged as
part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed ag incurred and recognised in the statement
of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of

the asset.

o) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverabie amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from cther assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit & loss, except for assets that are previously revalued where
the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase.

p) Contingent Assets/liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no
longer a contingent asset, and is recognized as an asset.

A contingent lability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fisture events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cages where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence

in the financial statements.
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g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

r) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivates at Fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or trensfer the liability takes place cither:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability

¢  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a
non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would nse the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

as a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly

or indirectly observable
Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

At each reporting date, the management of the Company analysis the movements in the values of the assets and liabilities
which are required to be measured or reassessed as per the accounting policies of the Company.

For asgets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and rigsks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This
note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

§) Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date
Impact of events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide additional information materially effecting the

determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date are adjusted to respective assets and
Yabilities, The Company does not adjust the amount recognized in its financial statements to reflect non-adjusting events
after the reporting period. The Company make disclosures in the financial statement in case of significant events.

t) Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial
Statements,
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rara
Projects in progress - -
Projects teasporarlly suapanded - . - )
Tatal - -
As ot 31 Mareh 2022
Particalars Ameust s CWIF for  paried of
Lemtanlyeer  l2yeem  3ywn Mors than 3 Tonl
peey
Projects tn progress 0.5 [F]
Frojocts tectporctly suapeatad - - - -
Tetal (L] - [T




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Nobes to ttandalone financisl stntemients for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All emonuiy are staied in ¥ lakhas, wilsss otharwise stated)

Partienlars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

S Invesiment in Subsidiaries
Nos-Current iavestments®

Unquoted equity shares

In subsidisries (squity shares of € 10 ench, fully paid wp) (refer note 37)

Juniper Groen Sigma Private Limited [7,20,50,000 shares (March 31, 2022: 7,20,50,000)] 7,205.00 7,205.00
Nisagra Renewable Enecgy Private Limited [7,50,40,000 shares (March 31, 2022; 7,50,40,000)] 7.504.00 7.504.00
Tumiper Green Field Private Limited [107,370,000 shares (March 31, 2022: 99,370,000)] 10,737.00 9,957.00
Juniper Green Three Private Limited [131,300,000 shares (Mearch 31, 2022: 121,220,000)] 13,130.00 12,122.00
Juniper Groen Gam Private Limited [130,000 shares (March 31, 2022: 130,000)] 13.00 13.00
Orynge Qadag Wind Power Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: 10,000)] 1.00 1.00
Juniper Green Beam Private Limitod [40,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: 40,000)] 4.00 4.00
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited [7,40,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: 6,40,000)] 74,00 54.00
Juntper Groen Steller Private Limited [9,60,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: 7,10,0003) 96,00 7100
Jumiper Groen Bota Private Limited [1,10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: 1,10,000%] 11.00 11.00
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited [400,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: 150,000)] 40.00 15.00
Joniper Green Kite Private Limitsd [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: 10,000)] 1.00 1.00
Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: 10,000]] 1.00 1.00
Juniper Groen Fower Five Private Limited (10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: NiT)] 1,00 -
Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited [10,000 Sheres (March 31, 2022: Nil)] 1.00 -
Tuniper Green Indis Eight Private Limited [10,000 Sharca (March 31, 2022: NiI)] 1.00 -
Joniper Green Alpha Three Privats Limited [10,000 Sheres (March 31, 2022: Nil)] 1.00 -
Juniper Green Thets Five Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: Nij) 1.00 -
Jutiper Groen Gamma One Private Limdted [10,000 Shores (March 31, 2022: Nil)] 1.00 -
JFuniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: Nil)] 1.00 -
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: Nil)] 1.00 -
Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited [10,000 Shares (Murch 31, 2022: Nil)] 1.00 -
Juniper Groen Ray Two Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: Nil)] 1,00 -
Juiper Groen Boam Eight Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: Nil)] 1.00 -
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: Nilj] 1,00 -
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: Nil}] 1.00 -
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022; Ni1j] 1.00 -
Juniper Green Ray Cne Privete Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: Nit)] 1.00 -
Jontiper Greent India Alpha Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: Nil)] 1.00 -
Joniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: NiI)] 1.00

Fumiper Green Light Four Private Limbied [10,000 Sheres (March 31, 2022: Nil)] 1.00

Juniper Green India Six Private Limfted [10,000 Sharea (March 31, 2022 Nil)] 1.00

Juniper Oroen Sigma Hight Privete Limited [10,000 Shares (March 31, 2022: Nil)] 1.00

Total Investment in subsldiaries (A) 38,837.0 36,949.00
Opiionally Convertible debentures (OCDs)

In swbaldiariss (debentures of € 100 each) (refer note 38)

Juniper Green Field Private Limited (FGFPLY) [10,314,000 debeatures (March 31, 2022: 9,547,000)]** 10,314.00 9,547.00
Juniper Gyeen Three Private Limited (JGTPL") [12,614,000 debentnrea (March 31, 2022: 11,646,000)] *** 12,614.00 11,646.00
Total Investioent in OCDs of subsidlaries (B) 22,928.00 21,193.00
Totsl investment In subsidisries (C = A+B) $1,765.00 58,142.00
Non Current Investmont 61,765.00 58,142.00

Aggregate smount of book value end market valne of quoted investments
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 61,765.00 38,142.00
Apggregate amount of impairment in value of fovestments -

*All the invegiment in equity shares of subsidiaries aro stated at cost as per Ind AS 27 ‘Separate Financigl Statements’,

** fnvestment in OCDs which are convertible into Equity shares at the option of the Companty in accondance with the conditions of the subscription agreement or is redeemablo on or before
March 31, 2042. No intereat shall acerue or charged or become due or recelvable till June 30, 2023 or ons year foin the Project Commercial Qperation Date (COD') or first pryment of
ingtallment of torm loan facility by the subsidiary company, whichever is Iater,

4 Investment in OCDa which are convertible into Equity shares at the option of the Company in accordance with the conditions of the subscription agreament or is redeemable on or before
March 31, 2043. No interest shall accrue or charged or become due or receivable til March 31, 2023 or one year from the Project Commercial Operation Date (COD} or first payment of
instaltment of term loan facility by the subaldinry company, whichever is later,

6 Loans (Unsecured, eomsilersd good nnless otherwise stated)
Loans to related party (refar nots 38)

= To mbaldiary compay - 984.20
- To subsidiary company® 349.00 -

- To subsidiery company (component as per Ind AS 109)+ 5 790,00 3.790.00
Total NN Y

* Represonts unsecured loan to subsidiary company which is receivabla on or before March 31, 2042, The applicable interest rate is §.45% (0.05% leas than interest rate applicable on term
loan avalled ftr 190 MW project).

** Represents unsecured loan to sbaidiary compaty which is receivable on or before March 31, 2035, The intersst is receivable from March 31, 2022 or Project Commerical Operation Date
{COD’) or till repayment of firs installment of term loan by the subsidlary company, whichever is Iter. I accontnece with IND AS 109, this unsecured loan has been separsted into asset
and equity components. Equity components has been classified in the Other Bquity (refer note 19) and asset component in loans. Intevest on asset component is recognisad wsing the effective
interest method,

7 Other non crrrent flasncial assets

- Pixsd Deposits* 1088 1000
» Fixed Doposits with bank - 041
Socurity deposit 30.87 3887
Total 49.85 4521

*Lign myriced with bank in favour of leader’s.




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to sinndalone financlal stntestents for the year endod March 31, 2023
(Al gmonnts are steted In ¥ sk hin_ maless inharwise starsds

8. Deferred tax asssts / (Mabllity) (ne€)
(a) Componests of Deferred tax asset / (lability) (net)

Deferred tax ssset:

Provision for smployes benafits

Lease linbility

Prepeyment of 1and lease

Defirod tax assets on equity compenant as per Ind AS 109
Unabeorbed depreciption

Expenses to be allowed In snbssqirent years

Groas deferred tax asset (A)

Deferred tax Rabllity:

Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts
Right to use assets

EIR adfustment of horrowings

Fair value of investment and financlal instruments at amortised cost

Grosa deferred tax liahiity (B)

Net Deferred tax nssets / (Rability) (A-B)

(b) Reconcilation of deferred tax assets / (iability) ¢

Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
1899 14.13
185.29 157.55
13.33 16.03
293.16 293.16
72.09 -
9.05 6.92
591.91 488.19
40745 261.67
199.00 153.44
298 24,78
- 0.18
629.43 480.07
£152) 013,

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Openiog balance 12 63.66
Tex incamef{expense) during the yeer recognissd in statement profit and loss (45.30) (41.36)
Tax incomef{expense) during the yesr recognised in OCI 034 (19.18)
Closing balance as nt 31 March g_.!a %
(c) Movemeat in deferred tux sssets / (Hability)
Movement In deforred assets / | Bafility } fior vesr ended Yarch 31, 1013 ) 1# in Inkha
Particalars Mareh 31, 2022 | Recognised | Recognisedin | March 31,2023
in OCI profit and lnss
Assety
Provizion for employee benefits 14,13 ©.34) 520 18.99
Lease 157.95 - 2134 18529
Prepaymeat of land lease 16.03 | - | (2.70) 13.33
Equity component a8 per Ind AS 109 293,16 - - 293.16
‘Unabsorbed depreciartion - - 72.09 72.09
Brponses lloived n subseduont vears 6uaf - 2.13 LA
[T T Tl 10} |
Liability
Deprecistion and amostisation on property, plent &nd equipment and intangible assets 261.67 - 145.78 40745
Right to use assets 193.44 - 556 159.00
EHIR adfustment of bormowings 2478 - {1.80) 2298
Fair valoe of investment and financ! insmuiizenis ul ainsmeed cos 0.18 - i, 1% -
A&l - 149,38 [ LEE]
et Dheferred e nues | {lishificy) 112 | 1,34)) {45,300 T8
Movement In deferred assets / {finhiEiv) far swus wnded March 31, 2071 | ¥ in lakhay
i Particulars March 31, 2021 Rocoguised n | March 31, 2022
In OCI profit and losa
Aoty
Cash flow hedge reserve 20.18 (20.18) - -
Provision for employee benefits BAS 1.00 4.65 14.13
Lease linbility 128.47 - 2948 157.95
Prepaymant of 1and leass 21.81 - (5.78) 1603
Unabeorbed deprecistion 0.24 - (0.24) -
Equity component as per Ind AS 109 293.16 - - 203.16
Erpenses allowed in sotaeyues) veurs 6.85 - 0.07 6.92
ATU1S Ling IR 48014
Liability
Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and Intangible aasets 19856 62,71 261.67
Right to use asscts 184.57 B.87 193.44
EIR. adjustment of borowings 26.72 (1.54) 24.78
Fair vahie of in: cuiitimi =i finsscial insiruments of smortised cost 028 10.104] 0.18
| 410.53 - [l 480.87
St Deferred tan s 7 {Tafilidy 3 | [LH- [LERLY [CAPLTH 51X




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalowe fingucial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unlesa otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

11

Nom Current tax assets (nat)
Advance income-tax / tax deducted &t source (et of provigon fir income tax emovmting to INR Nil) 77.04 3945

Towl 7Y

Other mon-current assats (Unsecured, contidered good wnless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses 0,12 -
Total [N -

investments

Quoted Mutual Funds {measured at fair value through Profit and Loss)

HDFC Ovemnight Mutnal Fand Direct Plan - Growth Option 101.47
[INi1 units (March 31, 2022: 3,213.670)]
Total i 47

Aggregate bock valne and market value of unquoted investments -
Aggregate mprket value of Quotad investments 10147
Aggregate smonnt of impairment in vatue of nvestments

Trade recelvables

Trade receivables considered good - Sacured -
Trade recelvables considerad good - Unsecured 432,68 42497
Total Trade receivables 4335 42497
Break-mp for security detalls:

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good 432.68 42497
Trade recalvahls - Credit impaired - -
Total 4325 SU7,
Impatrment ARgwance ( Allowance for expected credit loss)

Unsecured, considered good

‘Trade receivable - Credit impaired

Total Trade recelvables 43268 42497

Trade receivables carries interest as per the tarms of agresments with castomers and are ganerally on terms of 0 to 30 days.
Trade Rocelvables Agelng Schedule
As at 31 March 2023

Crutstnudlog for followlng periods from due date of paymen
Particulars Uobiled Currentbut Lessthan6 6 months—1 Maore than
Recelvables not Dus Months Ll 1-2 years -3 yeann 3 yeare Total

Undisputed Trade Recaivables — considared good 201.86 214.63 16.19 - - - - 432.68
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
significent increass in credit risk

Undispmted Trade receivable — credit mpaired - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant
incroase in credit risk

Disputed Trade receivables — crodit impaired - - - - -

Toal A6 215 612 : : - - T 8

As at 31 March 2022
Outstandizg for followta: prvisis from dwe date of pavmeui

Pardeulans Unbilied Cmrrentbut Lessthamé 6 momths-1 More than
Recelvablss not Due Months yEnr 12 yoars 13ymn 3 wenn

Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 212,09 198.52 14,38 - - - . 42497
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
s{gnmﬂnthminmdhﬂlk

Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - . = -
Totnl i 1R 51 1406 . - - 424,97

Cash aud cash equivalents

Cash in hand 0.56 0.53
Balances with banks:

=om current ReconTHy 500.65 317.67

- Doposits with criginal maturity for less than 3 monfhs - 100.00
Total 50121 41330

Other bank balances
- Fixed Depogits* - 2,935.83
= Fixed Deposits with banks** ‘B63.96 317043

Total 36396 6.106.26
*Held as margin money lien against letter of credit/bank guarantee/overdraft imit.
*¥The daposits teaintained by the Company with bank compriss of ime daposits, which can be withdrawn by the Company st any point without prior notice or panalty on the principal.

A NEN
/ Qf%’r 5'?6.’4




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalony finaneinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are statod in € lakhe, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Net dsht reconciliation
‘This section sets out analysis of net dobt and the movement in net debt for each of the year presented:
Net debt ss on 31 March 2023
Parficularg March3l, CuhFlows Commitment  Fairvalme  March 31,2023
2022 /Adjustment  adjwrtment
during the  (Qtiser than Cash
yoar Flaw) / Others
Non current - Borrowings (fncknding owrrent maturition) 11,098.20 (553.47) 7.16 10,551.54
Leass Lisbilities 627.58 11127} 64.17 75.73 736.21
Total (A) T 17 V] TR TF TR R
Loas:
Cash and cash oquivalents (418.20) (#3.01) . - (501.21)
Invegtment in mutust fimd (11 47 120.68 - 119214 -
Net cash & cash squivalont (B) LD TS - 420
NutDebt (A-B) 11,206.11 (561.02) 417 63.68 10,786.94
Not debt as on 1| Marsh 192
Particulars March31, CamhFlows Commitment  Fairvalie  March 31,2022
2021 fAdjostment  adjustmant
duringthe  (Other than Cash
year Flow) / Othera
Non current - Borrowings (lncluding current matrities) 6,44046  4,650.38 5 716 11,008.20
Current - Borrowings 4,711.55  (4,949.05) - 23750
Leease Lisbilities 51046 (1937 B2 62.69 627.58
Tousl VY Y AT BN s llgam
Leas:
Cauh and cash equivalents (18058) (23722 . . (41820)
Investment in mutual fund (468.13)  457.03 - (9037 {101.47)
Net cash & cash equivalent (B) (Gee1h 21981 ——
Net Debt (A-B) 11,013.36 793 73.70 21698 11,206.11
15 Loams
Loang to related parties (refer note 38)
- To sbeidiary companies * - 1,976.00
- To subsidiary companies 4.156.85 L
Totl 4268 15700
Break-up for secority detalls:
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, congidersd good 4,256.85 1,976.00
Credit impaired :
Toml 45635 1600
Impalrment Alowance ( Allgwance for expected credit loss)
Unsecured, considered good ] -
Credit impatred ‘
Total Loan 4325682 L976.00

* Represents unsecured loan to Subsidisry Company, converted into equity shares snd Optionally Convertibls Detweniipres (QCD) smountleg to INR 1,008 lakhe md INR 968 lakheg
Tespectively on May 11, 2022.

16 Other current financisl assets
(Unsecurod, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Interest accrued on fixed deposit 5.54 51.05
Interest accrued on security depoait 1.17 L7
Interest accrued on loans to related party (refer note 38) 122,90 -
Roceivable from related parties (refer note 38) . 187.28 -
Total 316.89 5222

17 Other current assets
({Unsecwred, consldered good unless otherwise stated)

Prepeaid expense 5341 5531
Other advance (including advance to employees) 10.19 1154
Ofhex taxes recoivable 0.70 080

Total a0 S8




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalons Husmelal siateanents for the year mded Myreh 31, 2023

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
18. Equity Share Caplinl

Partienlan Mwrnh A1, 20133 Margh 31, 22T
Authorised share capitak

Equity share capltal

2,50,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 1,55,00,000) equity shares of Ra, 10+ each 2,500.00 1,550.00
2,000 (March 31, 2022: 2,000) Class B equity shares of Rs.10 sach 020 020
Totl Aoz i
Ismed, snbscribed and folly pald-up share caplitsl

1,38,05,243(March 31, 2022: 1,38,05,243) equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up 1,380.52 1,380.52
2,000 (March 31, 2022: 2,000} Class B nquity shares of Rs.10 cach fully paid up 0.20 020
Tota 7 KT
A, Reconcllintion of No, of Equity Shares

@) Anthiorised share capital No. of shares Amnuse
At Aprl 1, 2021% 1,05,00,000 1,050.00
Bquity Shares increased during the year 50,00,000 500.00
Class B Bquity Shares incressed during the year 2,000 020
At March 31, 2022 1

Equity Shares increased during the year 95,00,000 950,00
At March 31, 2023 M
*Includes equity share increesed on sccount of merger (refer note 46)

(1) Essued, subseribed and folly pald-up share capltal ___No, of sharey Amnami
At Aprll 1, 2021 §6,53,013 568.30
Equity Shares issued during the yoar 81,52,2%0 81522
Class B Bquity Shares issued during the yes 2,000 020
At Mareh 31, 2022 13807243 1380.72
Equity Shares issned during the yesr - -
AtMarch 31, 2023 —i2 1387
B, Teruw/Rights attached to shaves

Terme/Richts attached to equity shaves
The Company has two classes of equity shares having a par value of Ra.104 each as follows:

Each holder of Equity Share is entitled to one voie per share. In the event of liquidstion of the Company, tha holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assels of the Compeny, after distribution of all preferential smounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares beld by the shareholders,

Each holder of class B Equity Share shall not carry any right 1o dividend, voting or eny other economio right and collectively gain 8 parcentage of voting, dividend and
economio rights (of tha total voting and economic rights availsble to the shareholders of the Company) as provided in Articles of Associgtion,

C. Shares held by holding company
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by ity holding company are as below:

Particulars Mareh 31, 1013 Murch 31, 1022

1,38,05,243 (March 31, 2022; 1,38,05,243) equity shares of Re 10/- sach held by Juniper Ranenvahle Holdings Pte. Ltd., the 1,380.52 1,380.52

bolding oompany and ita nominee

D. Detalls of shaycholyry holjings o _

Name of the thaveholder Number of thares  Percamtageof Numberofshares  Percentage of
held Hiihilimg held I bialiiig
Asat At ot Asat Asgt

March 3 March 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2002
Equity shares of Ba 10 each fully pald
Jundper Renewabie Holdings Pte. Ltd., the holiding company and nominee 1,38,05,243 100.00% 1,38,05,243 100.00%

As per recards of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration recelved from sharcholders regending bemeficial interest, fhe sbove
sharsholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares,

E. Details of Equity shares held by promoters
As st March 31, 2023

Promoter Name No. of thares at Change during ~ No.ofsharea st % of Totnl Shares % change during
the beginuing of the year the end of the year the year
the yeur
Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd, and nominee 1,38,05,243 - 1,38,05,243 100.00% -
Asat March 31, 1021
Promoter Name No, of shares at Change doriug ~ No. ofshareant % of Total Shares % chanpe during
the beginming of the year . the end of the year the year
the saar
Juniper Renewablo Holdings Pte. Ltd. and nomines 56,52,725 81,52,518 1,28,05,243 100.000% 0.005%

F. No shares have boen issued for consideration other then cash and no shares bave been bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting
date,




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year emded March 31, 2023
Al amounts are stated in ¥ inkh_unless otherwise stated:

Particulars March 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022
19 Other Equity
Retained earnings
(a) Statement of profit and loss
As per last balance sheet 2,983.64 2,085.10
Add : Net profit for the year 140,33 898.54
Net sorplus in stxtement of profit and loss 3,123.97

Retained earnings represents the amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends considering the requirements of the Companies’ Act, 2013.

(b) Securities premfum accomnt

Ap per last balance sheet 73,139.88 28,534.74
Add: Addition on issue of aquity sheres - +4.605.14
Total 71.139.88 71,139.88

Securities premium 18 used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(c) OCI reserve

An per last balance sheet - (59.99)
Add: Cash flow hedge reserve, net of tax - -
Less: Reversal of cash flow hedge reserves, net of tax - 59.99
Total - -
(d) Share application money pending allotment
As per last balance aheet - -
Add: amount received - 45,420.57
Less: Equity issued - (45,420.56)
Lesa: amount refinded back - (1,01}
Total = =
{¢) Equity component as per Ind AS 109
Aun per Iast balance sheet (871.64) (871.64)
Add: Adjustment on account of equity component ag per Ind AS 109 - -
Total {H71.64) (871641
(1) Capital Reserve
Apn per last balance sheet (Refer note 46) (1.27) (1.27)
Adjustment on account of merger -
{1.27) (1.27)

The excess of net asscts taken over the investment carried in Demerged Company is treated as capital reserve on account of meger. Capital reserve on account of
merger i8 not available for the distribution to the shareholders.

Total Other Equity (a-+b+etdteH) 75,390.94 15250.61

Q\'Ciﬁ‘?
()JAdFQ




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
L All amounts are stated in ¥ Likh:_unless otherwise stated:

Particulars

March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

21

Borrowlings
Secured
Term Loan from financiel institutions* 10,551.94 11,098.20

Laess: Amount clubbed under "Current Borrowings" (Refer note 22) 550.94) 1526.99)
Total 10,001.00 1 .21

*Represents term loan taken from Indien Renewable Energy Development Agency (IREDA) in INR specifically for the purpose of sotting up 30 MW solar power
project in Maherashire which carrics net interest rate of 8.30% p.a with annval reset upon expiry of 1 year from the date of first disbursement and every year
thereafier. The loan shall be repaid over a tenure of 15 years in 60 quarterly instalments starting from March 31, 2021 and ending on December 31, 2035,

(i) Exclusive Firgt Charge by way of Mortgage by deposit of title deeds in favour of IREDA on all the immovable propertics, both present and fatore, wherever
situate, pertaining to 30 MW.

{ii) Exclusive First Charge by way of hypothecation in favour of IREDA of all the movable assets/properties both present and firture whercver situate, pertaining
to 30 MW.

(iii} Corporate Guarantee of holding Company M/s, Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte Limited which shall be released upon compliance of the certain conditions.

(iv) Pledge of $9% of the promoter’s contribution (Bquity) in the project. The same shall be reduced to 76% end retained during the tenure of the loan, upon
compliance of the certain conditions.

(v) Conditional assignment of a) All the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands of the project contract assignable by the company, b) Subject to
Applicable Law, all the rights, title, intereat, benefits, claims and demands in fhe Clegrances pertaining to the project ¢) All the rights, title, interest, benefits,
¢claims and demands in any letter of credit, guarantee, performance bond, corporate guarantee, bank guarantee, minimum encrgy generation guarantee, Hquidated
damages, shortfhll in generation etc. provided by any party to the Project Documents,

Provisions
Non-current
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 40) 39.44 28.99
Total 3944 28.99
Borrowings
Current
Secured
Current maturites of long term loans 550.94 526.99
Total 550.94 526.99
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 6.64 318
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 50.73 42.85
Total 57317 46.03
‘Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled 0-90 days terma,
Trade Payahles Agelng Schedule
An nt 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled Lessthanl 1dyears 23 years More than 3 Total

Payubles yiar YiERATS
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small R 6.64 . i} i} 6.64
enferprises ’ '
Total outstanding ducs of oreditora other than micro 1324 15.88 023 125 0.13 50.73

caterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

Total 3324 22.52 223 125 0.13 51,37




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
| All amounts ere stated in ¥ lakhs. unless otherwise stated;

Particulars Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2022
As at 31 March 2022
Qutstaniding for followtnp perfads from due date of pryment
Particolars Unbilled Lessthan 1 More than 3
Puynbles Vi I-2years 23yean Vears Total
Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small . 318 . _ R 318
enterprises ' '
Total outstanding does of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterpriscs 27.91 1341 1.40 0.13 42.85
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and R R _ . .
wmall enterprises
Total 2791 16.59 1.40 .13 - 46.
—" — — ——
24 Other current financial Habilitics
Other financial Habilities at amortised cost
Payable for purchase of Property, piant and equipment (includes INR 2.59 lakha payable to micro and small enterprises, 4176 7144
refer note 36) : '
Retention money paywble (includes INR 9,69 lakhs payable fo micro and small enterprises, refer note 36) 90.86 114.99
Payable to reiated parties (refer note 38) 28.89 24,28
Employes releted liabilities 18.84 4.47
Total 186.35 221.18
mp— —— =
25 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues 24.30 60.07
Total 24.30 60.07
26 Provisions
Current
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 40) 0.21 0.13
Provision for compensated absences 35.81 27.02
Total 36.02 27.15




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notet to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amoumis are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Partieulars Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
27 Revenue from operations
Revenue from contract with customers
Sale of Power 2,324.30 2,176.94
Leas: Rebate (19.45) -
Other operating income
Sale of Voluntary Emisaions Reductions (VERs) 15419 276.37
Total 2,459.03 2453.31
28 Other income
Interest Income on
Fixed deposits 158.2¢9 166.98
Income Tax Refimd 2,28 4.89
Security deposit 1.28 128
loan to subsidiary companies
interest incoms 579.65 155.74
using effective interest rate method as per IND AS 109 - 660.58
Profit on redemption of mutual fund 1921 89.66
Sales of Scrap 0.03 -
Net gain on investment in Mutual Fund measured at fisir value through profit and logs - 0.71
Other miscellaneous income - 0.23
Total 760.74 Lok 17
19 Employee beneflts expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 666.32 360.61
Contribution to provident and other funds 41.52 24.40
Gratuity expenses 13.82 9.88
Leave encashment 11.67 18.81
Staff welfare expenses 11.66 6.91
Total 744.99 420,61
30 Depreciation and amortization expease
Depreciation of property plant and equipment (refer note 3) 631,57 628.94
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 14.96 13.59
Depreciation on Right to uss assets (refer note 3) 42.05 38.49
Total 688.58 GH1.402
31 Finance cost
Intereat on loan from finsmeial institution 921.80 784,55
Interest on buyer's credit - 18.01
Interest on bank overdraft 388 -
Interest expenses on lease lishilitiss 75.73 62.69
Other borrowing cost (bank guaraniee, hedging cost and other charges) 186.22 313.8¢
Total hlﬂ.ﬂ lIlW.ld
32 Other expenses
Legal and professiong] expenses 92.85 34,12
Bid application & processing focs 4793 395
Insurance Expense 47.89 3283
Security expensey 41.60 39.65
Travelling and conveyance 37.61 10.16
Operational Expenses 3382 33.66
Electricity charges 26.39 2436
Subscription and membership fee 19.96 12.54
Payment to suditors (Refer note 1 below) 19.76 21.87
Rates & taxes 16.12 11.78
Rent expenses 11,54 3.57
Communication expenses 8.14 7.46
'VER [sznance expenses 3.38 9.35
Repair and maintenance (others) 220 1.1%
CSR Expenditure (Refer note 2 below) 1.80
Printing and stationery 0.77 0.85
Miscellaneous expenses 0.50 340
‘Websits Maintenance Charges 0.42
Commectivity Application Fee 030
Donation 0.03 10.73
Foreign Exchange Loss (net) 0.01 -
413.02 261.27

Total




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Nodtes fo standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounis are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022
Note-1
Payment to auditor comprises fee (Inclustve of GST)
Audit fee 10.34 10.32
Tax audit foe 1.82 1.77
In other capacity
OCther services (group reporting & certifioation fee) 6.55 8.85
Reimbursement of expenses 1,05 0.93
Total 19.76 2187
— —
Note-2
Detalls of CSR expeaditure
8) 'Gross amount required to be spent by the Company for the year 170 -
b) Amount spent in cash during the year on
i) Construction/acquisition of any agset - -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 1.80 -
¢) Details related to unspent obligations:
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
ii) On purposes cther than (i) above - -
Total = -
Excess amount spent under section 115(5)
Openi L Amount required | Amnoini spent durmg inz Bal
B— o be spent during the year Closing
- 1.70 1.80 (.10}
33  Income tax expenses
(a) Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss comprises:
Current tax 15.90
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years 0.94 32,68
Deferred tax charge/ (Credit ) relating to origination and reversal of temporary differances #45.30 41.36
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 46.24 89.94
(b) Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Net gain/ (loss) on revaluation of cash flow hedges - {20.18)
Net gain/ (loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 10.34) 1.00
Total i0,34) {19.1%}
(c) Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate :
Acconnting profit before Income tax 185.55 991.44
Applicable statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25,17%
Tax at applieable Income tax rate 46.70 249.53
Tax As per Books [refer above note 33(n)] 46.24 89.94
Adjustments for ;
Income / (Expenses) not allowed under income tax act {0.46) 159.01
Others 0.92 0.58
Total Tax 46.70 249.53

& The tax mte used for the year 2022-23 and 2021-22 ig the Corporate tax rate of 25.2% payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian

Tax law.
b. The rate used for calculation of defarred tax is 25.2% for 2022-23 and 2021-22.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are stated in € lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

34, Earnings Per Share (EPS):

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares, if any.

The following data reflects the inputs to calculation of basics and diluted EPS:

| Particulsrs March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 |
Net profit as per statement of profit and loss for calculation of
basic EPS and dilutive EPS 13931 901.50
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating ea |

 pasic/diluted EPS 1,38,07,243 1,12,83,833
Nominal value per share (%) 10.00 | 10.00 [
Basic & Diluted earnings per share | l._01__ - 7.99 |

35. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require & material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
« Capital management (Refer Note - 43)

* Financial risk management objectives and policies (Refer Note -44)

* Sensitivity analyses disclosures (Refer Note - 44)

A, Judgments
In the process of applying the Company accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as a lessee:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it i3 reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease, That is,
it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or terminetion. After
the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate {e.g.,
construction of significant leaschold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset). Refer to Note 41 for
information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination
options that are not included in the lease term,
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the fiture and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
2 significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several externsl and internal
factors which could resuit in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

b) Taxes:

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assess
of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

c) Deflned benefits plan (Gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All essumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

d) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

‘When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

¢) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefors, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available. The Company estimates the IBR as rate at which the borrowing is
availed during the year.

The key assumptions concemning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the

assumptions when they occur.
Q,“ EN,
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36. The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified by management from the available information, which has been relied
upon by the auditors. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, outstanding dues to the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as follows,

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2622
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 18.92 29.32

to any supplier as at the end of each accounting vear

Principal amount due to micro and small enicrprises 18.92 29.32
Interest due on above* Nil Nil

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Nil Nil

the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
vear

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Nil Nil
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the period) but without adding the interest specified

under the MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nil Nil
each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in Nil Nil

the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act 2006

* The amount of principal end interest is not due to Micro and Small Enterprises vendors as per the terms of the agreement
entered into with such vendors.
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Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ Iakhs, unless otherwise stated)

37. List of subsidiaries at any time during the year:
The Company’s interest in below mentioned subsidiaries are accounted for using the cost method in the financial

statements in accordance with IND AS 27.

|
§. No. Company Name m‘;;‘{ ;?me::hg Relationship l;:l.ln:ceiﬁll'e
Interest buainess
1 | Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% | i
2 Ezﬂmf“‘“‘ Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% India
3 | Nisagra Renewsble Energy Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% India
4 | Juniper Green Sigme Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% | India
5 | Juniper Green Field Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% India
6 | Juniper Green Three Private Limited* | Subsidiary 100.00% India
7 | Juniper Green Gem Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% India
8 | Juniper Groen Beam Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% India
9 Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited® Subsidiary 100.00% India
10 | Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% India
11 | Juniper Green Beta Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% Indis
12 | Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% India
13 | Juniper Green Kite Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% India
14 | Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% | mdia
15 | Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited ** Subsidiary 100.00% wef Sthluly2022 | India
16 | Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% | wef Sthluly2022 | India
17 | Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited** Subsidiary 10000% | wefShluly2022 | India |
| 18 | Juniper Groen Alpha Three Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% wef TthTuly2022 | India
19 | Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited** Subsidiary 10000% | wef 7hJuly2022 | India
20 | Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% wef thluly2022 | India
21 | Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% wef 7hiuly2022 | India
22 | Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited™® Subsidiary 100.00% wef 7thJuly2022 | India
| 23 | Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% wef Tthluly2022 | India
24 | Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% wef Sthjuly2022 | India
25 | Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% wef BthJuly2022 | India
26 | Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited®¥ Subsidiary 100.00% wef 8thJuly2022 | India
27 | Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% wef SthJuly2022 | India |
28 | Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% wef. 8thJuly2022 | India |
| 29 | Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited™* Subsidiary 100.00% wef 8thJuly2022 | India
30 | Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% wef 11th July 2022 | India
31 | Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% wef 13thFuly 2022 | India
32| Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% | wef 13hJuly2022 | India
33 Juniper Green India Six Private le:ted"" Subsidiary 100. 00% w.e.f, lSth July 2022 India
34 | Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% | wef 19t July2022 | India

* During the year the Company has further invested in equity shares and holds 100% shares of the entity.
** During the year, the Company has subscribed to 100% shares of the entity.
# As per Hon’ble NCLT order dated 08.09.2022, Juniper Green India Private Limited has been merged with the Company,
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38. Related Pariy Transactions

A) Name of related parties and related parties relationship

Relationship with the Company Names of Related Parties
Ultimate Holding Company AT Holdings Pte. Ltd.
| Holding Company Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Lid.
' L Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited
Subsidiarics Juniper Green India Private Limited (Amalgamated}

Nisazra Renewable Energy Private Limited

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

Juniper Green Field Private Limited

Juniper Green Three Private Limited

Juniper Green Gem Private Limited

Juniper Green Beam Private Limited —

_Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited

Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited

Juniper Green Beta Private Limited

Junijer Green Transmission Private Limited

Juniper Green Kite Private Limited

Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited

Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited ( w.e.f. 5th July 2022)
Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited (w.e.f. 5th July 2022)

Juniper Green India Eipht Private Limited (w.e.f. 5th Julv 2022)

Juniper Green Alph: Three Private Limited (w.e.f. 7th July 2022)

Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited (w.c.f. 7th July 2022)

|| Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited | w.e.f, 7th Julv 2022)

| Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited (w.e.f, 7th July 2022)

Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited (w.e.f. 7th July 2022)
Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited | w.e.f. 7th July 2022)

Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited i w.e.f, 8th July 2022)

Juniper Green Beam Fight Private Limited (w.e.f, 8th July 2022
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited (w.e.f. 8th July 2022)

| Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited (w.e. f Bth July 2022)

Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited (w.e.f, 8th July 2022

Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited (w.e.f. 11th July 2022)

Iumper Green Spark Ten anate anted iw.e.f. 13th July 2022r

Juniper Green India Six Private Limited iw.e. f 15th July 2022}
Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited (w.e.f. 19th July 2022;
| Key Management Personnel Arvind 1iku, Director

Hemant Tikoo, Director

Saniay Bakliw:a!, Director

Naresh Mansukhani. Wholetime Director

Paray Apgrawal Wholetime Director

Devendra Sinch, Director w.e.f. 23rd March 2023
Prashant Pandia, Company Secretary

# As per Hon'bie NCLT order dated 08.09.2022, Juniper Green India Private Limited has been merged with the
| Compiany,
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B) Statement of Material Transactions with Related Parties

Particulars

Holding Company

Subsidiaries

Key Management

Personnel

31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-22

31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-22

31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-22

Issue of Equity Shares (Including share premium)
|

Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. - 4541177 | -1 - - | -
Issue of Class B Equity Shares {Including share preminm)
Naresh Mansukhani - - N - ' 2.73
Parag Agrowal - | - - - 202 |
Refund of extra share application momey
Juniper Renewable Holdirgs Pte. Ltd. | - 0.01 | =] = - - |
Intercompany Loan Given
| Oranize Gadag Wind Power Private Limited - - - 24.00 - -
Juniper Green Field Private Limited = - 5.115.00 300.00 - -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 649.00 11.476.00 - -
Nizisgra Renewable Enerypy Private Limited 935.00 - - -
Junipcr Green Gem Private Limited . 139.00 - - -]
| Juniper Green Beam Private Limited - - 692.00 | - -
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited - - 419.65 | - -
Junipier Green Cosmic Private Limited - - | 279.80 - -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited - - 483.90 - - =
Juniper Green Transmigsion Private Limited - - 124.00 - - -
Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited - - 8.50 | - - -
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited - - 114.00 - - -
Juniper Green India Fight Private Limited - - 1.50 - - -
| Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited - - 2.50 - - -
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited - - 3.00 - - -
| Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited | - - 11.50 - = :
| Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited f - - 54.50 - - -
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited - - 5.50 - -
Juniper Green Eta Five Private Limited - - 1.50 - -
Junipcr Green Fav Two Private Limited - - 794.00 - -
Juniper Green Beam Eiglit Private Limited - - 1.50 | -
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited - - 1.50 - = -
Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited - - 5.00 - -
| Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited - - 3.00 - -
| Juniper Green Fay One Private Limited ] - - 165.00 - -
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited - - 1.50 - - -1
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited - - 29.00 - = -
_Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited - - 050 - - -
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited - - 0.50 - - -
Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited - - 0.50 - - -
Intercompany Loan Received Back
Juniper Green Sigina Private Limited | - - 1,132,00 - -
_Urange Qadag Wind Power Private Limited | . | - 111.15 - .
Juniper Green Field Private Limited - 4.050.00 300.00 - |
Juniper Green Three Private Limited - - | 300.00 10,000.00 - =
Nisagrs Renewable Ensrov Privete Limited - | 1,919.20 890.80 -
Juniper Green Gem Private Limited - - | 100.00 - - =
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited - - 26.00 - -
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited - -] 25.00 - -
Investment in Equiry Share Capital
_Juniper Green Gem Private Limited | - - - 12.00 - -
Juniper Green Field Private Limited - - 800.00 9.171.00 - -
| Juniper Green Three Private Limited® - - 1.008.00 11.371.00 | - -
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited - - = 4,00 | - -
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited - - 10.00 | 64.00 | - -
| Junipcr Green Stellar Private Limited - - 25.00 71.00 - -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited - - . 11.00 - -
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Particad Holding Company Subsidiardes Koy ianapuenent |

31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-22
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited - - 25.00 15.00 - -

Juniper Green Kite Private Limited ! - | - - 1.00 -1 -
Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited - - - 1.00 -
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited - - 1.00 - - -
Juniper Green Sizma Six Private Limited - - 1.00 - - -
| Juniper Green India Eizht Private Limited - - 1.00 | - -
| Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited - 1.00 | - - -
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited - - 1.00 - -
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited - - 1.00 | - -
Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited - - 1.00 ' - -
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited - - 1.00 - - -

_Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited - - 1.00 - - -

| Jumiper Green Ray Two Private Limited - - 1.00 | - - -

| Juniper Green Beam Bivht Private Limited - - 1.00 - - -
.Tum,ﬂ' Green Beam Six Private Limited - - 1.00 - - -
| Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited - - 1.00 - - -
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited - - 1.00 - -1 -
Junipecr Green Ry One Private Limited - 1.00 - -

_Juniper Green India Aljphi Private Limited - 1.00 - -1 -
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited - - 1.00 | - - =]
Juniper Green Lighit Four Private Limited - 1.00 | - - -
| Juniper Green India Six Private Limited - 1.00 | - - -
Juniper Green Sizma Eight Private Limited 1.00 | - - -
Subscription to Optianally Convertible Debentures (*OCDs’)

Juniper Green Field Private Limijted®* - - 767.00 9.547.00 | - -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited* - 968.00 11.646.00 | - -
Reimbursement of Expensis / Pavinents _
Juniper Green Field Private Limited - 186.48 | - -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited - - 0.28 5 -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited - - 10.73} - -
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited - 11,241 | - -
| Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited - - 10.781 - -
" Juniper Green Beam Private Limited - -l i1.05) - -
| Juniper Green Rav Two Private Limited - | - 10.02) - - -
| Interest Income on Loan — - _— —
Nisagra Renewable Fnerzy Private Limited - - 89.75 155.74 - -
Juniper Green Siymu Private Limited - - 468.99 N - - -
Juniper Green Field Private Lmuted - - - - 22| 0 -0 -l -]
Juniper Green Three Private Limited - B 0.65 - - |
Salary and other benefits #
Naresh Mansukhani - - - | 201.25 173.84
Parug Agrawal - - - -] 13570 | 114.34
| Prashant Pandia 1 26.95 24,52

Al related party transactions are at arm’s length and normal course of buslness

# Post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits are actuarially determined on overall basis and hence not

separately provided.

*Unsecured loan as orn March 31, 2022 of INR 1,976.00 lakhs to Juniper Green Three Private Limited, converted into equity
shares and Optionally Convertible Debentures ('OCD') amounting to INR 1,008.00 lakhs and INR 968.00 lakhs respectively

on May 11, 2022.

**During the year unsecured loan amounting to INR 1567.00 lakhs to Juniper Green Field Private Limited, converted into
equity shares and Optionally Convertible Debentures ('OCD") amounting to INR 800.00 lakhs and INR 767.00 lakhs

respectively.
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C) Balances Outstanding as at vear end —

I Particulars March 31. 2023 Mareh 31, 2022

| Loan recelvable _

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited - 5.790.00 5.790.00 |
Nisayra Renewable Encrpy Private Limited - 984.20
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 349.00 1.976.00
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 1,065.00 -
Juniper Green Gem Private Limited 39.00 -
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 692.00 | -

| _Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 279.80 -
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited 419.65

| Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 457.90 -

| Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited 124.00 -
Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited 8.50 -
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited 114.00 -

_Jumniper Green India Eight Private Limited 1.50 -
Juniper Green Alplia Three Private Limited 2.50 -
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited 3,00 -
Jumiper Green Gamma One Private Limited 11.50 -
Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited 54.50 -
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited 5.50 -
Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited 1.50 -
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited 794.00 =
Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited 1.50 | -
Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited 1.50 -

| Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited ____ 5.00 -
Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited 3.00 -
Juniper Green Rav One Private Limited 165.00 -

| Juniper Green India Alphi Private Limited 1.50 _ -
Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited 4.00 |
Juniper Green Lizlit Four Private Limited 0.50 =

_Juniper Green India Six Private Limited 0.50 -
Juniper Green Sizma Eiglit Private Limited B 0.50 -
Subscription to OCDs .

| Juniper Green Ficld Private Limited 10.314.00 9.547.00
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 12.614.00 11.646.00
Interest Receivable on Loan N
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited 104.08 -

 Juniper Green Field Private Limited B 18.23 -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 0.58 -
Reimbursement of cipenses receivable o i
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 187.28 -
Reimbursement of Expenses Payvable -

| Juniper Green Field Private Limited 0.80 -

| Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited 124 | -
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited 0.78 | -

_Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 1.05 -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 0.73 -
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited 0.02
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 2428 |
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D) The Company has given Corporate Guarantee against borrowing/bank guarantee facility taken by its subsidiaries, namely
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited, Juniper Green Three Private Limited and Juniper Green Field Private Limited
amounting to INR 38,985.00 lakhs, INR 77,232.00 lakhs, INR 63,154.00 lakhs respectively.

E) Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. has given Corporate Guarantee for borrowing taken by the Company amounting
to INR 12,100.00 lakhs.

39. Commitments and Contingency

{2) Operating Lease
Refer note 41 for lease related commitments

(b) Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed (net off advances) on capital account and not provided is INR
Nil lakhs as on March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: INR 1.18 Lakhs).

(¢) Contingent Liabilities not provided for as at March 31, 2023 are as follows: —-

Particulars March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022
Performance Bank Guarantee issued by hank® [ - 2.100.00
'DSRA Bank Guarantee issued by bank 767.00 | 824.00
Bid Bond Bank Guarantec issued by bank | 1.715.00 330.00
Total — 1 2.482.00 | 3,254.00

*Issued by bank in favor of DISCOM on behalf of Subsidiary companies, For corporate guarantee given for borrowings
teken by its subsidiary company, refer note -38.

40. Employee Beneflt

(a) Defined contribution plan
The Company makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees. The Company's contribution to the Employee Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner.

During the year Company has recognized the following amounts charged to profit and loss:
.I Particolars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
| Employers’ contribution to Employee’s provident and other Fund | 4152 24.40

(b) Defined benefit plan
Gratuity and other post-employment benefits
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service
gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. These benefits
are unfunded and Company provides for lability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valuations.

Risks associated with Gratuity plan provisions
The Company is exposed to number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined

benefit plans and management’s estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:
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Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability,
Interest rate risk
A decrease in interest rate in future years will increase the plen liability.

Life expectancy risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of
plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan liability.

Withdrawals Risk
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent

valuations can impact the plan liability.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement profit and loss
account and the fimded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

Employee benefit expenses recognised in statement of profits and Loss (recognised In employee cost)

Gratuiry
Particular March 31, 2023 March 31 2022
Current service cost - 11.61 8.71
| Interest cost on benefit liability 221 1.17
[ Benefit expense recognized in statement of profit and loss 13.82 9.88
Employee benefit expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
_— _ Gratmlty
~ ‘Particular March31,2023 | March31, 2022
| Actuarial (income|/loss recopsiized in the year i1.36) | 3.96
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other (1.36) 3.96
comprehensive income i "
Balance Sheet:
Gratuity
I Particular - | Maren 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Present value of defined benefit oblization 39.64 | 29.12 |
Total 39.64 29.12 |
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Gratuliy
| Particalar | March31.2023 | Mareh 3L 2022
Present value of obligation as at the beginning 2012 15.46
| Current service cost 11.61 8.71
Interest cost 221 | 1.17
Re-measurement (or Actusrial) (gain ) / loss 1.36) 3.96
Transfer - . (1.93) 10.18)
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 39.65 29.12
Current Lisbility (Short term) : 0.2t 0.13 |
Non-Current Liability (Long term) | 3944 28,99 |
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the Company’s plans are shown

below:

| Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 |
Discount rate 7.53% 7.59%
Attritionrate (peranoum) | B 5.00% 5.00%

| Selary Escalation Rate 10.00% | 10.00%

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on
management’s historical experience.

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair
value of plan assets has not been presented.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as follows:
Particulars B | 31Mareh, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
| &} Impuct of the change in discount rate o
| Present value of oblization at the end of the vear | |
a Impact due to increase of 1% 12.94) i2.19)
b)  |Impact due to decrease of 1% 3.43 2.55
b) Impact of the chanye in salary increase .
Present value of oblization at the end of the ycur -
a Impact due to increase of 1% 1.82 1.10
~_b) | Impact due to decrease of 1% : (1.58) (1.08)
¢) Impact of the change in attrition rate

Present value of ol;liuaﬂon at the end of the year i
a Impact due to increase of 1% i0.51) 0.54)
| B} | Impact due to decrease of 1% 0.53 0.55

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.
Weightage average duration of gratuity plan is 18.12 (March 31, 2022: 18.20).

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

| Particular | March 31,2023 | Mareh 31,2022 |
Within the next 12 months (next anmual reporting period) 0.22 ! 0.15
Between2eand 5 vears - | 15.11 13.73
Between 6 and 10 years 2.31 0.18
Beyond 10 years | 22.01 1506
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41.

Leases:
The Company has lease contracts for leasehold properties used in its operations. These lease contracts generally have lease

terms of 28 years.

The Company has also certain leases with lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company
applies the 'short term lease’ and 'leases of low value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

a) Set out below are the carrying emounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

| Particulars Leaschold Land Building Total
Ba]anceasatApni 1.2021 732.23 | 114 | 73337 |
Adiustment during the year 73.70 | =i} 73.70 |

__i.ggmggmum for the vear 137.35) (1.14) (38.49)
Balance as at March 31. 2022 | 768.58 | =1 768.58
Adjustment during the year* 64.17 - 64.17
Depreciation for the vear — (42.05) - 142.05)

| Balance as at March 31,2023 790.70 - 790.70

* Adjustment on account of interest rate reassessment and revision on decommissioning obligation for leasehold land.

b) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars — March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Balance as at the beginning of the year 627.58 510.46
| Adjustment during the vear* _ 64.17 - |
Accretion of interests 75.73 | 62.69
Payments — —- (31.27} {19.27)
Adjustment during the year - 73.70
Balance as at the end of the vear 736.21 627.58
Current - -
Non-current 736.21 627.58

* Adjustment on account of interest rate reassessment and revision on decommissioning obligation for leasehold land.

The maturity analysis of iease liabilities are disclosed in Note 44,
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.30% - 10.85% with maturity in year 2048.

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the commissioned 30 MW solar project in
Maharashtra, the Company has recognised a provision amounting to INR 336.19 lakhs (Previous year: INR 236.64 lakhs)
for decommissicning obligations associated with projects constructed on leased land. In determining the fair value of the
provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to dismantle and
remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The Company estimates that the costs would be
realised in 25 years' time upon the expiration of PPA’s term. The provision is based upon current cost estimates and has
been determined on a discounted basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of inflation basis on industry
practice. The timing and amount of future expenditures are reviewed annually, together with rate of inflation for escalation
of current cost estimates and the interest rate used in discounting the cash flows. =
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¢) The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

| Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 |
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 42.05 38.49

| Interest expense on lease liabilitics 75.73 62.69
Expenses related to short term leases 18.39 535
Expenses relating to leases of Low value assets |
Total amount recognised in the profit or loss for the vear 136.17 106.53

Total Company's total cash outflow for leases (including for short term and leases of low vaiue assets) for the year ended
March 31, 2023 is INR. 49.66 Lakhs (March 31, 2022; INR 24.62 Lakhs).

Operating Segment:
The Company is having one reportable segment i.e., renewable energy hence disclosure requirement of the standard is not

applicable.

Capital management

Por the purpose of the capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company capital management is to
maximize the sharcholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or ad_]ust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, loans and borrowings,
trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Borrowings 10.551.94 11,098.20
Add: Trade payables 57.37 46.03
| Add: Other current financial liabilities 186.35 221.18
| Less: Cash and cash equivalents (501.21) (418.20)
Net debts (A) 10,294.45 10,947.21
| Sharcholders’ Funds (B) | 76.771.66 76,631.33
Capital and net debt (C=A+B) 87.066.11 87.578.54
_Gearing ratio (%) (D=A/C) ~ 11.82%  12.50%

In order the achieve this overall objective, the capital management of the Company, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that they meet financials convents attached to interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define the capital structure
requirements.
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Fair value and Fair Value hierarchy

a. Fair value
The following table shows the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of Company’s financial assets,

other than those with carrying amount that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrving Value | Fair value

Santiceias " March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ASSETS _
Financial assets measured at amortised '
cost

“Loans ( Non-current assets) . 6.139.00 6.774.20 6.139.00 6.774.20

| Other Non current financial assets | 49.85 49,28 | 49.85 49,28

Financial assets measured at fair value

|

| through profit and loss o i _

| Investment in Mutual fund - Quoted - 101.47 - 101.47 |

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES B
Financial Habilities measured at
amortised cost

_ Borrowings 10.551.94 | 11,098.20 | 10,551.94 | 11,098.20

The management asscssed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other current financial
assets, trade payables other current financial liabilitics except Forwerd Contract Payable, paid approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

The fair value of financials assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchange in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following method and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:

Quoted investment in mutual fund - The fair values of the mutual finds are derived from quoted market prices in active
markets.

Other-The fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined by using discounted cash flow model.

Derlvative Liabilities / Assets- For hedge related effectiveness review and related valuation, details are presented in note

45,

b. Fair Value hierarchy
The judgement and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are (a) recognized at fair

value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair value are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows under the
table.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statement are categorized with in the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level I Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or Liabilities.

Level 2 Vatuation technique for which the lowest level input that significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
Level 3 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in

uncbservable. /{'}:‘_ :El_\"é;
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44

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2023

Quoted

Significant niflcant
Particulars Date of Total prices in o::glemble un:.gb-emble
Valuation active in
puts inputs
L S _ markets o
l (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) |
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed
Loans (" on-current assets) March 31, 2023 6,139.00 - 6.139.00 -
Other Non current financial assets | March 31. 2023 49.85 - 4985 -
| FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ] 1 | I [
Liabilities for which fair values
| are disclosed |
| Borrowings March 31. 2023 | 10.551.94 - 10.551.94 -
parl Date of g'lnc:t:;:l Significant Significant
culars Total observable unobservable
Valuation | active Inputs inputs
| markets
, B {Level 1) (Level2) | (Level 3)
| FINANCIAL ASSETS 1
| Financial assets measured at fair
value throvgh profitand loss | N -
Investment in mumal fund — | norn31,2022 | 10147 101.47 - -
_uoted Sl s—— —
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed
Loans | Non-current assets) March 31. 2022 6.774.20 - 6.774.20
Other Non current financizl assets | March 31, 2022 | 49.28 - 49.28 | =2
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES |
Liabilitles for which fair values
| are disclosed | ‘ ‘
| Borrowings | March 31,2022 | 11,098.20 - 11,098.20 -

Financial risk management objective and policies
The Company principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to support the Company operations. The Company principal financial assets comprise
investments, cash and bank balance, trade and other receivables that derive directly from its operations.
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee
provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. It is the Company’s pelicy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes
may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are

summarized below.

| N
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() Credit risk

Credit rigk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from their operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

The Company assesscs and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets. Low credit risk - Cash and cash equivalents, other
bank balances, investments, loans, trade receivables and other financial assets. Moderate credit risk / High credit risk -
Loens and other financial assets. None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past
due or impaired.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits
with financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies, Investments primarily include
investment in liquid mutual fund units. The loans primarily represent security deposits given for office premises. Such
deposit will be returned to the Company on return of premises as per the contract. The credit risk associated with such
security deposits is rélatively low. Loan to related parties given for business purpose and moderate risk associated.

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance
Sheet:

T

Particulars | March31 2023 | March 31. 2022
- Loans to related parties 10.395.85 8.750.20
- Trade receivables 432.68 424.97

| = Other bank balances 863.96 6.106.26

| - Other financial assets 366.74 101.50 |

The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix
to compute the expected credit loss allowance for irade receivables.

(i) Liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by continucusly monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities for the Company.,
The Company has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for it’s short-term, medium term and

long-term fimding requirement.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial lisbilities at the reporting date. The contractual cash
flow amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

= — ) Contractual cash flows
Carrying Between | :
March 31, 2023 amonnt On Demand t:': t::: one and l\él::e:l::.n | Total
! | ¥ five vears ¥ 1
| Borrowings* 10.551.94] 141956 | 536199 | 11.034.20| 17.815.75
Lease Liability 736.21 | - | 33.16 160.70 2,916.54 3.110.40
| Trade payables 57.37 5737 - | - 5737
Other current financial
 nbiliton ‘ 186.35 comess| -] -] 18635
Total 1153187 | -] 169644 552269 1395074 | 21.169.87
* This includes Interest payable amount. e
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Contractual cash flows
Carrying On Demand Less than Between More Total
March 31, 2022 amount one year one and | than five
. _ five vears vVears
Borrowings* 11,098.20 - 143995 | 549254  12377.63 | 19,310.12
Lease Liability 627.58 - 31.28 | 15237 | 2.663.66 | 2.847.31 |
Trade payables 46.03 - 46.03 - - 46.03
Other current financial 221.18 - 221,18 - - 221.18
liabilities
Total 11,992.99 | - 173844 | 5.644.91 | 15.041.29 | 22.424.64

* This includes Interest payable amount,

(li) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk, Financial instraments affected
by market risk include berrowings and bank deposits.

(a) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. There is no foreign currency exposure as at 31st March, 2023, Hence, the Company's Profit for
the period would have no impact.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s long-term obligation with floating interest rate

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the bank overdraft and borrowings carrying floating / variable rate
of interest. This obligation exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing
to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Borrowings — from financial institution N 10,551.94 | 11.098.20
Total 10,551.94 | 11,098.20 |

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reascnably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Statement of Profit and Loss
Increase by 0.50 % | Decrease by 0.50 %
Increase/ (decrease) in interest on Borrowings and Loan repayable on demand

Particulars

For the ycar ended 31 March 2023 = 54.95 (54.95)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 4223 | 142.23)
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(c) Price Risk
The Company’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVTPL. To manage the price risk
arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets.

Price risk exposure:

Particular | March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit & Loss N
Investment in Mutuel fund | - 101.47 |

Sensitivity analysis
Profit or loss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower prices of instruments on the Company’s profit for the year;

Particulars = March 31. 2023 | March 31, 2022 |
Increase by 5% = 5.07 |
Decrease by 5% - | i5.07) |

45. Cash flow hedges

A. Risk management strategy
The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk. The risk being hedged is
the risk of potential gain/loss due to fluctuation in foreign currency rates. The use of forward contracts is covered by
the Company’s overall strategy. The Company does not use forward for speculative purposes. As per the strategy of
the Company, import of capital goods shall be covered by hedge, considering the risks associated with the hedging of
such capital goods, which effectively fixes the liability of such imports and mitigates or eliminate the financial and
market risks in India (the place of business of the Company).

Hedge ratio is the relationship between the quantity of the hedging instrument and the quantity of the hedged item. In
the given case, total payment expected for import of modules are hedged under the forward contracts with the
approximately equivalent amount and at the same dates. Hence hedge is considered highly effective on the basis of
effectiveness test of purchase of capital assets and corresponding forward contact taken for final payment.

B. Other hedge related disclosures

There have been no transactions during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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46. Scheme of arrangement (“The Scheme”):

The Hen’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Delhi Bench vide its Order dated 8 September 2022, has
approved the Scheme of Arrangement involving merger of wholly-owned subsidiary company, namely Juniper Green
India Private Limited (“Transferor Company™) with Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (“Transferee Company™)
pursuant to Section 230-232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made
thereunder with the appointed date as 1 April 2021. The Transferee Company shall account for the merger in accordance
with the pooling of interests method as laid down by Appendix C of Ind AS 103 (Business Combination of Entities under
common control) notified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companijes (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, as amended and other generally accepted
accounting principles in India, as the case may be.

Pursuant to the coming into effect of the above Scheme, the financial information in the financial statements of the
Company has been restated (in respect of prior periods from 1 April 2021) and merged accounts of the Company (Juniper
Green India Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) with Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (“Transferee
Company ")) have been prepared. Accordingly, the previous year figures (FY 2021-22) have been restated with this effect.

The Transferor Company is wholly-owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company who are engaged in the business which
inter-alia includes setting up, operating, maintaining, generation, supply and sale of power in the field of renewable energy
in terms of their respective Memorandum of Association.

Pursuant to the Scheme:

*  The Transferee Company has recorded the assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company vested in it pursuant to
this Scheme, at their respective carrying amounts as appearing in the books of the Transferor Company.

*  No adjustments was made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.

» The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor was aggregated with the
corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee.

»  The identity of the reserves has been preserved and shown in the financial statements of the Company in the same
form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the transferor Company. As a result, reserves which are
available for distribution as dividend before the business combination would also be available for distribution as
dividend after the business combination. The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued
plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor
has been transferred to capital reserve and presented separately from other capital reserves with disclosure of its
nature and purpose in the notes.

¢  Value of the investments in share of the Transferor Company in the books of the Transferee Company stand cancelled.

*  There was no differences in accounting policy between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

Juniper Green India Private Limited |

Farticulars (as on 01-April-2020)

| Assets taken over (A) |

| Non current tax assets 1.31
Other non current assets | 47.50

| Cash and cash cquivalents | 8.58

| Bank balances other than (i) above 170.00
Other current financial assets 10,42 |
_Total Assets (A) 237.81
Liabflities taken over (A) [ |
Trade pavables 0.45 |
Liebilities for current tax |net) 1.78 |
Other current liabilities | 0.07

| Total Liabilities (i) 230

| Reserves of the Transferor compuny () 1343
Equilty share capital of the Transferor company (D) 11,27

. Securities Premium of the Transferor company (E} 210.79

236.76 |
1.27
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

47. Ratlo snalysis

S—— . , : e——
Ratlo Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-22 | % Change R"'ol n::r
Current Ratio Current Assets | Current Liabilities 753 | 1038 (27.46%) D”“,:’:ss e
Debt- Equity Ratio | (0. Debt Bgm;;"d Shareholder’s Bquity 0.14 0.14 (5.10%)
' Earnings for debt service = | Debt service = Total |
Debt Service Net profit after tax + | Finance cost (excluding )
Cov rafio Deferred tax + Finance cost | non-cash expenses) + 1.26 1.81 (30.62%) | Decreasein profits
crage + Depreciation and = Due Instalments as per
Amortisation Debt wrrunzements _ |
mowam on BAUIY | Net Profits ater taxes f:m‘;"f e Shereholder’s | 1gq, 169% | (8923%) | Decreaseinprofits
:;:n tory Tumover Cost of goods sold Average Inventory Not Applicable
Trade Receivable | Total Reveaue  from | Aversge Trade 573 5.66 1.40%
Tumover Ratio Contract with customers Receivable ) ) !
Trade Payable Increase in other .
Turnover Ratio Total other expenses Average Trade Payables 7.99 | 5.66 41.19% expenses
, Working capital = | .
N gl Total  Reveme = 80M | corent sssets - Current | 044 0.30 4g4sy | Decrease in
labilities
Net Profit ratio Net Profit afier taxes Eg:‘nﬁoﬁ:"m“ from | 675 | 3675% | (8558%) | Desreaseinprofis
. . Capital Employed = | !
... | Bamnings before interest, P P
m S P | finance cost and taxes | Tonoiie Nt Worlh t| g g 247% | (3647%) | Decreaseinprofits
| (EBIT) liabilii |
' | Finance Income (interest | Investment  (average ‘
Return on | income from fixed deposit | investment in Fixed
Investment and income from mutual | Deposits and Mutual 4.94% 6.38% (22.70%)

fund)

Fund)




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

48. Authorisation of financial statements for issue

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of
the Directors on September 22, 2023.

As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

ICA! Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005

57 G

Naresh Mansukhani Parag Agrawal
P Director Director
~~ Membership No.: 502243 DIN 06990480 DIN 02463717
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: September 22, 2023

Cal

Prashant Pandia

Company Secretary
M. No. - F12077
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
To the Members of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Juniiper Green Energy Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred as “the Group™)
comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information
of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31,
2023, their consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. ——
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financia! position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the relatadhei
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modi .
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In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March
31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors
of the Group’s companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company,
its subsidiaries in India for the year ended March 31, 2023;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors
on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries as noted in the

‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its consolidated financial
position;

ii.  Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts;

jii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, incorporated in India during the year
ended March 31, 2023,

iv. a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented
to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not andit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 29 subsidiaries whose
financial statements include total assets of Rs 12,375.57 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023, and total revenues of Rs Nil
and net cash inflows of Rs 281.38 Lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statement and other
financial information have been audited by other auditors, whose financial statements, other financial information
and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our
report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is
based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done
and the reports of the other anditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified by the

Management.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary
companies incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries as noted in the ‘other
matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpy-es of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;
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b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of their

knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or
any of such subsidiaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries, which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries
companies, incorporated in India.

vi} As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

_ Al

oot
—_
per Aja. L«mal
Pague
Membership Number: 502243

UDIN: 23502243BGT1Y]342!
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 22, 2023
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ANNEXURE 1 REFFERED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT ON EVEN DATE

Re: Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (‘the Company”)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by' us for the
holding Company, subsidiaries and by other auditors of its subsidiaries incorporated in India included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we state that:

(xxi) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding

Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

hvfembership Number; 502243
UDIN: 23502243BGTIYI3421
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 22, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company*) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financia! statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards
on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both, issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide regfraRy ggurance regarding
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prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Membership Number: 502243
UDIN; 23502243BGTIYJ3421
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 22, 2023



JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Conrolidated Balance §Imt an at March 31, 2023
mllmm:numedm ¥ lakhs. unless otherwise siutcd)

Anat Asat
e i Sutes Mareh 31, 2113 Muarch 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propexty, plent and equipment 3 2,67,402.29 1,89,457.93
Capital Work-in-Progress 3 1,879.07 65,916.54
Right-of-use assets 3 22,917.90 13,003.12
Intangible assets 4 25.85 2645
Intangible assets under development 4 - 0.59
Financiel assets
Other non-current financisl assets 5 1,824.23 187.81
Trade receivables 10 3124 -
Deferred tax assets (nef) 6 730.44 -
Non current tax assets (net) 7 432,18 25830
Other non current assets 8 62.13 31429
Sub total (A) 2,95.30833 2,69,165.03
Current assets
Financial assets
Invesiments 9 1,960.10 251.69
Trede receivables 10 4,994 80 2,304.13
Cash and cash equivalents 11 4,754.86 3,426.03
Other bank balances 12 13,254.16 29,876.86
Security Deposit 13 137.45 17747
Other cumrent financial assets 14 154.60 245,94
Other current asscts 15 640.05 1.636.69
Sub total (B) 15 896.02 3741881
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 32120135 3.07,083.84
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 1,380.72 1,380.72
Other equity 17 76.916.93 7781323
Total Equity (C} TRI97.65 79.193.95
Non-current Habllties
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6 2,362.26 1,384.00
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 41 19,273.15 10,513.46
Borrowings 19 2,01,013.85 98,541.07
Provisions 18 954.45 43031
Sub total (D) 03.71 1,10,
Current llabllities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 12,323.96 71,517.55
Lease liabilities 41 453.50 93.81
Trade payables 21
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 148.62 43.90
Total outstending dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 552.05 27946
Other current financial Habilities n 5,369.58 44,425,717
Other current labilities 23 25327 507.21
Provisions 24 195.91 141.48
Linbilities for current tax (net) 25 310 11.78
Sub totat (E) 19,299.99 1,17,020.96
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (C+D+E)
2

Basls of preparation and summary of significant accounting policles
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP

Wicubership No. 502243
Place: Gurugram
Date; September 22, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
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D]N' 06990480

X5
Pruhl.nt Pmdll

M. No.: F12077
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JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Losa for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars NOF  Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 26 33,130.68 17,052.98
Other income 27 3117.8% 1,863.93
Total income 34.248.57 15,916.91
Expenses
Etnployee benefits expense 28 2,909.87 814.03
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 11,005.80 4,388.75
Finance cost a0 19,838.59 8,403.13
Other expenses 31 3.510,03 1.604.06
Total expenses 37.264.29 15,109.97
Profit/(loss) before tax (1.015,72) 3,706.94
Tax expense 32
Current tax expense 5.18 172.59
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 1.21 32.75
Deferred tax charge 183.69 778.59
Total tax expense 190.08 983.93
Net profit/(loss) for the year (A) 1,205.80 723.01
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods ;

Re-measurement (loss) on defined benefit plans (16.78) (2.61)

Tax impact 2,93 0.66
Items that will be reclassified to profit.or loss in subsequent periods ;

Recognition of gains/(losses) in fair value of hedping instrument (net) 390.32 297221

Tax impact 166.97) 1585.551
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax (B) 309.50 2384.71
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax (A+B) 5896.32! 207.12
Net profit atiributable to:

Equity Holders of the Parent (1,205.80) 2,723,01

Non-Controlling interests -
Other comprehensive Income attributable to:

Equity Holders of the Parent 309.50 2,384.71

Non-Controlling interests - -
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity Holders of the Parent (896.30) 5,107.72

Non-Controlling intenests - .
Earningy/(loss) per equity share: [Nominal value of share : € 10 (March 31, 2022 33
1 T 10)]
(1) Basic (%) {8.73) 24.13
(2) Diluted (%) (8.73) 24.13
Basls of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 3010 00005
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Company Secretary
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JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
1 All amounts are stated in € Ik iix unless otherwise stmed|

For the year ended For the year ended

= Marein 3, KN March 31, 2M2Y
A Operating uctiviiies

Profit before tax (1,015.72) 3,706.94
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net eash fows
Depreciation and amertization expense 11,005.80 4,388.75
Interest income (2,336.99) {1.113.85)
Profit on disposal of Property, plant and aquipment - (22.08)
Profit on sale of mutual fund (86.50) (50.52)
Gain on fair vahmtion of fingneial instruments through profit & loss {8.75) (1.19)
Forelgn exchange gain (nef) 159 347
Finance costs 18,855.37 753434
Intereet exponses on Jease Habilities 922.54 446,31
Iterest expenses on decommissioning liabilities 60.68 248

2739192 15269.68

‘Working capital adjustments:

(Increase) in trade receivable (2.721.81) (84.18)
(ncreass) in other financial assets (273.31) (22407

{(Increase)/Decreass in other curment assets 996.64 (957.58)

Increass in provigions 124,16 112.64
ncrease in trade paysble 377.31 42,37
Increnss{Decrease) in other current liabilitiey 2IL120 325.19

25,679.69 14.484.05

Income tax paid {pet of refimd) _(188.95) {312.42)

Net cash flow from opersting activities (A) 25.490.74 14,171.63

B Isvesting activities

Purchase of property plant and equipment including capital work in progress {61,480.65) (1,22411,11)

Purchese of intangible azsets (15.89) (11.73)

Interest received 2,35497 1,031.02

Proceeds/(investment} of mutual find (net) {1,613.06) 308.15

(lnvestment} in bank deposits (net) 15,420.75 {23,693.06)

Net cash flow (used in) Investing activities (8) (45,333.38) (1,44,776.73)

C Financing sctivitie

Proceeds from {ssue of equity shares 45,420.56

Proceeds/(repayment) of Buyers credit {net) {64,257.35) 21,882 45

Proceeds from loen from finsncial institution 1,36,835.92 76,208.46

Repaymeot of loan from financial institntion (30,183.86) (3211.84)

Chango in ROU and lease liabilities {2,781.79) (2,046.71)

Finance cost ( including other incidental cost) (18,440.95) {6,381.80)

Net cash flow from financing activities [[w] 21.171.97 1ALATLIS

Net Inerense/{decrensc) In cash and cash equivalents (A+BHC) 1,338.83 1,266.03

Cuash and cash equivalents st the boglening of the year 3,436.03 2,160.00

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 413488 243603

*Compouents of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11)

Cash oa hand 0.85 0.82

Balances with schodule hanig:

-~ On current accounts 1,366.78 2,65545
- DD in bhand 7633 66,40
- Deposits with crigioal maturity for less than 3 months 310w 703,36

Total cash and cash equivalents L1456 343603

Notes:

Ther# are 1o nont cash movements in financing & investing activities sxcept those disclosed above and note 12.

Basls of preparation and samntary of slgnificant accounting policies (refer note 2)
The accompanying notes are an lategral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per owr report of even date
For $.R. Batllbol & Co. LLP For and on behwlf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Acoountimis Juniper Green Evergy Privale Limbted

CalR s

Naresh Mansukbanl  Parag Agrawal

Director Director
LTI 1T TR H DIN: 06950480 DIN: (02463717
Flace:

Firm Regi No.: 30?0@
=T
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Prashant Pandia

Company Secretery
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JUNIFER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Contolidated Statement of change in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

tAll amounts ere stated in ¥ |aihs. unless otherwise stated )

(a) Equity Share Caplinl
| Particulars Number T in Inkhs

Balance at April 1, 2021 56,53,013 56530
Issue of equity share capital during the year 81,52,230 815.22
Cless B Equity Shares issued during the year 2,000 0.20
Balance at March 31, 2022 1,38,07,243 1,380.72
Issue of «uii share capital durinp the vear -

Balance at March 31. 2023 130.07.243 1302
(b) Other equity

Equity attributable to owners of Holdiny Company
Reserves and Surplus Cash flow hedge
Particulars
Securities Capital Retained '“";x()"“ Total (4)
frrem jum reserve eArnings

Balance at April 01, 2021 28,534.74 (1.27) 2270.17 (2,703.27) 28,100.37
et profit for the year - - 2,723.01 - 2,723.01
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - (1.95) - (1.95)
On shares issued during the year 44,605.14 - ) - - 44,605.14
Hesdyring reserve, net of tax (refer note - 17) - - - 2.386.66 2,186.66
(Balance at March 31. 2022 71,139.88 (LIT]  1.991.23 (116.61) T1313.23
Net profit for the year - - (1,205.80) - (1,205.80)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - (13.85) - (13.85)
Hedping reserve, net of tax (1efcr note - 17) - - - 323.35 323.35
Balance at March 31, 2023 73,139.88 (L2T) 1.771.58 6.74 76.916.93

Basls of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statementy

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlibot & Co. LLP
Chariered Accountants

Firm Regisisution No.: 30%0005

Date: September 22, 2023

For and on behaslf of the Board of Directors of

Juniper Green Energy Privats Limited

& Fon

Namh Tansukhani

DlN 06930480

Parag Aguwnl
DIN 02463717
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Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) B

ll

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (“the Company” or “the Holding Company™), & private limited Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively refer to as “Group”) is engaged in the business of setting up, operating, generation, supply and
sale of power in the field of renewable energy. The Company is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company is subsidiary of Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte Ltd. The
registered office of the Company is located at F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza 1, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector 10, Dwarka, New
Delhi-110075.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of setting up, operating, maintaining, generation, supply and sale of
power in the field of renewable energy. The Group has commissioned (a) 100 MW and 150 MW Solar Power Project in
the state of Maharashtra and electricity generated from it is sold to Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company
Limited, (b) 120 MW and 190MW Solar Power Project in the state of Gujarat (“Projects”) and electricity generated from
it is sold to Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized and approved by the Board of
Directors on dated September 22, 2023,

Banis of Preparation and Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements (‘financial statements’) of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS’) as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read
with the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division
IT of Schedule ITI to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule ITT), as applicable to the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets and financial liabilities which
have been measured at fair value or revalued amount as explained in relevant accounting policies.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Rupees in lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Group as at 31 March 2023. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those retuns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the
Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when
the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including;

o  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
¢ Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
e  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights ,EE’VH
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Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

e  The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other
voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses contro] of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the
Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of
the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March, When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that
of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as
the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless
it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity
of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

(¢) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets,
such as fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
climination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
‘When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries and associates to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary and associates, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
Derecognises the cumuiative translation differences recorded in equity
Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in QOCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as
appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

Non- controlling interest, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of subsidiary’s statement of profit and loss and
net assets that is not held by the Group. Statement of profit and loss balance (including other comprehensive income
(*OCI")) is attributed to the equity holders of holding Company and to the non- controlling interest basis the respective
ownership interests and such balance is attributed even if this result in controlling interests having a deficit balance.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Group treats transactions with Non - controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the group. Such a change in ownership interest result in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non- controlling interest to reflect their relative interest in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised with in equity.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Investments in Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence, Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine control
over the subsidiaries,

The Group’s investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change in OCI
of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCL In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to
the extent of the interest in the associate.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes any long term
interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the entity discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

If the associate subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of
the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on
its investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired, If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share
of profit of an associate’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss,

b) Business Combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combination for the business which are not under
common control. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the accquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date
fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they
are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is not probable. However, the following assets end liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis
indicated below:

e Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

o Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share — hased
payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

o Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

s Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related
contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and linbilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and Liabilities assumed. The
goodwill is tested for impairment at each reporting date in accordance with Ind AS 36.

Business Combination under common control

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control have been accounted for using the pooling
of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amount. No
Adjustments have been made to reflect fair value, or to recognise any new assets or liabilities,

The balance of retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of transferor is aggregated with the corresponding
balance appearing in the financial statements of transferee.

The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form
of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital shall be transferred.

c¢) Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
menagement's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adfustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods,

d) Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

e  Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

¢  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Ezxpected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o  Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liebility for at least twelve months

after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current. g
___z“".-' ., -“..
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Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A liability is treated as current when it is:

o  Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tex assets/lisbilities are classified as non-current
assets/liabilities.

The operating cycie is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization/settlement in cash and
cash equivalents, The Group have identified twelve months as their operating cycle for classification of their current assets
e) Changes in accounting policies pursuant to amendments in Ind AS which have been issued but not yet effective:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated
31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.

The Group is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended
requirements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is anmual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.
f) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer,

-  Sale of Power: The Group’s revenue from sale of electricity generally includes one performance obligation. The
revenue from supply of power is recognized at point in time when electricity is transferred to the customer i.e. on the
supply of units generated from the plant to the grid. The revenue is recognized at the agreed tariff rate as per the terms
of the Power Purchase Agreements ("PPA") entered into with the customer.
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Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) -

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other incentives,
if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts collected form
customets.

Revenue from operations on account of change in law events in terms of PPA’s with customers is accounted for based
on the orders/ reports of respective regulatory authorities and management best estimates wherever required.

Sale of Verified Emission Reductions (VER): Revenue from sale of VER is recognised when following conditions
have been satisfied:

i. The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the VER have been passed on to the buyer;

ii. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

iii. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale of VER will flow to the entity; and
iv. The cost incurred or to be incurred in respect to sale of VER can be measured reliably.

Contract Assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade Recelvable: A receivable represents the group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

g) Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, and subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment other than
frechold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, berrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly atiributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
of property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Group and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised. The
cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as and when
incurred,

Capital work-in-progress/ Assets under construction

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development and is stated at
cost, net of accummlated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/
construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives
|as set-out below) prescribed in Schedule IT to the Act:

Useful life

Assets category {in years)

Plant and Equipment * ' o 25

Office equipment | 5 .
| Vehicles T8 |

Furniture and fixtures B 10
| Computers - o 3
| Lease hold improvements B | Over the period of lease term




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) il

* The useful life of plant & equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Group, based on technical assessment made by internal expert, has estimated the useful life of
solar power project as 25 years and believes that it reflects fair approximation of the period over which the asset will
generate economic benefit and is likely to be used.

The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the
principal asset. The assets residual values and usefil lives are reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there are
indicators for impairment and adjusted prospectively.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the income statement when the asset is derecognized. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h) Imtangibie Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in
statement of Profit & loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as chenges in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss uniess such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset. The software’s are amortised over a period of three years,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually fo determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognized.
i} Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets,

i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
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estimated useful lives of the assets are follows:

*  Leasehold Land 3 years to 29 years and 11 months
*  Office Building on lease based on the life leaschold agreement

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also

subject to impairment,
ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease

term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

In additicn, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine

such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset,

iif) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of certain plant & machinery, vehicle
etc. (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-velue assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognized as expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

J) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of that asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the
asset for its intended use cr sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs
are capitalized until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur. Botrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection
with the arrangement of borrowings, other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing cost.

k) Financial Instruments

A finencial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the

asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e  Debt instruments at amortized cost
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» Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss (FVTPL)

s  Equity instruments, measured at fair vatue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
category applies to the Group’s trade receivables, unbilled revenue, other bank balances, security deposits etc.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business mode! is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals in the statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method,

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTQCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria,
as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so0 reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch*).

Debt instrument inclzded within FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

a) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and Either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrengement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
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continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL, For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment.
However, the Group may transfer the cummlative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

a) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or bas assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and Either (a) the Group has transferred substentially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the criginal
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of

impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

o Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances

o Financial asset that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI
Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
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For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on
a twelve month ECL. '

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument, The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument

o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.
The balance sheet presentation for financial instruments is described below:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance i.e. as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria,
the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instraments on the basis of shared
credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Non derivative financial liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair vaiue through profit or loss. Financial ligbilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI, These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains end losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecognition

A financial linbility is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of profit or loss.

Derivative fingneial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge
item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability

For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Group has classified its hedges into cash flow hedge i.e. hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment, At the inception of
a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to
apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge,

The documentation inchudes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged,
and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the
analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for
hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectivencss requirements:

* There is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

* The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relationship.

* The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the
Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of
hedged item.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Cash Flow Hedges: The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OC] in the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss,
The effective pertion of cash flow hedges is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.
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The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast transactions. The
ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in statement of profit & loss. The Group designates
only the spot ¢lement of a forward contract as a hedging instrument. The changes in fair value of the forward element of
the derivative are recognized in other comprehensive income and are accumnulated in ‘Cash Flow Hedge Reserve’.

The difference between forward and spot element at the date of designation of the hedging instrument is amortised over
the period of the hedge. Hence, in each reporting period, the amortisation amount shall be reclassified from the separate
component of equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. The accumulated balance in cash flow hedge reserve
is transferred to property, plant and equipment on settlement. However, if hedge accounting is discontinued for the hedging
relationship that includes the changes in forward element of the hedging instrument, the net amount (i.e. including
cumulative amortisation) that has been accumulated in the separate component of equity shall be immediately reclassified
into statement of profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Reclassification of Financial instruments

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition, After initial recognition, no
reclassifications are made for financial assets and financial liabilities,

Offsetting of Financial Instryments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforcenble legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

) Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR or ¥) which is also the functional and reporting currency of
the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional cutrency using the
closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from
those at which they wers initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they
arise,

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

m) Taxes

Current Income taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to sitnations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

¢  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss. .

o Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any

unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

®  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxaeble profit will be evailable against which the temporary differences can
be utilised

The catrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probeble that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date

Deferred tex relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity

n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme
as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the coatribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The costs of providing benefits under the scheme
are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each vear-end using the projected unit credit method. The actnarial
valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit linbility and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OC] in the period in which they occur, Remesasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.
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Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of
o The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
o  The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognizes

the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

s Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

» Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the acinarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Group presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to
the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where
Group has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

0) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period aftributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the period. Partly
paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period, The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

p) Provisions

General

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Decommissioning liability

The Group records a provision for decommissioning costs of its solar power plants, Decommissioning costs are provided
at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the
cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit
and loss as a finence cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of
the asset.

-
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(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated) i

q) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its

recoverable amount,

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit & loss, except for assets that are previously revalued where
the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is aiso recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase,

r) Contingent Assets/liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no
longer a contingent asset, and is recognized as an asset,

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements,

s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management.

t)  Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments such as derivates at Fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price

that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

e  In the principal market for the asset or liability

e  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobserveble inputs.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobserveble.

At each reporting date, the management of the Group analysis the movements in the values of the assets and liabilities
which are required to be measured or reassessed as per the accounting policies of the Group.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above, This
note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

u) Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date

Impact of events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide additional information materially effecting the
determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date are adjnsted to respective assets and
liabilities. The Group does not adjust the amount recognized in its financial statements to reflect non-adjusting events after
the reporting period. The Group make disclosures in the financial statement in case of significant events.

v) Non-current assets held for sale/ distribution to owners and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets as held for sale/ distribution to owners if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale/ distribution rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale/
distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale/ distribution will be made or that the
decision to sell/ distribute will be withdrawn. Management must be committed te the sale/ distribution expected within
one year from the date of classification

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the
exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale/ distribution classification is regarded met only when
the assets or disposal group is available for immediate sale/ distribution in its present condition, subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales/ distribution of such assets (or disposal groups), its sale/ distribution is highly probable;
and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Group treats sale/ distribution of the asset or disposal group to be highly
probable when:

The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),

An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to
its current fair value,

The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification, and

vy vvvw

Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that
the plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale/for distribution to owners and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and the fair value less costs to sell/ distribute. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale/ distribution are
presented separately in the balance sheet. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for
sale/ distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortized.

w) Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial
Statements.




“dnoun) p yo Suren o) o pRY
E%?En.gagﬁﬂﬂ_uauoga=..iﬁuﬁﬁﬁaﬁga!nuuﬁgnuaEﬂo»ﬂﬂiEﬁeaﬂagsﬁsﬁfgoﬂ:ﬁ

L,
€GN T O0LL £SSTL 866L1 L6 R Ir6Es T 6018 TT0Z “TE PN IV
G T LTT  SL6T TLSHI 08°esT 906 0T8I 50 L PEILT 980§ €702 “IE WV IV
2019 19N
OCITVLE wrotL sy 88 0EEL 66157 L1 - LOGrL $T0T “IE PO IV
¥L'0 - - = - (7K - smumsafpy smesodvicy
1§SZ¥01 LO'E €512 8I'9Z 9E'8Z 90°Z0E01 - (327 1 o 3og aitveny
£6961L L “99T 537] L LEUSE - 9LVOL T20T 1€ WIS IV
8599 - - - S 8590 = - nesmmsfpy sesodsyy
68°0EIY €T EVLI 91'97 901z L9810 - STSY Teak o) o afre)
9LEI'E c0's £T6 LE9E 89'ET 85°866'C - 16°68 1287 ‘1 pdy 3% 58 Smwady
uonespLIwy /mopepeadag
G6ETISET  GLOF 06°€61 (7.3 [T] TOFEr iR T 6EIL €656 €302 “TE 'PISI IV
1I'sz - - - 11'8T - - sysunsnfpy pesodaiy
PTLEERR 781 1Ly 01'9Z 9Z'680°38 LTFLI 80705 STOTIPPY
UNFEYR T LEVE [I57]1 1502 9°LET O TLE O L TFors T STC8I TTOT “TE IS 3V
TLOLT = - - TL'OLT - - aesonenfpy eresodsiq
YTT16'36 - 1591 09's ITEL PLOOS'LG 8E€°586 6L70F SIORIPPY
YEELSLG LEPT 89°SET 16'9€T o ¥RZFL96 PSS 90°SST 1Z0T ‘1 13V ¢ sv Supmadg
3o ss01)

MLy Juamamosdary momdby Kroupeem (s233% Suypagouy)
(V) pmampumg TTPA PIOH 258 VWO pus juwLy i umadurey e

iyl pa uEd Aesnloag (1) g

TPITENE SETAISIPO SSOUM +1| | 2 W PVRE A% ELLOWN [TV |
€707 1€ WU popma xad 9] 20) SN [FPURNY PATPIONCD 0f SHHON
QILIAYT ILVATEd XOWINT NTTHD AAIANAT



i e T T irase 5oL

= papmdens Auesodms Rpoolorg

$SO16'59 - 0'€LT (3 ) seadond wy spoforg
0L E= T A0 RIEAL §-F 71 T unip 3]

0 (LI 10) JTAMD U] IOy SB[

0T IS IE W oY

TR . FoLs T ] 0L,

- - - papuadsns Aqurodm spalug

LO'6LE"T 0T £0'058°1 sgndosd uy apaforg
o, £ UBIp 0Ty A €T IEAL = AW T TN s

10 pij il ® 30] JYAMD U IRy sIemopmg

20 PR I 19 5V

-amypuadys [udes pyo

Pue LBupporm puk juejd §0 UORONNSI0S LA GORISULOD U PRImY (S| 45’ [EL] & TTOT 1€ YN ) ST SB'ZLYT & 87 €207 ‘1€ YR PP e a1 Supmp postjundin 1800 Supmolieg Jo umoum sy (9
Yosusdzabe pue jeid ‘Asadand yo sonsmboe sof yeuUIIS ERYRIN0D Jo amsopSIp 1) (q)6E BON R U0N¥BNQo [nenm0G @

“dnazg 3 Jo sBupman0q 1y Kpmoss se padpord /podupow yusmdmba pur juwd ‘Aedoly o BoRELIOYYY 10y 61 HON ZYSH (¢

el gD
[T o (1] FICTTR] OTLLI N PE0in LT o]
- WILSTI (WTLET) - T E
BE6OT 198 SCEED 8LLiE 95°€65 iU - B0
POLES - [ LN YTRPST [N (EPBOD S| MLt T[T | J900 BHHE—
08Z¢1 - 6LT8 ¥E 081 STSS 113 GOTEZTI00NE PUR G0N+ |aiio(]
16'v¢ = TI'0LT 8501 SO°'S80'1 4on L] JPERG Aanoding
OULLE - EESIT L ELETI ¥I 0L'89E8 1500 UOIMISTGO JUT] JO SOUB[eg
L6 - 08'¥L9 STYEE SE'BIS IR Janig) IS ¥ pUB]
= = OFLis . 79'658 SLLELT W00 J0paAD]
YOOI bE FEOCOT 0Tl &5 3800 AT
.F_.u_-_-—ﬂlz
£707 ‘1€ WPIwW ...\n_!xr_nﬁ..._.i pere yureg suogippy 20T 1€ DK oy
o) posepdey

| PiTs SSIMIDGIO SSUM 54 HE| 3 U] PAJE)S Ak SJUNGIIE [TV |
€202 “TE YIBI Popes Jvak ) 20) SYENDANGS [ERERT]Y PIEPHOSEDD 0 SNON
GILIATT ALVATMA XOWIANA NAXAED WAJINNE



SVoT S¥9z TTOL 1§ PN IV

=314 [~ 73 €207 “I£ TS IV

R0 BN

GB6E 68°6E £70T “IE IS IV

80°L1 80°L1 Teak o) 303 SAET)

1872 [T374 TT0T 1€ PNV

[ 05's1 1L g 10y S

1€L £ TZ0T ‘T 124V 3% 5% Humadp

TOVSNIOWY /oy)kpasdaq

(75 ri's9 £T0T “T€ WPIB IV

8¥91 8¥91 SUONIpPY

9T6r 9ToF TTOL 'I€ \PIEW IV

IS9E IS9E SUONIPPY

69Tl 69°TI 1202 ‘7 (dy 1% ¢ Sunmdg

3}207q $%027)

=1L SIRAY0Y SINpIEg

ERERY jidaniu] p

“AMSO[ISIP 30J [ SJON K 1512998 26T-J0-1Eny

06 LINTT (Y3 YL €707 1€ AR I8 58 R |
85°€TT - 8¢°EC1 11 S T JEaunen]py
(W epLl LT H P9ZI. ) i) g 30 iojiminaidagy
9L eS0T - IR eal oa Wik swomyppry
ULl 86'BL VIO LT TTOT | € PINI I8 o8 S3uiing
[ 7] - (R &) 1l O FUL Ay
11968} 16L7€ET |1Z8°SSE! T0a% oHp 30f Lufinoandog
PG L = Y098 L 117, A TUL1 | EoOmppY
STFIs 5 LLTNT 'Tur's TZ0Z "1 110y ¥ o i)
TGoL ETI] PUF] PO LRIy |

SEIRRSE Wt TS (i

11t SSTAAINIO SSYUD 11{1"| 3 U1 PAJEIS 21X SYUDOUIE [Ty |

€207 *T€ LRINIY PP 1eak ) JOj S)UNDIIRIE MSEEUL PIIEPROSEND 0] SA0N

TALTATT ALVAR AOWANT NTTED SAJINOE



:

AL | W 8]

650 [l

650 hemndopaap ._u_!ﬂuﬂkuomm

€207 “T€ eI

TT0T ‘1€ PR SIR[IILIeY

LANVL) juamdojasap ropun sassy aqSoey () p

TPATHE OSJIIP0 SES[U 51/77| 3 UY PITess AlF SJGHOWE 1]
£207 1€ (4R POPS2 IW34 3T 20} HTUIMINUYS [SPUST PAFPIOSICS 0) SN0
TELINTT LLVAIH ADWINT NTXE SLINNT



JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY FRIVATE LIMITED
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Akl umpuns are stated in € ok, unless ciiere e ssai)

8, Other non-current financial nssets

- Fixed Deposits*

~ Fixed Deposits (with original maturity for mere than 12 months)
Interest acorued on fixad deposdts

Security deposit

Total

“Lien mariced with bank In favonr of lender’s.

6. {T) Defarved tax ansets (uet)

() Components of Deferred tax asset / (Lability) (net)
Defferred tax assety arising om acconnt of

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

1098 10.00
1,201.38 041
10.09 .
601.78 17740
1540 AS181.

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Provision for employes benefits 1252 -
Lease linbility 102727 -
Decommissioning lisbility 63.45 -
Prepayment of land lease 198.52 -
Unsbsorbed deprecistion 13,871.86 -
Derlvative lishility snd Restatement of capltal arecitons 60.98 -
Gross deferred tax asset (A) 1523460 =
Deferred tax Hability errising on aceount of
Depreciation and smortisation on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 12,962.65 -
Cash flow hedigs reserve 1% -
Right to use assaty 1,388.40
EIR adjustmant of bocrowings 151.52
Pair value of ittvastwiemt and finsacis] instruments at amortised cost 0.20
Gross deferred tax Hability (B) 14511416
Net Deferred tax nsets Total RN
S, () Deferred tax liabilty (met)
Deferred tax Hability arising on seconnt of
Depreciation and amartisation on property, plant and equipment and intengible assets B,862.50 9,548.06
Right to use assets 1,405.98 2,254.90
EIR adjustment of borrowings 10937 172,15
Fair value of investment and finanelal ingiruments at amortised cost 191 030
Groas deferred tax Hability (A) 10,380.26 1197541
Daferred tax agets arrising on account of
Provision for amployes benefits 29.58 20.19
Leaso liahility 1,251.86 1,794.67
Decomminsioning liability 84.95 64.91
Expenses to be allowed in subsequent years 2.05 6.92
Propsyment of land lease 43.38 12243
Unabsorbed depreciation 6,599.18 B,446.06
Cash flow hedge reserve - 65.58
Dexivative lisbility and Restatement of capital creditors - 70.56
Gross deferred tax asset (B) 8,018.00 10,591.32
Net deferred tax liabifity Total m m.
(b) Reconcillation of deferred tax assets / (ability) : Mareh 31. 2023  March 31. 2022
Opening balance (1,384,10) (20.62)
Tax income/{expenss) during the year recognised in staterment profit and loss {183.69) (778.59)
Tar incoma/{expense) during the year recognised in OCT (64.04) (584.89)
Cloaing balante as at 31 March |l£l.ﬂl M
(c) Movement In deferred tax assets / (liability)
Movemesi bn dferred wAET ! illndiitley | fer currentg vonr anded Mareh 3, 2633
Recognised n | Reeognised in
Particalara March 31, 2022 | 0l yeofit and loss March 31, 2023
Assets
Provision for employes benefits 20.19 253 18.98 42.10
Lease lihility 1,794.67 - 484,46 2,279.13
Decommissicning liability 64.91 - 4349 148.40
Propaymant of 1and lease 12243 - 11947 241,90
Unabsorbed depreciation* BA46.06 12,024.98 20,471.04
Expenses to be allowed in subsequent years 652 - 2,13 9.05
Cash flow hedge reserve 65.59 {66.97) - {1.39)]
Diprivntue Eabdiey and ®esiotemeni of cepiial credivos 0,41 - (6L il G
L] piHA | 13,7593 i} |
Liability
Depwecigtion and amortisation on property, plant and equipment snd intangible assets 9,548.06 - 12,277.09 21,825.15
Right i use sssety 2,254.50 - 539.48 2,794.38
EIR adjustment of borrowings 172.15 - 8924 261.39
Fair salee of fmesivesn) and Francial imimnments al.amorised vost i 1) | 81 210
1107541 ==l [P A 14 BM1AY
Sel Deferred tax aupeen | {luhiliy | (RN ] (it LK) NEATEA])
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Nutes to consolidated financlal statements for the year yuded March 31, 2023

LA mmouems ure ssted in € lshe umbess oiberwane staned)

Mivviment s defrrred st | glinbiBio g for previows yese inded March 31, 2122

Particalars March 31,2021 | Fecogaliedin | Recognbsedln | 0 o) 50

N piemdbi umi bass
Assets
| Provision for employes benefits 14.54 0.66 499 20.1%
Loase Liability 944.88 - 0.9 1,794.67
Decommissioning Hability 38.03 - 26.38 64.91
Prepayment of land lease 85.14 - 3729 122.43
‘Unebsorbed depreciation® 379,24 - 8,065.82 8,446.06
Expénges to be allowed in subsequent yoars 6.87 - 0.05 6.92
Iﬂlhﬂowhedpm 651.14 (585.55) ] 65.59
Dt ative Hibslity sndd Nestatermet of gl ol - = i 86 A0
.0 1984 LSHEHE) LML 10,591.33
Lisbility
Depreciation and mortisation on property, plant and equipment and intangihle sssets 709.04 - 8,839.,02 9,548.06
Right to use aszets 1,360.18 L 894,72 2,254.90
EIR adjustment of borrowings 70.95 E 101,20 172,15
Fuir vafug &1 myestment ongd firnial ATSORETE A1 Amertibd oo .28 - 0412 1,701
i 214045 - U.34.96 1L |

Mot Diferresd tun mesets ! {linbdlin ) | (20T (58N} | TTR.5R) {1,384 08)

*The Group has unshsarbed depreciation of INR 107058.88 Lekhs (Mach 31, 2022; INR 39624.46 Lakhs). Tho unabscrbed degweciation will be available for offcstting against
future taxsble profits of the Group.,

The Group has recognised deferred tax ansets of INR 20471.04 Lakhs (Mach 31, 2022: INR 8446.06 Lalhy) wtilisation of which is dependent on future profits. The future
texable profits are bassd on projection made by management considering the power purchase agreement with power procurer.




JUNIFER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated fimancial sintements for the ysar ended March 31, 2023
(All smovats are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwiss stated)

Furticalars

Mnarch 31, 2023  Mareh 31, 2022

7

11

Non Current tax assets {nef)

258.30

Advanos xoome-tax [oet ef pecvision for tax of INR o lskin (March 31, 2022: TNR 17.47 lakiu] 43218
Total it

Othar non-current assets (Unsecrved, eosidered good wnless otherwise stated)

Prepaid expenses 347
Asset in tramsic® 53,61
Capital advances . 5.05

43.12
27117

Total $213

Madn,

*Ansets purchased In Myrch 2023 on CFR basie which s recsived In April 2023,

Investments
Quoted Mutual Funds (measured at fair vaine throwgh Profit and Loss)
HDFC Ovesrtight Matual Fund-Direct Piaa - Growth Option 1,960.10

251.69

[58889.369 mmits (March 31, 2021 7971354 unin)]
Totl 1EE0I0

Aggregate book vahue and market valse of anquoted investments -
Aggrogate market value of Quoted investments 1,960.10
Aggrogste amount of impairment in valoe of imvestments -

Trade recelvables
Non-Currest -
Trade recelvables considered pood - Secured 3124

Trade receivables oosidered good - Unsecyured® ETET]

Total

* Potition wi 86{1X1) of the Electricity Act, 2003 read with Article 11 of the Powar Purchese Agreement dated 08.07,2020 read with supplomentary FPA dated 25.04.2022 axecuted

between JGTPL and GUVNL bas been fied sosking refhnd of INR 31.23 Lakbs uniiterally snd fllegally deductod by GUVNL.

Trads receivshies carries intorest a3 pec the terma of egroements with customen and are generally o terms of 0 to 30 days.

Trade Recelvables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 12

Ou for from due date of

Particulary Unbiled  Currestbut Lessthané 6 months -1 23 More tham

Rivrivalibn ik D Aumiim JURE _yEmr ¥ years

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 3315.00 1,627.12 52.59 - -
Undisputed Trade Recoivables — which heve significant
Increase in cvedit rak

Undisputed Tirade reveivablo — aredit impaired - - -

Disputed Trade recelvables - considered good - 31.24 -

Digputed Trade receivables — which have significant . . ; .

4,954.80

124

Toa T S 7 R S B — -

_Thupstasifing for following pierinits from due date of juymeni

Particulars Unhilisd  Currentbut Lessthan 6 6 months -1 12 3 More than

Bainlyalide bl D Monilis 5 EAT venry 1 yemry

Undinputed Trade Roceivables — conidared good 1,586.57 669.57 4799 - - - -

- Fixed deposits with ek (with original maturity for lese than 3 mantte) 3,31090 703,36
Total —GE AR,

Other bank balances
- Fixed Deposits®

23,514.68

~ Fixed Deposits {with original msturity for more than 3 montha)y*™ 13,!54.1-6 3.062.18
Total 13,254.16 29,376.8¢

*Fixed deposits bald for DSRA, marked Hen in fovor of Bank s per Permitted Investment clanse of TRA Agreement, murgin mooey Hen sgainst letter of credit / bank

pusmntes/avendraft

" ncludes depostis matniained by the Company with back compeiss of time deposits, which can be withtriwn Ly the Company at amy point withowt per notice or penalty on the

rzaipal
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JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unlass otherwise stated)

" Particolars Murch 31, 2023 March 31, 2012
Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out enalysis of net debt and the movement In net debt for each of the year presemted:
Net debt as on 31 Marck 2023

Falr value
Commritment  adjustment (Other
Particolars March 31,2022 Cesh Flowms during the year than Cash Flow) / Mareh 31, 2023
Others
Non current - Borrowings (including current maturities) 1,03,31940  1,06,652.06 (760.45) 2,09,211.01
Current - Borrowings 66,739.22 (64,257.35) 1,644.93 4,126.80
Lease Liabilitios 10.607.27 12.781,79 1(.,658.34 1242 19.726.65
Total (A) 1 89 39 2 % 212731 %
Less:
Casgh and cash equivalents {3,426.03) (1,328.83) - - (4,754.86)
Investment in smutual fond [2131.69: 11.613.0 | - 19535; 11960.10/
Net cash & cash equtvalent (B) 72 {2.941.59) — 0535 Tl
Net Debt (A-B) 1,76,988.17 36,671.03 16,658.34 2,031.96 2,26,349.50
Net debt a9 ont 31 March 2022 L
Falr value
Particulars Marck31,2021  Cash Flows dfﬂ“""""“""‘m . P .h‘;;::';: Mareh 31, 2022
Others

Non current - Borrowings (inchuding current maturitios) 30,596.47 72,996.63 (273.70) 1,03,319.40
Current - Borrowings 42,490.46 21,882 46 2,366.30 66,739.22
Lease Lisbilities 4.177.85 1,046,711 7.878.47 597.66 10:07.27
Total (A) 77,264.78 92!832.33 1.878.47 2.690.26 1,80.665.89
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents (2,160.00) (1,266.03) - - (3,426.03)
Investment in mrtual fimd 1468.131 108.15 - (41,71 1251.69
Net cash & cash equivalent (B) 1 - 7, 72
Net Debt (A- B) 74,636,865 91,874.50 7,878.47 1,598,558 1,76,988.17
Security Depuoait - Cwrrent Financial Asset
Security Deposits 137.45 17747
Total 13745 17747
Other current financlal assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on security depoait 7.92 4.62
Interest accrued on fixed depoaits 102,42 133.79
Detivative Assots 8.13
Insurance claim receivable — 36.13 107.53
Total 154.60 245.94
Other current assety
(Unsecured, comsidered good unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid cxpenses 479.81 1.472.10
Other advance 149,69 161.65
Othor taxos receivable 10.55 294
Total 640.05 1,636.60




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolkiated financial statements for the year ended Marck 31, 2023
i All mmounts are stated in ¥ lgkhg. unless otherwise stated)

16. Equity Share Capital

Moarch 31. 2013 March 31. 2022

Particulars

Authorised share eapital:

Equity share capital

2,50,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 1,55,00,000) equity shares of Ra.10/- each 2,500.00 1,550.00
2,000 (March 31, 2022: 2,000) Class B equity shares of Rs.10 each 0.20 020
Tota TR L5020
Issued, subscribed ard fully pald-up share capital:

1,38,05,243(March 31, 2022: 1,38,05,243) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 1,380.52 1,380.52
2,000 (March 31, 2022: 2,000) Class B equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 0.20 020
Total 1300.72 ETTRA
A. Reconciliation of No. of Equity Shares

(1} Authorised share capital No. of shares Amount
At April 1,2021* 1,05,00,000 1,050.00
Equity Shares increased during the year 50,00,000 500.00
Class B Equity Shares increased during the year 2,000 020
At March 31, 2022 1 1,550.20
Bquity Shares increased during the year 95.00.000 950.00
At March 31, 2023 M
*Includes equity share increased on account of merger (vefer note 38)

(iI) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital No. of shares Amount
At April 1, 2021 56,53,013 86530
Equity Shares issued during the year 81,52,230 815,22
Class B Equity Sheres issued during the year 2,00 0.20
At March 31, 2022 138 1,380.72
Equity Shares issued during the year - -

At March 31,2023 —L028 ____LINT

B. Terma/Rights attached to shares
Teormy/Rights attached ¢o eawitv shares
The Company has two classes of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- each as follows:

Each holder of Equity Sherv is entitled to one vote per share, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shareg will be entitled to receive remaining
nssets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders,

Each holder of class B Equity Shere shall not carry any right to dividend, voting or any other economic right and collactively gain a percentage of voting, dividend and
economic rights (of the total voting and econemic rights available fo the shareholders of the Company) as provided in Articles of Association.

C. Shares beld by holding contpany
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by ita holding company are as below:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2122
1,38,05,243 (March 31, 2022: 1,38,05,243) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each held by Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte, Ltd., the 1,380.52 1,380.52

holding comparny and its nomines

D. Details of shareholders hokdin more ihan 5% Equity shires
Name of the shareholder Number of shares  Percentageof  Number of shares  Percentage of
held Hulding keld _Holding
As ot As at As at Asat
March 31,2023  Mareh 31,2023  March 31,2022  March 31, 2022
Equity shares of Ra 10 each fully paid
Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd , the holding company and nominee 1,38,05,243 100.00% 1,38,05,243 100.00%

Ap per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shereholders regarding beneficial intevest, the above
shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
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JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year eaded March 31, 2023
{All amounts are stated in ¥ [k s, unless otherwise stated,

E. Details of Equity shares beld by promuoters
As at March 31. 2023

Promoter Name No. of shares at Change daring No.of shares at % of Total Shares % change during
the beginning of the year the end of the year the year
the sear
Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte, Ltd. and nomince 1,38,05,243 - 1,38,05,243 100.00% -
An at March 31. 2022
Promoter Name No. of shares at Change during  No. of sharesat % of Total Shares % change during
the beginping of the year the end of the year the year
the vesr
TJuniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. and nomimnee 56,52,725 81,52,518 1,38,05,243 100.000% 0.005%

F. anhnmhmbeeniuuedﬂurconlidamﬂmoﬂmthmuuhmdmlhmhweheenboughtbackdmhgfhupuﬁodofﬂwymimmsdjmbrpnoedhsﬂunporﬁng
date.




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to conaolldated financial sintemenis for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
(All amoumts are stated in € lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

[ March31,2023  March3l, 2022

Particalars
17 Other aquity

Retained earuings
(a) Statement of profit and loas
Ag per last balance shest 4,991.23 2,270.17
Add :Net profit for the year £1.219.65) 2,721.06
Net surplus In statement of profit and koss 377158 499123
Retained carnigs represents the amount that can be distributed by the Company ax dividends oonsidering the requirements of the Companies’ Act, 2013,
{(b) Becurities premium
As per last balance sheet 73,139.83 28,534.74
Add: Addition on issue of equity shares - A44.0015.14
Total 39,88 139.88

Socuritios premmivam is used to record the pramium on fsmue of shares, Ths roserve can be utilised only for lmitsd purposes such as issuance of bomu shares in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013,

{c) OCI reserve

As per last balance sheet {316.61) (2,70327)
Add: Cash flow hedge reserve movement in P&L 6.74 (482.85)
Lass: Revensal of cash flow hedge reserves, net of tax 316.61 2,703.27
Lesa: Capitalised during the yoar - 166.25
Total 674 {316.61)

The Group has taken forward contracts to hodge procurment of property, plant & equipment/highly probable forecast payments for procurement of property, plant & oquipment by the Company
i forelgn currency. To the extemtent hedge is effective, the change in fiir valne ofhedging instrurnent is recognised in cash flow hadge reserve.

(d) Capital Regerve

Ay per last balance sheet (refer note 38) {127 {127

Addition during the yeer - -

Total (127) 27
TM 77,813.23

18 Provislons

Non-turrent

Provision for gratuity (reflr note 40) 247.18 160.67

Docommissioning provision (refir note 34B(5) 70727 269.64

Total m 43031




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolldated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are stated in € lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Mareh 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022

19 Borrowings
Non-carrent
Secured
Term Loan from fingnial institutions® 2,09,211.01 1,03,319.40
Leus: Amont clubbed nnder ‘Current Borrowings' (refar note 20) (8.197.16) {4778.33)
Tota R 7YY R— TV

*For losn in Juniper Green Energy Private Limited for 30 MW Profect
Tam Joan taken from Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency (IREDA) in INR specifically for the purpose of setting up 30 MW solar power project in Maharashtra which carries net
interest rate of 8.30% p.s with annual reset upon expiry of 1 year from the date of first disbursament and every year thereafier. The loan ahall be repaid over a teure of 15 years in 60 quarterly

insialments starting from March 31, 2021 and ending on December 31, 2035.
(D) Exclusive First Charge by way of Mortgage by deposit oftitls deads in favour of TREDA on all the ftvmérvable properties, both prosent mnd firture, wherever sifuate, pertaining to 30 MW,

() Baolosive First Chargo by way of hypothecation in fiavour of IREDA of all the movable assets/properties both present end future wherever situate, pertaining to 30 MW.
(idi) Corporate Guarantea of hokling Company M/a. Funiper Renewablo Holdings Pte Limited which shall be released upon compliance of the oertain oonditions.

{iv) Plodge of 99% of the promoter”s comtribution (Equity) in the project. The same shal be redused to 76% and retained during the terme of the loan, upen compHance of the oartain conditions.

(v) Conditional assignment of a) All the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims snd demands of the project contract assignable by the company, b) Subject to Applicable Law, all the rights, titla,
interest, bemedits, claims end demands in the Clearances pertaining to the project o) All the rights, titls, interest, benefita, olaims and demands in ey letter of aredit, guarantee, performance bond,
corporate guarantes, bank guarantee, mininwon energy generation guarantes, liquidated damages, shortfull in genarstion ete. provided by any party to the Project Documents.

“For loan in Nlsagra Renewable Energy Private Limited for 70 MW Project

Term loan taken from India Infra Delst Limited ("IDF”) in INR specifically for 70 MW solar power projoct in Maharashira. Tho Term loan was earlier financod from Indian Renewable Energy
Developaent Agency (“IREDA") end same has been repaid during the yeer ont of the prooceds from tarm loan from ndia Infra Debt Limited (“TDF™). Term loan taken from India Infra Debt Limited
("IDF™) carics intorost of §.20% per annum till April 27, 2027. The term loan shall be repaid over a tenure of 18 years in quarterly instalmeants starting fram 30 June 2022 and snding on 31 March
2040,

(i) First Charge by way of registared Morigage on all the iwmovable properties of the Bormower both present and future, wherever situate, pertaining to 70 MW Solar Photovoltaic Grid-connected
Power Project,

(if) Bxclusive First Charge by way of hypothecation of all the Bommower's tangible movable asseta/properties both present and fiturs wherever gitusie, pertaining to 70 MW Solar Photovoltads Grid-
connected Power Project.

(iii) Pledge of 76% of the promoter*s aontribution (Bquity) in the project.

{iv) First charge over all acooumty of the Borrower incloding DSRA Account, EMRA sccount, all onrrent assets and intengible assets of the Borrower pertaining to 70 MW Solar Photovoltaic Grid-
oonnected Power Project, both present and fisiure,

(v) First charge on all revenues and receivables of the Borrower, all pertaining to the 70 MW Solar Photovoltaic Grid-connected Power Praject both prasent and firturs,

(vi) First charge by way of hypothecation over afl the rights, title, interests, benefits, claims and demsnds whatscever of the Botrower tn the Prafect Documents (Including the PPA), fn and under
all the clearances, in any letter of credit, gnarntee and Heuidated damages (inoluding Contractnal Damages), performance bond provided by any Project Participent, insurance coatracts end under
Ieasshold land pertaining to the Project, both present sad fisture.

*For loan in Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited for 120 MW Project

Tarm lomn taken from Power Finance Corporation (MPFC™) in INR specifically for the purpose of setting up 120 MW solar power peaject in Gojarat which carries interest at 8.10% and next reset on
15 March 2025. The term loen shall be repaid over a tenure of 17 yoars in manthly instaliments siarting from 15 Jannary 2022 and ending on 15 December 2038, The term loan ia secured by:

(1) Exolusive First Charge by way of Mortgage over:
- all the immavabls propertics, including any Jeaschold rights, if any, both present and future;
= All tangible movabls assets, including moveable plant and maschinery, machinery spares, equipient, tools and accassories, firniture, fixtures, veldolas and all other movable assets wherever
situated, both present and fiitrre;
- All intangibla assets inchnding goodwill, intellectnal property rights, mdertaking and vaealled capital, both present and fistare;

- All the Current Assets, inoluding but not limited to, book debts, cperating cash fiows, Receivables, commissions, revenues of whatsoever nature and whenever arising, both present and firture;

- all scocunts inchuding, the Trust and Retention Acoonnt and the Sub-Acoount(s), the DSRA, MMRA or any acoount cregied for amy moeerve to be areated snd maintained (or any sccount in
mubstitution thereof), or any of the Project Docements or other accounts of the Borrower and all finds from time to time deposited therein, the Receivables and all Permitted Investments or
ofher securities ropresenting sll amounts crodited to the Trust and Retention Acoount, any letter of credit and other reserves of the Borrower present and fisture wherever maintained;

{id) Assignment (to the extent permitted under the Applicable Laws) of:
= all the rights, titles, interests, benafits, clnims and demands whatsoever in the Project Documents/ Contrasts (inalding but not Hmited to Power Purchass Agreement(s) menormdmn of
understanding, package/ sonstroction oontracts, O&M related agreements, sarvios coriracts, and all other Contracts);
- all tha rights, titles, inerests, benedits, claims wnd demands in, to and under all the Clearances relating to the Project;
- all the rights, titles, interests, liconsos, benefits, ckims and demands in the Project Documents/ Contracts (including but not limited to package/construction contracts, operation and
maintenance contracts, Iand lesse ugreements, service contracts, other Contracts, memorandum of understanding, guarantees under the Contracts, PPA{s), any letier of aredit or such other
security to be provided by the procurers of power 1nder the tenms of PPA(S)), letter of credits, guarantee, liquidsted damages, performance bond and corporate guarantee provided by amy party
under any of the Project Documents, excluding any bank gunarautees provided to the Borrower by eny party under any of the Coniracts; and

(lif) Pledge of 51% (fifty-one percent) of Equity Shares and Quasi Equity, both present and fisture, held by the Pladgor.

(iv) An irrevocable and unconditional Corporate Guarantes from the holding sompany far the pupose of repaymentipiyment of Secured Obligations end the sme shall be rolexsed after compHance
of certain conditions.




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to congolidated financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otharwise stated)

Partiralars March31,2023  March31, 2022

“For loan In Juniper Green Three Private Limited for 190 MW Projsct

Loem taken from Power Fingmoe Corporation (“PFC™) in INR specifically for the purpose of sstting up 190 MW solar power project in Gujerat which carries interest st 8.50% per mnmum and naxt
resst on July 15, 2025. The term loan shall be repaid over & tenure of 19 years in monthly installments starting from 15 Jannary 2023 gnd eading on 15 December 2041, The term loan is secured by:

(i) Exclusive First Charge by way of Morigage over:

- all the immovable properties, inclnding any leasehold rights, if atty, both presant and fishare;

- all tangible movable essets, inchuding movesble plant snd machinery, machinery spares, squipment, tools and accessories, fumiture, fixtures, vehicles end all other movahle sssets wherever
situsted, both present and fistore;

- all intangible aasets inchauling goodwrill, intellectunl property rights, undertaking and uncalled capital, both proseat and fiture;

- all the Corrent Assets, inchading but not limited 10, book debis, operating cash flows, Recsivables, commissions, revenues of whatsoever naturo and whenover urising, both present and fisure;

- all soapunts of the Barrower, including, the Trust and Retention Acoount and the Sub-Account(s), the DSRA of 2 quartars of principal and interest payment, any letter of credit and any reserve(s)
or smy other bank accounts of the Borrower, wherever maintained (or any other account in substitution thereof) that maxy be opened in accordanoe with the Trust and Refention Acoount and the
Finanoing or other Project Documents and ell fimds from tims to tims depositad therein, the Receivables and all Permitted hvestments or other securitios representing all amounts credited to the
Trust and Retention Account,

(i) Assignment (to the extent permittod under the Applicable Laws) of

- all the rights, titles, imterests, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever in the Project Documents/ Coniracts (inohding but not limited to Power Purchase Agrecment(s)/ memorandum of
wnderstanding, packngs/ construction contracts, O&M related agreements, service oontracts, Insurance oontracts & Insurance procesds and all other Contracts);

- afl the rights, titles, interests, benefits, clatms and demands in, to and under all the Clearances relating to fhe Project;

- all the rights, titles, interests, licenses, benefits, claims and demands in any Iatter of credits, guarantes, liquidatod damages, performance bond and corporate guarantos, bank gnarantoe (if agroed by
the izsning benk(s)) or emy other security provided / to be provided to the Borrower by ey party under the Project Documents / Contracts; snd

(iii) Pledge of spacified percantage of Equity Shares and Quasi Equity, both present and fature, held by the Plsdgor.

(iv) An irrevooablo and unconditional Corparate Guaratbee from the Holding Company for the purposs of repayment/payment of Seoured Obligations and the same shall be released after compliance
of certain conditioms.

*For loan in Juniper Green Fleld Private Limited for 150 MW Projeet

Represents torm loan taken from Power Fingnos Corporation (“PFC™) in INR specifically for the purpose of setting up 150 MW solar power project in Maharashtrs which carries fixed interest rate
of 8.50% starting from August 15, 2022 to July 14, 2025. The temm doan shall be repaid over n tanurs of 18 years in monthly installments starting from 14 Auguost 2023 wmd ending on 14 July 2041
The term loan ia secured by:

(i) Exchuive First Charge by way of Morigage over:

« all tha immovable properties, inchnding any leasehold rights, if any, both present and firture;

- all tangihle movable assets, inchuding moveabls plant and machinery, machinery spares, oquipment, tools and acosssories, fumiture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets wherever
situated, both present end fistre; ’

= all fmtangible asscts including goodwill, intellectual property rights, undertaking and uncalled capital, both pregent and fisture;

- all the Current Assets, including but not kmited to, book dabta, operating cash flows, Receivables, commissions, revemues of whatsosver nature end whenaver arlsing, both proscnt and fistore;

- all accounts inchading, the Trust and Retention Account and the Sub-Acoomnt(s), the DSRA or any acoount created for any reserve fo be created and maintained (or any acoount in substitution
theeeof), er any of the Project Documents or other aooounts of the Besrower and all fands from time to time deposited therein, the Recaivables and ol Permitted Investments or other securities
repreaenting all smounts credited to the Trust and Reteation Account;

(1) Asslgnment (to the extent permitted under the Applicable Laws) of

- all the rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever in the Project Documents/ Contracts (inchiding but not imited to Power Purchase Agrocment(s)/ memorancum of
wnderstanding, packega/ constrnotion comtracts, O&M relatad agreements, service contracts, Insurance contracts & Insorence procesds and all other Candructs);

= all the rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands in, to and under all fhe Cloarancas relating to the Project;

- all the rights, titles, intereats, licenses, benefits, claims and demands in any letier of credits, guarantoe, liquidated dasmages, performance bond end corporate guarantee, bank guarantee (if agreed by
the issuing bank(s)) or ey other security providsd / to ba providsd to the Borrower by any party mder the Project Documents / Comtracts; atd

{iii) Pledge of specified percantage of Equity Shares and Quasi Equity, both preseat snd fisture, held ty tha Pledgor.

(iv) An lrrevooable and unconditional Corporate Guarantes from the Holding Company for the purposs of repayment/payment of Seoured Obligations and the sams shall be relsassd afier compliance
of centain conditiona,

20 Borrowingn
Current
Secured
Buywrs credit* 4,126.80 65,739.22
Current maturites of long term loans 8,197.16 477833
Total 1232356 Asus,

*For buyers ¢redit lo Jyniper Green Three Frivate Limited
Buyer's Crodit availed by the Company (against the Letter of credit issned by Indusind Bank Limited) from Union Bank of Indis - Dubai, repaysble on August 11, 2023. Interest on Buyer's

credit is 4.06% per annym,

*For buyers credit In Juniper Green Fleld Private Limited

Represents Buyer's Credit availed by the Company (secured against the Letter of credit fssnad by Indusind Bank Limited) from Bank of India, NewYork ropaysble on May 31, 2023 ind July
24, 2023 with interest ranging from 5.10%-5.21% per annum,




JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AL amonnis are staed in € lakhs unless otherwise steted)

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022

Particulars

21 Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 148,62 43.90
= Total outstending dnes of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 552.05 27945
Toua 007 EET

Trade paysbles are non-interest bearing and are normally settlad 0-90 days tarms,
Trade Payables Ageing Schadnule

Ag ot 31 March 24123

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Parficalars billed n
:I:.u- la::l:nl 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 yeurs Total
Total outstanding dues of nvaro enterprices and small suterjuises - 148.62 - 148.62
Total outstanding does of areditors other than nricro enterprises and small enterprises 298.61 244.65 205 6.52 022 552.05
Dispwied dues of micro enterprises snd snxll enterprises - .
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
Total —il L LB 6 Sd A
As at 31 March 2022
for from due date of
Serticsns e "'::'I"“ I-2ysars 2-3years More than3 yesrs Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterpriscs and small enterprises - 43.90 - - - 43.90
Total cutstanding dues of creditoes other than micro enterprises end small enterprives 149.81 122,59 633 iy ] - 279.45
Disputed duss of mioro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - :
Disputed dues of creditors other fhan migro enterprises and small enterpeises - - - - .
Tota T TR T T 1 : FICT
Other current financial Habilities
Paysble for parchase of Property, plant and equipment (include INR 913,80 lakhs paysble to micro sud small entetprises, refer note 35) 1,980.90 41,792.75
Retention woney payable (incindes INR 1394.06 lakhs payable to micro and small enterprices, refir note 35) 241535 1,802.46
Inierest nocroed but not due on Buyers oredit T2.55 .4
Interest aocrmed but not dus on term loan 687.60 224,01
Derivative Liability* - 24785
Employee related Habilitios 21199 169.28
Other Lidbilitien 1.19 11.08
Total 536958 4442877
hedgen 1o hadge payments for procurement

*Derivative instruments at fair value through OCT refisct the change in fiir value of foreign exchange forward contracts, designated as cash flow

property, plant & equipment / highly probahle firecast payments for procuremant of property, plant & equipment by the Group in forelgn enmmency.

Other current labilittes

Statutory dues 25327 50721

Total 25327 w21

Provisions

Current

Provigion for gratuity (refer note 40) 141 1.14

Proviskn for oompensated shsences 194.50 140.34

Total 195.91 141 43

Linbilities for earrent tax (not)

Provision for income tax (net of sdvance tax amounting to INR 2.05 lakbs) (March 31, 2022: INR 184.11 Iakhs) i.lo 11.78

Toual 310 170
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JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes o consolldated finanelal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(ALl smounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the yearended  For the year ended

fars March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
26 Revenus from operstions
Revenwe from contract with castomers
Sale of Power 32,367.38 15,092.37
Lens: Rebate and reactive charges (310.36) (100.02)
Sals of Voluntary Emission Reductions (VERs) 1.773.66 2.1160.63
Total gm.ﬂ ;ﬁ.”
27 Qther income
Interest income on
Fixed deposits 232036 1,107.08
Incoms tax refund 8.82 6.96
Security deposit 7.81 4.81
Profit on disposal of Property, plant and equipment 22.08
Service charges for project development - 600.00
Sale of Wind Mant Data - 2.00
Profit on redemnption of nmutual fund 86.60 90.52
Net gain on investment in Mutual Fimd measured at fuir value through profit & loas 8.75 L1%
IRS Incoms 631.32 -
Foreign exchange gain (net) 14.02 -
Sale of ecrap 003 17.40
Other miscellansous Income 40.18 11.89
Total 17.8% 1,863.93
28 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,478.54 689.20
Centribution to provident and other funds 157.66 46.19
Cmatuity expense 47.96 18.58
Leave encashment 64.87 26.41
Staff welfare expenses 160.84 33.65
Total 2,900.87 §14.03
29 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property plant and equipment (refer note 3) 10,425.51 4,130.89
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 17.08 15.50
Depreciation on Right to use assets (refer note 3) 74356 389.61
Less: capitalised during the year 180.: 5} 1147.25|
Total 11,005.80 8.75
30 Finance cost
Interest on loan from financial institution 15,064.65 5,857.67
Interest on biryer's credit 792.94 151.03
Interest on bank overdraft 3.88 -
Inderest expenses on lease ligbilities 92254 44631
Interest expenses on decommissioning lLiabilities 60.68 22,48
Other borrowing cost (bank guarantes, hedging cost and other charges) 299340 1.425.64
Total 19.838.59 8.403.13
- .
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JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financinl statementy for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the yearended  For the year ended
Particulars March31,2023  March31, 2022
31 Other expenses
Insurance 534.84 210.55
Legal and professional expenses 51427 140.11
Operational expenges 47546 293.17
Security expenses 404.73 215,79
Travelling and conveyance 355.62 57.68
Electricity charges 211.52 89.10
Office expenses 211.36 11.05
Rates & texes 187.62 263.61
DSM and Forecesting charges 129.10 -
Bid application & processing fiees 8333 3.95
Payment to auditor (Note-1) 7725 59.46
Rent and Leass expenscs 75.19 62.51
Subscription and membership fee 47.13 18.49
Liquidated Damges Charges 37.28 -
Commnumication expenses 35.94 9.94
CSR expenditure (Nots - 2) 31.78 10.23
Connectivity Application fee 27.66 -
VER Issuance expenses 25,18 55.20
Miscellaneous expensss 19.82 6.03
Repair and maintenance {others) 1211 1.78
Printing and stationery 1122 1.66
Foreign exchange loss (net) 1.59 kY 7]
Donation 0.03 15.73
Project development and Mest data collection expenses - 74.46
Other mast expenses - 0.09
Total 10.03 1,504.06
Note-1
Payment to auditor comprises fee (Inclusive of GST)
Audit fee 41.09 31.13
Tax Audit 7.90 531
Th other capacity
Other services (group reporting, tex audit & certification fee) 25.18 21.08
Reimbursement of expenses 3.08 1.94
Total 7115 9,48
Note-2
Detalls of CSR expenditure
#) 'Gross amount required to be spent by the Group for the year 30.56 10.23
b) Amount spent in cash during the year on
i) Comstruction/acquisition of any asset -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above* 42.01 -
c) Details related to unspent obligations:
i) Construction/acqnigition of any asset -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above*® - 10.23
*Includes INR. 10.23 Lakhs being CSR obligation for FY 2021-22,
**Amount deposited in scparate bank account within 30 days from the reporting date.
__Excess amount sprent under section 135(5)
. Amount required to be Amount speat .
Opening Balance spent during the year # |  during the year Closing Balanoe
40.79 42,01 (122}
#Includes INR 10.23 Lakhg being CSR obligation for FY 2021-22.
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Pardh For the year ended  For the year ended
* Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

32 Income tax expenses
(a) Income ¢ax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss comprises:
Current tax 5.18 172.59
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years 1.21 3275
Deferred tax charge 183.69 778.59
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 190.08 983.93
(b) Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of cash flow hedges (66.97) (585.55)
Net gain on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 2.93 0.66
Total . 164.04) 884.81)
(¢) Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by Indla's domestic tax rate :
Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax (1,015.72) 3,706.94
Applicable statutory income tax rate 26.00% - 17.16% 27.17% - 17.16%
Tax at applicable income tax rate 98.14 719.25
Tax As per Books [refer above note 32(z)] 190,08 983.93
Adjustments for :
Effect of expenses not claimed under income tax act/deferred tax assets not created (93.17) (261.69)
Others (including consclidation adiustments) 0.13 29.76
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier vears 1.10 132.75)
Total Tax 98.14 719.25
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33. Earnings Per Share (EPS):

34.

Earnings per share is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company, Basic earnings
per share is computed using the weighted-average number of shares calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the
year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares,

The following data reflects the inputs to calculation of basics and diluted EPS:

| Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Net profit/(loss) as per statement of profit and loss for calculation of
basic EPS and dilutive EPS (1,205.80) 272301 |
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic/diluted 1,38,07,243 1,12,83,833
EPS
Nominal value per share (%) = 10 10
Basic & Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (¥) (8.73) | 24.13

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenucs, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Group’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
* Capital management (Refer Note - 43)

» Financial risk management objectives and policies (Refer Note -45)

* Sensitivity analyses disclosures (Refer Note - 45)

A, Judgments _
In the process of applying the Group accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the
most significant cffect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as a lessee:

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Group reasscsses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that
is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate {e.g., construction
of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset). Refer to Note 41 for information
on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination options
that are not included in the lease term.




Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant rigk of causing a material adjustment to the ¢arrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, arc described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, meay change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they oceur,

a) Impairment of non-financial assets
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal
factars which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

b) Taxes:

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Recognition of deferred tax lability on undistributed profits — The extent to which the Holding Company can control
the timing of reversal of deferred tax liability on undistributed profits of its subsidiaries requires judgement.

¢) Defined benefits plan (Gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity cbligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future, These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates, Due to the
complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

d) Fair value measurement of financial instrements

When the fair values of financial agsets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
quoted prices in active markets, their feir value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

¢) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannct readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation
when no observable ratcs are available. The Group estimates the IBR as rate at which the borrowing is availed during the
year.,

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant tisk of causing a material adjustment to the ¢arrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the agsumptions
when they occur,
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3s.

1) Provision for decommissioning

Ag part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the commissioned 410 MW solar projects in
Maharashtra and Gujarat, the Group has recognised a provision amounting to INR 707.26 lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR
269.64 lakhs) for decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on frechold land. In determining the
fair value of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to
dismantle and remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The Group estimates that the costs
would be realised in 25 years’ time upen the expiration of the PPA’s term, The provision is based upon current cost
estimates and has been determined on a discounted basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of inflation
basis on industry practice. The timing and amount of future expenditures are reviewed annuaily, together with rate of
inflation for escalation of current cost estimates and the interest rate used in discounting the cash flows,

The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified by management from the available information, which has been
relied upon by the auditors. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, outstanding dues
to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as foilows,

Particulars

March 31, 2023

Mareh 31, 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
| any supplier as at the end of each accounting vear*

2,456.48

7,710.92

Principal amount due to micro and amall entcrpriges®

2456.48

7.710.92

Interest due on above

Nil

Nil

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier bevond the appointed day durine each accounting vear

Nil

Nil

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006.

Nil

Nil

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid af the end of each
accounting vear

Nil

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Nil

*The amount of principle and interest is not due to micro and small enterprises vendors as per the terms of agreement entered into with

such vendors,
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36.

Group Information
Consolidated financial statement comprises the financial statement of Juniper Green energy Private Limited, its
subsidiaries as listed below:
Proportion Principle
13';_ Company Name :::;‘;gg{ ow':et:;m Relationship l];l::: of
. interest usined
1 | Orangc Gadaz Wind Power Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% India
2 | Nisagra Renewsble Energy Private Limited Subsiiliary 100.00% India
3 | Juniper Green Siima Private Limited Subsidinry 100.00% India
4 | Juniper Green Three Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% India
5 | Juniper Green Ficld Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% ~ India
6 | Juniper Green Gem Private Limited Subsidiary | 100.00% - India
{ 7 | Jumiper Green Beam Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% India
8 | Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited* Subsidiry 100.00% India
9 | Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% India
10 | Juniper Green Beta Private Limited Subsidiary 10000% | India
11 | Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited* Subsidiary 100.00% India
12 | Juniper Green Kite Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% India
13 | Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% India
14 | Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited** Subsidiury 100.00% | w.e.f 05-07-22 India
15 | Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited** | Subsidiury 100.00% | w.e.f 05-07-22 India
16 | Juniper Green India Fighit Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% | w.e.f. 05-07-22 India
| 17 | Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited** Subsidiary | 100.00% | w.e.f.07-07-22 India
18 | Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited** Subsidliary 100.00% | w.e.f. 07-07-22 India
19 | Juniper Green Gemma One Private Limited** _ Subsidiary 100.00% | w.ef. 07-07-22 India
| 20 | Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited** Subsidiary | 100.00% | w..f 07-07-22 | India
21 | Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% | w.e.f. 07-07-22 India
22 | Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% | w.e.f 07-07-22 India
23 | Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited** Subsid{ary 100.00% | w.e.f. 08-07-22 India
24 | Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% | w.e.f. 08-07-22 India
25 | Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited** Subsidiary | 100.00% | w.ef 08-07-22 India
26 | Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited** Subsidiary | 100.00% | w.ef 08-07-22 | India
27 | Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited®* Subsidiary | 100.00% | w..f 08-07-22 | India
28 | Juniper Green Rav One Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% | w.e.f 08-07-22 India
29 | Juniper Green India Alphs Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% | w.e.f. 11-07-22 India
30 | Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited** Subsidiary | 100.00% | w.e.f 13-07-22 India
31 | Juniper Green Liziit Four Private Limited** Subsidiary | 100.00% | w.e.f. 13-07-22 India
32 | Juniper Green India Six Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% | w.ef 15-07-22 | India
33 | Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited** Subsidiary 100.00% | wef19-07-22 | India
| 34 | Juniper Green India Private Limitod# | Subsidiary | 100.00% | | India

* During the year the holding company has further invested in equity shares and holds 100% shares of the entity.
*# During the year, the holding company has subscribed 100% shares of the entity.
# As per Hon’ble NCLT order dated 08.09.2022, Juniper Green India Private Limited has been merged with the Company.
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37. Related Party Transactions
A] Name of related parties and relnted partles relationship

Relstionship with the Names of Related Partles
Company

Ultimate Holding Company | AT Holdings Pte Ltd

Holding Company Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte, Lfd.
Key Management Personnel Arvind Tiku, Director

(including Key Management | Hemant Tikoo, Director

Personnel of subsidiary Senjay Bakliwal, Director
companies) Naresh Mansukhani, Wholetime Director
Parag Agrawal, Wholetime Director
Devendra Singh, Director o
Aniush Malik, Director
| Prashant Pandia, Company Secretary |
B) Transactions with Related Parties
P Holding Company Key Mmq_ement Personnel
31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar2z 31-Mar-23 |  31-Mar22
| Issue of Equicy Shares (Including share premium)
Tuniper Reneweble Holdings Pre, Ltd. | 4541177 | -] -
Issue of Clan B Equity Shares i including share preminm)
Naresh Mansukhani - - -] 273 |
Parag Agraal - i -] 202 |
Devendra Singh 1 - - -] 2.02
Ankush Malik | - - - 2.02
Wofmmwllzlmmnnn -
Juni;-t Renewable Hol!irs Pte, Ltd. 4 - | 0.01 - | -
Salnry and other benefite#
Naresh Mansukhani - - 20125 173.84
Parag Apravel - - 135.70 | 114.84 |
Devendra Singh - - - 12527 | 10921
| Ankush Malik - | - 105.00 85.90
| Prashent Pandia B 26.95 24.52

# Post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits are actuarially determined on overall basis and hence not separately provided,

C) Balances Outstanding as at vear end: ~
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
| Nil , Nil Nil

D) Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte. Ltd. has given Corporate Guarantee ageinst borrowing taken by the Group amounting
to INR 12,100.00 lakhs.

38. Scheme of arrangement (“The Scheme®):

The Hon’ble National Company Law Ttibunal (*“NCLT”), Delhi Bench vide its Order dated 8 September 2022, has
approved the Scheme of Arrangement involving merger of wholly-owned subsidiary company, namely Juniper Green India
Private Limited (“Transferor Company™) with Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (“Transferee Company™) pursuant to
Section 230-232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder with the
appointed date as 1 April 2021. The Transferee Company shall account for the merger in accordance with the pooling of
interests method as laid down by Appendix C of Ind AS 103 (Business Combination of Entities under common control)
notified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, as amended and other generally accepted accounting principles
in India, as the case may be,
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The Trensferor Company is wholly-owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company who are engaged in the business which
inter-alia includes setting up, operating, maintaining, generation, supply and sale of power in the field of renewable energy in
terms of their respective Memorandum of Association.

Pursuant to the Scheme:

The Transferee Company has recorded the assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company vested in it pursuant to this
Scheme, at their respective carrying amounts as appearing in the books of the Transferor Company.

No adjustments was made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor was aggregated with the
corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee.

The identity of the reserves has been preserved and shown in the financial statements of the Company in the same form
in which they appeared in the financial statements of the transferor Company. As a result, reserves which are available
for distribution as dividend before the business combination would also be available for distribution as dividend after the
business combination. The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor has been transferred to
capital reserve and presented separately from other capital reserves with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes.
Value of the investments in share of the Transferor Company in the books of the Transferee Company stand cancelled.
There was no differences in accounting policy between the Transferor Company and the Transferec Company.

. Juniper Green India Private Limited

linrtlculnrl ___i(as on 01-April-2020)

_Ausgets taken over (A) |
Non current tax assets ] 131
Other non current assets ) 47.50
Cash and cash cguivalents B.58 |
Bank balances other than (i| above : 170.00 |
Other current financial assets 1042 |
Total Assets (A} 237.81
LiabiHties taken over (A) i

_Trade pavables 045 |
Liabilities for current tax ineti | 1.78 |
Other current liabilities | 007 |

Total Liabilities (B) ' 230 |
Reserves of the Transferor company (C) i 1343 |

_Equity share capital of the Transferor company (D) | 11.27 |
Securities Premium of the Transferor company (E) : 210.79 |
Investment in the transferee company eliminated (F) 236.76 |
Net Balance transfer to Capital Reserve { C+D+E-F) 1.27

The above merger happened between the Holding and its one of the wholly owned Subsidiary "Junipcr'Green India Private
Limited" which had no impact on consolidated financial statement.

39. Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Operating Lease

Refer note 41 for lease related commitments.

(b) Capital commitments

Group has T 697.96 Lakhs capital commitment as on March 31, 2023 (net off advances). {March 31, 2022: T 11,404.58

Lakhs).

{c) Contingent Liabilities

Particulars
Performance Bank Guarantee issued by bank*
| Bid Bond Bank Guarantees issued by bank
| DSRA Bank Guarantee issued by bank**

March 31, 2023 |

March 31, 2022

1.767.50

3,893.60

5.575.00

330.00

2.362.00

1,808.73

Bank Guarantee issued by bank™***

16.26
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| Particulars | March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
| Bank Guarantee issucd by bank*** - 16.26
Bank Guarantee issued i:w bank e - 997.50
Bank Guarantee issued hv bank®***** | 821.50 .

| Others 2.55 255 |
Total | 10.528.55 7.048.64 |

* Issued by Bank in favor of DISCOM.

** Issued by Bank in favor of Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency and Catalyst Trusteeship (on behalf of
Project Lender - India Infra Debt Limited).

#*# Issued by Bank on account of land lease obtained for project.

¥ Issued by Bank in favor of Gujarat Energy Transmission Corporation Limited.

#* %% Issucd by Bank in favor of Central Transmission Utility of India Ltd.

40. Employee Benefit

(a) Defined contribution plan
The Group makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying
employees. The Group's contribution to the Employee Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner.

During the year Group has recognized the following amounts in the statement of profits and loss / capitalized under
project cost / capital work in progress,

| Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Employers® contribution to employee’s provident Fund
(includes Rs, 56,28 lakhs during the current year, previous year Rs. 213.94 165.97

119,78 Lakhs, capitalized under project cost / capital work in progress} |

(b) Defined benefit plan

Gratulity and other post-employment benefits

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets
a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. These benefits are
unfunded, and Group provides for liability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valuations.

Risks assoclated with Gratuity plan provisions
The Group is exposed to number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined
benefit plans and management’s estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

participants. An increase in the salary of the plan perticipants will increase the plan liability.

Interest rate risk
A decrease in interest rate in future years will increase the plan liability

Life expectancy risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of

plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan liability.
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Withdrawals Risk
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
valustions can impact the plan liability.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement profit and loss
account and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

Employee benefit expenses recognised in statement of profits and Loss / under project cost capital work in

progress (recognised in employee cost)

Gratuity
Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Current service cost 57.73 56.31
| Interest cost on benefit liability 12.28 7.14
| Actuarial{gain) / loss recognized in the year - 1.77 |
Benefit expens¢ recognized in statement of profit and loss 47.96 18.58
Benefit expense capitalized under project cost / capital work in 22.05 46.64
|_progress —
Employee benefit expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
| Gratuity
=| Syl March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Actuarial(gain) / loss recognized in the vear 16.78 | 261 |
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 16.78 2.61
comprehensive income ) |
Balance Sheet:
I Gratuity N
Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31 2022 |
Present value of defined benefit oblizition 248.59 | 161.81
| Total 24859 | 16181 |
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Gratuity
fisrticnlars | March31, 2023 | March31, 2022
| Present value of oblization as at the beginning 161.81 93.98
| Current service cost 57.72 | 56.31
Interest cost 12.28 714
Re-measurernent {or Actuarial) i gain) / loss 16.78 4.38 |
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 248.59 161.81 |
Current Liability {Short term) 1.41 1.14
Non-Current Liability { Long term) | . 24718 160.67

The principal assemptions used in determining gratulty benefit obligation for the Group’s plans are shown

below:
Particulars B - March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.53% 7.59%
| Employee turnover rate 5.00% 5.00%
Saliry escalation rate 10.00% | 10.00% |

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on
management’s historical experience.

As the Group does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value

of plan assets has not been presented.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as follows:

Particulars - March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a) Impact of the change in discount rate
_| Present value of oblization at the end of the 1 ear
a) | Impact due to increase of 1% (27.65) [18.57)
| b) |Impact due to decrease of 1% 33.20 22.37
| b) Impact of the change in salary increase 4
Present value of oblization at the end of the year
al Impact due to increase of 1% 22.56 15.83
b) | Impact due to decrease of 1% (20.46) (14.26)
 ¢) Impact of the change In stirition rate
Present value of ohlization at the end of the vecar
a) | Impact due to increase of 1% (649 [5.40)
b) | Impact due to decrease of 1% 7.27 6.03

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Weightage average duration of gratuity plan is - 18.12 years (March 31, 2022: 18.20 years)

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in fiture years:

| Particular March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
| Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 141 1.14
| Between 2 and 5 years 2022 | 18.89 |
Between 6 and 10 vears 13.00 4.63
Beyond 10 vears 213.96 137.15 |
41. Leases:

The Group has lcase contracts for leasehold propertics used in its operations. These lease contracts generally have lease
terms ranging from 3 years to 29 years and 11 months.

The Group has also certain leases with lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Group applies
the 'short term lease’ and leases of low value assets' recognition exemptions for these leases.
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a) Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

| Particulars | Leasehold Land Building Total
Net Balance as at March 31, 2021 = 5,401.49 112.77 5,514.26

| Additions during the ycar 7.336.04 | - 7,336.04
Depreciation for the year (355.82) (33.79) (389.61) |
Adiustment during the vear* 542.43 - 54243
Balance as at March 31, 2022 12,924.14 78.98 13,003.12

| Additions during the year 10,534.76 - | 10,534.76
Depreciation for the year (712.64) (30.92) | (743.56)
Adjustment during the year* 123.58 - 123,58
Balance as at March 31, 2023 22,869.84 48.06 22,917.90

* Adjustment on account of interest rate reassessment and revision on decommi'ssioning oT:ligation for leasehold land.

b) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Balance as at the beginning of the vear 10,607.27 4,177.85
On Leases committed during the vear 10,534.76 7,336.04
_Accretion of interests 1,242.83 | 597.66
Payments - — (2,781.79) (2,046.71) |
Adjustment Juring the vear 123.58 542.43 |
Balance as at the end of the vear 19,726.65 10,607.27
Current - 1 453.50 93.81
| Non-current | 19,273.15 10,513.46

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 45.

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is ranging from 8,10 % to 11.08% with maturity ranging from year 2053.

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the commissioned 560 MW solar project in
Maharashtra and Gujarat the Group has recognised a provision amounting to INR 3,680.48 lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR
2,653.16 lakhs) for decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on leased land., In determining the
fair value of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to
dismantle and remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The Group estimates that the costs
would be realised in 25 years’ time upon the expiration of the lease and PPA’s term. The provision is based upon current
cost estimates and has been determined on a discounted basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of
inflation basis on industry practice. The timing and amount of fiture expenditures are reviewed annually, together with
rate of inflation for escalation of current cost estimates and the interest rate used in discounting the cash flows.

¢) The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars B | Mareh 31,2023 | March 31,2022 |
Depreciation of rizht-of-use assets i 570.89 266.80
Interest exjrense on lease liabilities ] 922,54 446.31
| Expenses related to short term leases —— — 215.01 - 9782
Expenses relating to leases of Low value assets 246 | 2.27
| Total amount recoznised in the profit or loss for the year 1,710.90 | 813.30
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d) The following are the amounts capitalised in Project cost / Capital Work in Progress:

Particulars | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
_Depreciation of right-of-use assets 172.67 122.81
| Interest ¢xpense on lease liabilities 320.29 151.35
| Expenses related to short term leases 66.98 49.35
| Expemses relating to leases of Low value essets B i I - 3.53 |
Total amount capitalised in Project cost / Capital Work in Proyress ' 559,94 | 327.04 |

Total Group's total cash outflow for leases (including for short term and leases of low value assets) for the year ended
March 31, 2023 is INR 3,066.24 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 2,199.78 Lakhs).

Operating Segment:
The Group is having one reportable segment i.e., renewable energy hence disclosure requirement of the standard is not

applicable.

. Capital management

For the purpose of the Group capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Group capital management is to
maximize the shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans
and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

| Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

| Borrowings — | 2.13.337.81 1.70.058.62

| Add: Trade pavables o T700.67 323.36

| Add: Other current financial liabilities 5.369.58 44 425,17
Less: Cash and cash cquivalents _ 4.754.86 3.426.03
Net debts (A) - 214.653.20 |  21138L72
Total Equity (B) 78.297.65 | 79,193.95 |
Capital and net debt (C=A+B) ' 2.92.950.85 | ~2.90,575.67

| Gearing ratio (%) (D=A/C) | 7327% 72.75%

In order the achieve this overall objective, the capital management of the Group, amongst other things, aims to ensure that
they meet financials convents attached to interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define the capital structure
requirements.
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44. Fair value and Fair Value hierarchy

. Fair value
The following table shows the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair velue of Group’s financial assets,
other than those with carrying amount that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Fair value

| Mareh31, | March31,
2023 2022

Carrving Value

March 31, | March 31,
2023 2022

Particulars

FINANCIAL ASSETS
' Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Other Non current financial assets

1.824.23 _187.21 |  1.824.23 187.21 |

Financial Assets measured at fair value through
| OCI
Derivative Assets

8.13 | = 8.13 -

Financial assets measured at fair value through
_profit and loss
Investment in Mutual fund — Cuoted

1.960.10 | 25169 1960.10 |  251.69

FINANCIAL LIBILITES !

| Financial liabilities measured at fair value through
ocI o |
Derivative Liabilities _ N -1
Finanelal liabilities measured at amortised cost

_Borrowings

347.85 | -] 34785

2.13.337.81 | 1.70.058.62 | 2.13.337.81

_170058.62

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other current financial
assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilities (except Forward Contract Payable) approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

The fair value of financials assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchange in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale. The following method and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:

Quoted investment in mutual fund - The fair values of the mutual funds are derived from quoted market prices in active
markets.

Other-The fair value of remeining financial instruments is determined by using discounted cash flow model.

Derivative Liabilities- For hedge related effectiveness review and related valuation, details are presented in note 46.

b. Fair Value hierarchy

The judgement and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are (a) recognized at fair
value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair value are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed under accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows under the table.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statement are categorized with in the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
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Level 2 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
Level 3 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in

unobservable

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2023:

Date of

Particulars Valuation

Total

| Quoted prices
in active
markets

Significant
observable
inputs

Significant
unobservable
inputs

{Level 1)

(Level 2)

{Level 3)

FINANCTAL ASSETS

| Financial assets measured at
fair valuve through profit and
loss

Investment in mutual find -
quoted N .
Assefs for which Fair values are
disclosed

| March 31, 2023

1,960.10

1,960.10

| Other Non current financial assets = March 31. 2023

1,824.23

182423 |

Financial assets measured at
fair value throuzh OCI

Derivative Assets March 31. 2023

8.13 |

8.13

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 Liabilitles for which fair values
are disclosed
Borrowings

March 31. 2023

12,13.337.81 |

- 21333781 |

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2022;

Date of

Particulars | Valuatiom

Total

Quoted prices
in active
markets
iLevel 1)

| Significant
observable
__inputs |
iLevel 2)

Significant
unobservable
__imputs
(Level 3)

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets measured at
fair value through profit and
loss

Investment in mutual fund
| yuoted

| March 31, 2022

251.69

Ansets for which fair values are |
disclosed

Other Non current financial assets

'FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

March 31, 2022 |

187.21

| 18721 |

" Financial liability measured at
fair value through OCI

Derivative Liabiliry " March 31. 2022
Liabilities for which fair values

| _are disclosed

347.85

' 347.85

| Borrowings

March 31, 2022 | 1.70.058.62

1.70.058.62

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
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45. Financial risk management objective and policies

The Group principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance and support the Group operations. The Group principal financial assets comprise
investments, cash and bank balance, trade and other receivables that derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Group’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Group. The financial risk committee
provides assurance to the Group’s senior management that the Group’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate
policies and procedures and thet financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s
policies and risk objectives. It is the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be
undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized
below:

(D) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,

leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from their operating activities (primarily trade receivables)
and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

The Group assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categeries arrived on the basis of
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets. Low credit risk - Cash and cash equivalents, other
bank balances, investments, loans, trade receivables and other financial assets. Moderate credit risk / High credit risk -
Loans and other financial assets. Provigsion for expected credit loss is based on 12 month expected credit loss/lifetime
expected credit loss.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Group generally invests in deposits with
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment
in liquid mutual fund units. The loans primarily represent security deposits given for office premises. Such deposit will be
returned to the Group on return of premises as per the contract. The credit risk associated with such security deposits is
relatively low. Loan to related parties given for business purpose and moderate risk associated.

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the
consclidated Balance Sheet

| Particulars | March31.2023 | March31, 2022
Trade receivables 5.026.04 | 2.304.13 |
Security deposits 73923 | 35487

 Other current financial assets B - 154.60 | 245.94
Other Bank Balances 13.254.16 29.876.86
Investments 1.960.10 251.69

The Group uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Group uses a provision matrix to
compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables.

() Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities for the Group.

The Group has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for it’s short-term, medium term and long-
term funding requirement.
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Exposure to lquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The contractual cash
flow amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

* This includes Interest payable amount,

(i) Market risk

Conirsctual cash flows
Car Between one More
March 31, 2023 nm:f:tg D On Less than and five | than five Total
emand one year }
years years

Borrowings* | 213,337.81 - 29,867.77 102.001.40 | 248,955.06 | 380.824.23

Lease Liability 19.726.65 - 1,798.19 5221.67 | 62.453.31 69.473.17
| Trade payables 700.67 - 700.67 - - 700.67

Other current financial 5,369.58 - 5,369.58 - - 5,369.58

liabilities |

Total 239,134.71 - 37,736.21 | 107,223.07 | 311,408.37 | 456,367.65
* This includes Interest payable amount,

Conltrnctual cash flows
C Between
March 31, 2022 arryieg On Lessthan | B | nvorethan |
. Demand one year Siars five years

Borrowings* 1.70,058.62 | 76.894.24 49,741.18 | 1,.26.535.47 | 2.53,170.89

Lease Liability 10.607.27 774.34 2.724.07 | 39.566.30 | 43.064.71
Trade pavables 323.36 | - 323.36 - - 323.36

Other current financial 44,077.92 - 44,077.92 - -| 44,077.92

liabilities

Total 2,25,067.17 - | 1,22,069.86 $2,465.25 | 1,66,101.77 | 3,40,636.88 |

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected
by market risk inclnde borrowings and bank deposits.

(a) Foreign Currency Risk

The Group hes international transactions and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, Foreign exchange risk arises from recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the

Group’s functional currency.
Foreign currency risk exposure:
_Particular Currency March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
| Financial liabilities
Derivative liability (Derivative contract) UsD - | 347.85
Buvers Credit UsD 4,126.80 66.739.22
| Payable for property, plant and cquipment UsD 170.88 28.753.34
| Retention money payable USD | 117.01 34.80
Sensidvity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial
instruments,
Particular March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |
Increase by 5% (220.73) | 14.793.76) |
Decrease by 5% - 220.73 4.793.76
ZENENES
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(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate rigk is the risk that the feir value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
long-term obligation with floating interest rate

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the borrowings carrying floating rate of interest. This obligation
exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes as reported
to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments | March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings — from financial insﬁtutign" 3 10,551.94 | 1,03,319.40

Total | 10,551.94 1,03,319.40
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to & reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact
on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars |  March31,2023 | March31,2022
Increase/ (decrease] in interest on Borrowings* o

Increase by 0.50 % | 54.95 333.99
Decrease by 0.50 % | 154.95) 1333.99] |
*Note —

« The interest rate has been fixed @ 8.50% for three years for Juniper Green Field Private Limited, hence the group has

no interest rate risk on it's loans and borrowings for INR 62,130.81.

* The interest rate has been fixed @ 8.50% for three years for Juniper Green Three Private Limited, hence the group
has no interest rate risk on it's loans and borrowings for INR 75,252.32.

* The interest rate has been fixed @ 8.10% for three years for Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited, hence the group
has no interest rate risk on it's loans and borrowings for INR 36,513.30,

* The interest rate has been fixed @ 8.20% for five years for Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited, hence the
group has no interest rate risk on it's loans and borrowings for INR 24,762.64.

(¢) Price Risk

The Group’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVTPL. To manage the price risk
arising from investments in mutual funds, the Group diversifies its portfolio of assets.

Price risk exposure:
Particular | Mareh 31. 2023 March 31. 2022
Financial assets measured at fair value throuzh profit & Loss |
Investment in Mutual fund : 1.960.10 251.69
Semsitlvity analysis
Profit or loss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower prices of instruments on the Group's profit for the periods:
| Particulars - | March31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Increase by 5% 98.01 12.58
Decrease by 5% 198010  [12.58)
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46. Cash flow hedges

A. Risk management strategy

The Group uses hedging instruments as patt of its management of foreign currency risk. The risk being hedged is the
risk of potential gain/loss due to fluctuation in foreign currency rates. The use of forward contracts is covered by the
Group's overall strategy. The Group does not use forward for speculative purposes. As per the strategy of the Group,
import of capital goods shall be covered by hedge, considering the risks associated with the hedging of such capital
goods, which will effectively fix the liability of such imports and mitigates or climinate the financial and market risks
in India (the place of business of the Group).
Hedge ratio is the relationship between the quantity of the hedging instrument and the quantity of the hedged item. In
the given case, total payment expected vmder the highly probable transaction are hedged under the forward contracts
with the approximately equivalent amount and at the same dates. Hence the entity hedges 100% of its exposure on the
foture transaction and hedge considered highly effective on the basis of effectiveness test of highly probable future
purchase of capital assets and forward contact taken.

B. Other hedge related disclosures

() The maturity profile of hedging instrument is as follows:

Particulars ] Leu. than1l | 1-3 years | More than Total
Vear 3 years
31 March 2023
| Derivative Liability -
Forward contract (INR to USD hedge rate ¥ 1,817.25 - - 1,817.25
82.3400 — 82.3450)
Particulars | Lessthanl | 1-3 years | More than Total |
year 3 vears
| 31 March 2022 !'
Derivative Llnbilln - |
I Forward contract (INR to USD hedge rate ¥ 95,618.29 - - | 95,618.29
76.7130 — 78.0825] |

(ii) Inthe Group's hedge relationship, source of hedge ineffectiveness is credit risk of the counterparty or of the Group
and changes in timing of hedge transaction.

(m) The impact of the hedging instruments on the balance sheet is, a8 follows:

Total Fair Value / Carrying | Changes in value of hedging
Particulars Notional Amount of derivative instrument recognised in
| amount (linbility ) / assets OCI (Income) / expense
March 31, 2023 -
Derivative liabiliy ’
Foreign exchange forward contracts 1.817.25 8.13 189.73
March 31,2022 J— =
Derivative liability — |
| Forzign exchange forward contracts 95.618.29 | 1347.85) | 2.972.21}
()
e %
'ffi T
/\ ,\V
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47. Figures for the previous year are re-classified / re- grouped / re-arranged, wherever necessary.

48, Addition information pursuant to Para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of consolidated financial statements to

schedule IT companies Act, 2013 for the year ended March 31, 2023;

Nﬂ:’m hi;. m .u':u Share in profit and loss) Other comprehensive Total ui::::;glenm |
As % of A1 % of A1 % of ]
Name of the Entity As%of | ypin | conolidated | INRf | Comoldated | pop. | consolidated | o
consolidated |y, | “orofitand |  Lakhs other Lakhs Total Lakhs
net assets Toss comprehensive comprebensive
income income
Halding Company
Juniper Green Eniergy Private Limited 6.64% | 57196.11 36.52% 440,35 033% | 1.02 49.02% | -439.33
__ll|h1di_l_r.!r compinics
Urange Godi; Wind Power Privete Limited 0.43% | 33348 -0.80% 959 0.00% - -L.07% 959
Niszgrs Renewable Encryy Private Limited 12.39% | 9,697.86 -98.45% 1,187.15 007% | 022 -13247% | 1,187.37
Juniper Green Sigmu Private Limited 19.31% | 15,121,26 -167.25% |  2,016.66 052% | -1.62 -224.82% | 2,015.04
Juniper Green Throo Private Limited 30.71% | 24,039.23 153.79% | -1,854.18 039% | -121 206.99% | -1,855.39
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 26.74% | 20,935.58 151.28% | -1,824.12 100.51% | 311.08 168.81% | -1,513.03
Jusijer Green Gem Private Limited 0.00% 3.14 4.16% 50.18 0.00% 5.60% -50.18
Junipes Green Besm Private Limited 0.79% | 61844 3.09% 37.31 0.00% 416% | -37.81
| Tumip<: Green Stellar Private Limited 0.50% | 470.68 0.03% 0.35 0.00% 0.04% 0.35
Junipr Green Cosmic Private Limited 0.45% | 353,15 -0.16% 1.93 0.00% 0.22% 193
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 0.53% | 413.28 | 0.02% 0.9 | 0.00% 0.02% -0.19
Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited -0.01% 745 1393% |  -167.99 0.00% | 18.74% | -167.99
' Juniper Green Kite Private Limited 0.00% 0.55 0.08% 0.31 0.00% 0.03% 031 |
Junisi: Green Fnfimite Private Limited 0.00% 1.53 0.65% -7.85 0.00% 0.88% -7.85
Juniz«: Green Power Five Private Limited 0.14% 110.42 0.03% -0.41 0.00% - 0.05% | -0.41
Juniper Green Sigima $ix Private Limited’ 0.00% | 0.6 0.03% 034 000% | - 0.04% | 034
Junipe: Green India Eijht Private Limited 0.00% 0.21 0.19% -2.29 0.00% - 0.26% -2.29
Junijr Green Alpia Three Private Limited 0.00% 0.2 0.27% -3.3 0.00% i 0.37% 3.3
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited 0.00% 37|  002% 03 0.00% - 0.03% 0.3
Junipwr Green Gamma One Private Limited 0.01% | 10.1 0.20% | 2.4 0.00% 3 0.27% 2.4
Junipcr Green Gamma Two Private Limited 0.07% 53.15 0.19% 234 0.00% E 0.26% -2.34
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited 0.00% 1.06 0.45% -5.44 0.00% = 0.61% 5.44
Jusiper Green ETA Five Private Limited 0.00% 0.27 023% | 271 0.00% = 031% | -277
| Juniper Green iy Two Private Limited 099% | 77276 0.04% 049 0.00% -l oosk|  -0as
| Juniper Green Beem Eight Private Limited 0.00% 0.6 0.19% -2.34 0.00% | - 0.26% -2.34
| Juniper Green Bearn Six Private Limited 0.00% 0.22 | 0.19% -2,28 | 0,00% - 0.25% -2.28
| Junipe Green Spark Four Private Limited 000% | 21| 032% 39| 0.00% - 0.44% -3.9
Juniper Green Lizht Ten Private Limited 0.00% | 1.35 0.22% -2.65 | 0.00% - 0.30% -2.65
Juniper Green Fay One Private Limited 0.21% | 165.66 0.03% 0.34 0.00% . 0.04% 034 |
Juniper Green India Alyhi Private Limited 0.00% 0.21 0.19% -2.29 0.00% - 0.26% -2.29
Junircr Green Spurk Ten Private Limited 0.00% 35 0.12% 1.5 000% | - 0.17% | 1.5
Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited 0.00% 0.21 0.11% 129 | 000% - 0.14% |  -1.29
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited 0.00% 0.21 0.11% | -1.29 0.00% - 0.14% 129
Junips+ Green Sizma Eigh: Private Limited 0.00% | 1.16 0.03% 0.34 0.00% - 0.04% -0.34
' Grand Total 100.00% | 78,297.65 | 100.00% | -1,205.80 100.00% | 309.5 100.00% -896.3
| Nen-controlling Interest In Subsldiaries - = | - . -~
| Net Total 100.00% | 78,257.65 100.00% = -1,205.80 100.00% | 3095 100.00% 8963
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Addition information pursuant to Para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of consolidated financial statements to schedule
T companies Act, 2013 for the vear ended March 31, 2022: B

| Mol et | s potana oy | O e | Tl e
Name of the Entity " _Al%of As % of amcdpted il
cmtiss | DRl | comlite | D | | pan | R g
net assets ' mlﬂoum | ’ comprehensive ’ comprehensl o
| — | _income ve income
Holding Comjary . — |
Juniper Green Fncruy Private Limited 13.54% | 10724.70 459% | 12497 |  239% 52.03 3.56% |  182.00
Subsidiary compunies
Chrange Gadog Wind Power Private Lim.ited__ 0.41% 323.89 13.84% 376.76 0.00% =1l. 7.38% 376.76
| Nisagr Renewable Encrpy Private Limited | 1205% | 954613 31.62% 860.88 9.83% | 234.47 | 2144% | 109535
Jussipcr Green Sigina Private Limited _ 16.95% | 13424.35 | 4.67% | 121697 17.20% | 41231 31.90% | 1629.28
ﬂl[ptr Green Three Private Limited | 3256% 2577848 1.55% 42,17 62.80% 1,497.60 30.15% | 1.539.77 |
Juniper Green Field Private Limited | 24.28% | 19.230.78 423% | 11512 769% | 18330 |  584% | 29342
| Juniper Groen Gem Private Limited _001% | 1046 -0.07% | -2.02 0.00% - 004% | -2.02
| Juniper Green Beam Private Limitod 0.00% | 348 -0.02% -0.52 | 0.00% - -001% | 052 |
| Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited _ 009% | 6837 -0.10% -2.63 0.00% - 0.05% -2.63 |
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 0.08% & 6142 -0.09% -2.58 0.00% - -0.05% -2.58 |
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 0.01% 7.52 | 0.13% | -3.48 0.00% | - -0.07% -3.48
Juni+ Green Transmission Private Limited | 0.02% | 1262 -0.09% -2.38 | 0.00% - -005% | -2.38
Juniper Green Kite Private Limited 0.00% 0.87 | 0.00% -0.13 0.00% - 0.00% | -0.13 |
| Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited 000% | 088 | 0.00% 0.2 0.00% - 000% | 012
Grand Total 100.00% | 79.193.95 100.00% 2,723.01 100.00% | 1.384.71 100.00% | 5107.72
_' Non-controlling Interest In Subsidiaries ‘ ' - ; - N - = -
Net Total 100.00% | 79,193.95 100.00% | 2,723.01 100.00% | 2,384.71 100.00% | 510772

49. Authorisation of financial statements for issue
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the

Directors on September 22, 2023.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005

MCadE

1ansukhani Parag Agrawal
Py Director Director
- Membership No.: 502243 DIN 06990480 DIN 02463717
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: September 22, 2023

Prashant Pandia

Company Secretary
M. No. - F12077
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SHORTER NOTICE is hereby given that the 12" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited will be held on Saturday, 30 September, 2023 at 5:15 PM at F-9, First

Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka New Delhi-110075 to transact the following
businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 315 March 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company and to determine their remuneration.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution, as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(2) and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the *“Act”) read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, and other applicable provisions of
the Act (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), M/s.
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 001076N/N500013) be and is hereby appointed
as the next Statutory Auditor of the Company for the first term of five (5) consecutive years from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the Company to the conclusion of 17th Annual General
Meeting to be held in the year 2028 to audit the accounts of the Company up to the financial year ending
on March 31, 2028, at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the
Company and the Statutory Auditors from time to time.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. To appoini Mr. Devendra Singh (DIN: §7209457) as Director of the Company

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution, as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) Mr. Devendra Singh (DIN: 07209457), who was appointed as
Additional Director on March 23, 2023 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting,

and being eligible, be and is hereby appointed with effect from the date of this meeting as a Director of the
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary,
desirable or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

For and on behalf of
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

&

Prashant Pandia
(Company Secretary)
Date: September 23, 2023
Place: Gurugram

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1% Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: info@junipergreenenergy.com
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NOTES:

01. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and, on a poll,
to vote instead of himself and the Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Proxies, in order to be
effective, must be received in the enclosed Proxy Form at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than forty-eight (48) hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

02. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more
than ten percent of total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as
proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

03. A Corporate Member intending to send its authorised representatives to attend the Meeting in terms of
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorizing such representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the Meeting.

04. Members/Proxies/Authorised Representatives are requested to bring the attendance slips duly filled in for
attending the Meeting. Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested to write their client
ID and DP ID numbers and those who hold shares in physical form are requested to write their Folio Number
in the attendance slip for attending the Meeting.

05. The Registers, as required to be maintained by the Company in terms of the Companies Act, 2013, will be
available for inspection by members at the General Meeting. The audited standalone and consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Directors® Report, the Auditors’ Report
are enclosed with the notice.

06. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement, if any, will be kept
open for inspection at the Registered office & Corporate office of the company on all working days of the
company during normal business hours (10.00 AM to 5.00 PM) on ali working days except Saturdays, up to
and including the date of the meeting. These document shall also be made available for inspection at the
venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting.

07. Route-map to the venue of the Meeting is provided at the end of this Notice.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100D12011PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1% Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: info@junipergreenenergy.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT FOR THE PROPOSED RESOLUTION ACCOMPANYING THE
NOTICE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No: 3: To appoint Mr. Devendra Singh (DIN: 07209457) as Director of the Company

The Board of directors of the Company in the Board meeting held on March 23, 2023 has appointed Mr.
Devendra Singh as an Additional Director of the Company to hold office of the Director till the conclusion
of this Annual General Meeting.

In terms of the requirements of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 approval of the members of the
Company is required for regularization of Mr. Devendra Singh as Director of the Company.

Brief profile of Mr. Devendra Singh is given below for reference of the members and as stipulated under
Secretarial Standard-2 brief profile including name of companies in which he holds directorship and
membership/chairmanship of the Board committee, is provided in Annexure-1.

Mr. Devendra Singh has over 24 years’ extensive experience in the renewable energy business — EPC, project
development, management, execution, quality, operation, strategy, and business development. He is
designated as Board Member on several Juniper Group Companies. He is responsible for EPC, Project
Development & Management, Quality, and Implementation strategy. He is MBA in Operation Management
with electrical engineering background.

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of the Ordinary Resolution to appoint Mr. Devendra Singh
as Director of the Company. In light of above, you are requested to accord your approval to the Ordinary
Resolution as set out at Item No.3 of the accompanying Notice.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the proposed resolution except Mr. Devendra Singh to the
extent of his holding of class B equity shares in the Company.

For and on behalf of
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

s

Prashant Pandia
(Company Secretary)
Date: September 23, 2023
Place: Gurugram

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1% Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: info@junipergreenenergy.com



Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : U40100DL2011PTC228318

Name of the Company : Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered Office : F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza 1, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka,
New Delhi-110075

Corporate Office : Plot No. 18, 1st Floor, Institutional Area, Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-
122001

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail Id

[/We being the member(s) of the above named Company appoint:

Name Name
Address Address
E-mail Id E-mail Id
Signature: Signature:
or  failing

him ‘

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 12 Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday, 30 September, 2023 at 5:15 PM at F-9, First Floor,
Manish Plaza 1, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075 and at any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution | RESOLUTION PROPOSED OPTIONAL*
No.
Ordinary Resolution FOR AGAINST

1. To consider, approve and adopt the standalone and
consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended
315t March, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon

2. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company and to
determine their remuneration.
3. To appoint Mr. Devendra Singh (DIN: 07209457) as Director
of the Company
Signed this..........cccoeiiiie dayofi..cooveiiiiienininns 2023

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy

NOTE:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting

2. For the text of the Resolution, Explanatory Statements & Notes, if any, please refer to the Notice
convening the Annual General Meeting.

3. Itis optional to put “X” in the appropriate column against the Resolution indicated in the Box.




ATTENDANCE SLIP

Folio No./Client1d

DP 1d/Client ID*

Name of first named Member/Proxy/Authorised
Representative

Name of Joint Member(s), if any:

No. of shares held

I/ we certify that I/we am/are member (s)/proxy for the member(s) of the Company.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 12 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Saturday, 30 September, 2023 at 5:15 PM at F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza 1, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector-
10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075:

Signature

NOTES:

1. Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue.

2. - Only Members/Proxy Holders/Authorised Representatives are allowed to attend the Meeting.

3. Authorized Representatives of Corporate members shall produce proper authorization issued in their
Sfavour.

* Applicable only in case where shares held in electronic form
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Annexure-I

Age 50 years
Qualification MBA in Operation Management with electrical engineering
p 2
Experience He has over 24 years’ experience in the renewable energy

business — EPC, project development, management, execution,
quality, operation, strategy, and business development.

Terms and conditions of appointment or | Not Applicable as Appointed as Non-Executive Director.
re-appointment

Details remuneration Not Applicable
Date of first appointment on the Board | 23.03.2023
shareholding in the company 460 Class B Equity Shares

Relationship with other Directors, | None
Manager and other Key Managerial
Personnel of the company

The number of Meetings of the Board | Not Applicable in FY 2022-23
attended during the year (considered | 8 Board Meeting up to date of this Notice.
meetings held after the appointment)

Other Directorships Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited
Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited
Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited
Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited
Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited
Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited
Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited
Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited
Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited
Juniper Green India Six Private Limited

m. Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited

mRTTT @M e fe o

Membership/ Chairmanship of | Nil
Committees of other Boards
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23
Dear Shareholders,

The Directors present the twelfth Director’s Report of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
(the Company or JGEPL) on the business and operations of the Company along with the
audited financial statements (standalone and consolidated) for the financial year ended March
31, 2023. The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has been referred
to wherever required.

Financial Performance
The audited financial statements (standalone and consolidated) of the Company as on March
31, 2023, are prepared in accordance with the relevant applicable Ind AS and the provisions of

the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™).

The summarized financial highlight is depicted below:

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars Standalone Consolidate
2022-23 L 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22

Revenue from Operations 2,459.03 2,453.31 | 33,130.68 | 17,052.98
Other Income 760.74 1,080.17 3,117.89 1,863.93
Total Revenue | 3,219.77 | 3,533.48 | 36,248.57 | 18,916.91
Total Expenditure | 3,034.22 | 2,542.04 | 37,264.29 | 15,209.97
Profit/Loss before tax 185.55 991.44 | (1,015.72) | 3,706.94
Profit/Loss after Tax | 13931 901.50 | (1,205.80) | 2,723.01
Other comprehensive income/loss 1.02 57.03 309.50 2,384.71
for the year, net of tax |
Total Comprehensive income/loss 140.33 958.53 (896.30) | 5,107.72
for the year, net of tax |

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this
report.

State of Affairs/Operational Highlights (Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Performance)

Your Company along with its subsidiaries (“Juniper Group”) engaged in the business of setting
up, operating, maintaining, generation, supply and sale of power in the field of renewable
energy. Juniper Group has 560 MW (AC Capacity) operational Solar power project in the state
of Maharashtra and Gujarat,

As atend of March 31, 2023, the Company is operating and maintaining 30 MW (AC Capacity)
Solar Power Project in the state of Maharashtra and selling electricity generated from the

project to Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited.

Dividend and Reserve

The Board of Directors, keeping in view the growth opportunities that your Compan @e“ 8s,
currently engaged with, have not recommended any dividend for the year under review. Y

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited =

Registered office: F-9. First Floor. Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU. Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1 Floor. Institutional Area, Sector 32. Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax ~91-124 4739666
CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318 Email: cs(ejunipergreenenergy.com
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Your Company has not transferred any amount to reserve in the Balance Sheet for the year
under review,

Holding/Subsidiaries/Associates/Joint Venture

As at end of March 31, 2023, your Company is subsidiary of Juniper Renewable Holdings Pte.
Ltd. (a company registered in Singapore). The Company has 33 subsidiaries as at end of March
31, 2023. The details of subsidiaries including the companies which became or ceased to be a
subsidiary during the year are as below:

1) Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited

2) Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

3) Juniper Green Field Private Limited

4) Juniper Green Three Private Limited

5) Juniper Green Gem Private Limited

6) Juniper Green Beam Private Limited

7) Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited

8) Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited

9) Juniper Green Beta Private Limited

10) Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited

11) Juniper Green Kite Private Limited

12) Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited

13) Juniper Green India Private Limited (4s per Hon 'ble NCLT order dated 08.09.2022. Juniper Green
India Private Limited has been merged with the Company with the appointed date as 1 April 2021)

14) Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited

15) Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 5. 2022)

16) Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 5, 2022)

17) Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 5, 2022)

18) Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 7, 2022)

19) Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 7, 2022)

20) Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 7, 2022)

21) Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 7, 2022)

22) Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited awvholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 7. 2022)

23) Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 7. 2022)

24) Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 8. 2022)

25) Juniper Green Beam Fight Private Limited pwholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 8, 2022)

26) Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 8, 2022

27) Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 8, 2022)

28) Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 8, 2022)

29) Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 8, 2022)

30) Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 11, 2022)

31) Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 13. 2022)

32) Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 13. 2022)

33) Juniper Green India Six Private Limited (wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 15, 2022)

34) Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited (whotly owned subsidiary incorporated on July 19. 2022)

The Company does not have any Associate or Joint Venture as at the end of March 31, 2023.
Report on performance and financial position of the subsidiaries
a. Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company,/jgn En@

operating and maintaining 70 MW (AC capacity) Solar Power Project in the st
Maharashtra.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited S F

Registered office: F-9. First Floor. Manish Plaza-1. Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka. New Delhi-110075
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CIN: U40100DL201 IPTC228318 Email: cstajunipergreenenergy.com



_ JUNIPER

ﬂl Green Energy

b. Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company is operating
and maintaining 120 MW (AC capacity) solar power project in state of Gujarat.

¢. Juniper Green Field Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company, have
successfully commissioned 150 MW (AC capacity) solar power project in state of
Maharashtra and is operating and maintaining the project.

d. Juniper Green Three Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company, is operating
and maintaining 120 MW (AC capacity) solar power project in state of Gujarat.

e. Juniper Green Beam Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company is developing
70 MW Wind Power Project in the state of Gujarat. This project was awarded to the
Company vide Letter of Intent (“LoI”) dated 07.10.2022 issued by Gujarat Urja Vikas
Nigam Limited.

f.  Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company is
engaged in the business of setting up, operating, generation, supply and sale of power in
the field of renewable energy. The Company will undertake and develop a 75 MW Solar
power in the state of Maharashtra.

g. Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited and Juniper Green Beta Private Limited, wholly
owned subsidiary companies are engaged in the business of setting up, operating,
generation, supply and sale of power in the field of renewable energy and are in the process
of implementing renewable energy projects in the state of Rajasthan,

The Company provides adequate financial support to the subsidiary companies, wherever
required, to continue their operations. Other subsidiary companies are exploring available
opportunities to set-up and develop renewable energy project.

Additionally, the Company has been awarded 50 MW & 70 MW Wind Power Projects in
the state of Gujarat.

The information on the highlights of performance of the subsidiaries and their contribution
to the overall performance of the company during the period under report are discussed in
the consolidated financial statement and same is in compliance with the applicable
accounting standards.

A statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary and
associate companies, as applicable, prepared pursuant to section 129 (3) of the Act, in
Form AOC-1 is annexed to this report as “Annexure-1".

Amalgamation/ Arrangement

Pursuant to Sections 230-232 and other relevant provisions of the Act read with the Rules made
thereunder a Scheme of Amalgamation of Juniper Green India Private Limited (“Transferor
Company”) with Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (“Transferee Company™) was filed

before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench. The Appointed Date as per the

Scheme of Amalgamation is 1 April 2021 or such other date as the Hon’ble NCLT may
approve. Hon’ble NCLT has approved the merger vide order dated 08.09.2022 and the certified

copy of the order was filed with the Registrar of Companies for registration and the Transferoe o E o Eng
Company stand dissolved. This scheme effect has been taken in the books of accounts o "
Company. /

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited \f” *
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Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Board Meetings were held as and when required and the notice of meeting had been
circulated to the Directors in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure
meaningful participation in the meetings. However, in case of special and urgent business, the
meetings were called at shorter notices, as permitted by law.,

The Board met sixteen times on 11-Apr-22, 26-Apr-22, 27-May-22, 01-Jul-22, 06-Jul-22, 01-
Aug-22, 22-Aug-22, 07-Sep-22, 09-Sep-22, 21-Sep-22, 19-Oct, 22, 16-Nov-22, 16-Dec-22,
05-Jan-23, 14-Feb-23 and 23-Mar-23. The maximum interval between any two meetings did
not exceed 120 days. Also wherever necessary, the Company has held meeting through audio
visual means.

Changes in directors and key managerial personnel

At the end of March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors and key managerial personnel of the
Company comprises of?

a) Mr. Hemant Tikoo, Director

b) Mr. Arvind Tiku, Director

¢) Mr. Sanjay Bakliwal, Director

d) Mr. Naresh Mansukhani, Whole- time Director
€) Mr. Parag Agrawal, Whole- time Director

f) Mr. Devendra Singh, Additional Director

g) Mr. Prashant Pandia, Company Secretary

During the period under review, the following changes took place in office of director of the
company:

a) Mr. Devendra Singh (Appointed as Additional Director w.e.f. 23 March 2023)

During the period under review, there was no other change in the office of directors or KMP of
the Company.

Change in the nature of business

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the reporting financial
year.

Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements and Risk
management

The Company has well defined and adequate Internal Control System, commensurate with size,

scale and complexity of its operation. The internal financial controls are adequate and are
operating effectively so as to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business operation,
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial
disclosures. The statutory auditor had regularly reviewed these systems. As per the assessment,

there are no major concerns and controls are strong. Report of Statutory auditor on the Internal
Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(“the Act”) forms part of Audit report on the financial statement for the period ended on Mar el En@
31, 2023.

x\\PEf
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The internal audit of the Company was entrusted to M/s Jha Yadav & Co, Chartered
Accountants. The main thrust of internal audit was to test and review controls, appraisal of risks
and business processes, as also benchmarking controls with the best industry practices.

The Company has put in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various
risks to key business objectives. Risks are identified through a consistently applied
methodology. The Board of Directors has oversight in the areas of financial risks and control
and is also responsible to frame, implement and monitor the risk management plan and ensuring
its effectiveness.

Directors’ responsibility statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge
and ability, state the following:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements (standalone and consolidated),
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgements
and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit
and loss of the Company for that period;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements (standalone and consolidated), have been prepared on
a going concern basis; and

e) that proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were
in place and were adequate and operating effectively.

Secretarial standards

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of
Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

Share Capital

As on March 31, 2023, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 25,00,20,000/-
(Rupees Twenty Five Crores and Twenty Thousand only) divided into 2,50,00,000/- (Two
Crore TFifty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each and 2,000 (Two
Thousand) Class B Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. The issued, subscribed
and paid-up share capital of the Company is Rs. 13,80,72,430/- comprising of 1,38,05,243
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- cach and 2,000 Class-B Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. During the
Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has not issued Equity Shares with differential rights,
Sweat Equity Shares and Employee Stock Options.

Statutory Auditor and Auditor’s report
The statutory auditor’s report (including the Consolidated Financial Statements) does r/(q«: /“

contain any qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks or disclaimer. The Auditors h
not reported any fraud under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Act.

q 0 s O
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1. Plot No. 7 MLU., Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1** Floor, Institutional Area. Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act read with rules made thereunder, as
amended from time to time, S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN:
301003E/E300005), the existing statutory auditor of the Company has completed their term
under Section 139 (2) and shall not be eligible for re-appointment as auditor in the Company
for five years from the completion of this term.

Accordingly, The Board recommended to appoint M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered
Accountants (FRN: 001076N/N500013) as next Statutory Auditor on rotation basis, for first
term of 5 (five) consecutive years to hold the office from the conclusion of 12" Annual General
Meeting of the Company to the conclusion of 17" Annual General Meeting to be held in year
2028 in accordance with provisions of section 139(2) of the Act. Appropriate matter seeking
members’ approval to the appointment and remuneration of M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
as the Statutory Auditors forming part of the Notice convening AGM of the Company.

Secretarial Auditor

M/s Manisha Gupta & Associates, Company Secretary in practice was appointed as Secretarial
Auditor of the Company to conduct Secretarial Audit for FY 2022-23. The secretarial auditor’s
report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks or disclaimer. The
Secretarial Auditor has not reported any fraud under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Act.
Secretarial audit report is attached to this report as Annexure II.

Internal Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act read with rules made thereunder M/s Jha
Yadav & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 327725E) was appointed as Internal Auditor of
the Company to conduct Internal Audit for the financial year 2022-23. The report does not
contain any qualifications, adverse remarks, or disclaimers.

Cost records

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, your Company was not required to maintain cost
records for the FY 2022-23.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year, covered under Chapter V of the
Act.

Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

The Company’s CSR activities are aligned to the requirements of Section 135 of the Act. The
brief outline of the CSR policy of the Company and the initiatives undertaken by the Company
on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure III of this report in the format
prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee is not required to be constituted in view of the fact that CSR
obligations for the Financial Year 2022-23 is less than Rs. 50 lakhs. Accordingly, all duties a

responsibilities of the CSR Committee was entrusted with the Board of Directors. @
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During the year the Company spent an amount of Rs. 1,80,000 (Rupees One Lakh Eighty
Thousand only) in CSR Projects. The implementation of CSR Projects was completed before
March 31, 2023.

Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption
and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Conservation of Energy:

As the Company is engaged in the business of electricity generation from renewable
energy sources, it continues to take steps to conserve and optimize the use of energy at its
own premises and facilities by following prudent industry practices. Capital intensive steps
have been taken by the company like deploying semi/automatic waterless solar module
cleaning system, various kind of testing equipment's provided at sites, uses of LED lamps,
control & monitoring systems, etc., These initiatives have multi-fold impact results in
conservation of energy, uses alternative sources of energy and reduces CO; emissions.

Technology Absorption:

The Company is focused on deploying innovative commercial technologies to increase
overall business efficiencies. We have an experienced in-house technology, engineering
& design team which evaluates the latest technological trends and developments. Most of
the evaluated technologies are already deployed in our projects like inverters, solar
modules, semi/automatic waterless solar module cleaning systems, state of art data
gathering and monitoring systems which helps to monitor the entire portfolio by the in-
house team of plant technicians, engineers and subject matter experts. All these efforts
have helped to increase performance and reduce opex and capex expenditure.

Foreign exchange earnings in terms of actual inflows and foreign exchange outgo in terms
of actual outflows for financial year ending March 31, 2023 was nil and Rs. 21.81 Lakh
respectively.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186:

The provisions of Section 186 of the Act (except sub-section 1 of section 186) are not
applicable to the Company as it is established with the object of and is engaged in the business
of providing of infrastructural facilities as provided in Schedule VI of the Act. The particulars
of loans, guarantee and investments, if any, made during the year under review are disclosed
in the financial statements.

Downstream Investment

The Company has made downstream investments of Rs. 1888.00 Lakh during the financial
year under review. The Company is in compliance with the FDI policy, FEMA Rules and
Regulations with respect to the downstream investment made by the Company being the first
level Indian company. The Statutory Auditors have also certified in this regard.

Transaction with related parties

There are no such contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act during the financial year under review.
Further, disclosure as per applicable accounting standard, with respect to transactions wit
related parties have been provided in the financial statements.
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Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and company’s operations in future:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which would impact the going concern status and the Company’s future operations.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has in place necessary mechanism for employees and directors to report
concerns about unethical behaviour. No complaints received during the year under review.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

The Company continues to follow a robust anti-sexual harassment policy on ‘Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace’ in accordance with
The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013 (‘POSH’) and Rules made thereunder. Internal Complaints Committee has been set-up
to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment at various workplaces in
accordance with POSH. All employees, including those of subsidiaries (permanent,
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this Policy. The Policy is gender neutral.

No complaints received in the calendar year and the year under review.
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Form-MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant fo Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the
Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) ‘Rules, 2014]
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH, 2023

To

The Members

JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: - U40100DL2011PTC228318)

F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot no. 7
MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka

New Delhi 110075

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by JUNIPER GREEN
ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called the ‘company’). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2023 ('Audit
Period') complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent. in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2023
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made
thereunder;

(iif) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1979 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder fo the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’):-Not Applicable
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acqujsi

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable 5
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India [lssue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Renefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021-Not Applicable; .

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008-Not Applicable;

(il The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act,
2013 and dealing with client; Not Applicable

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021-Not Applicable; Not Applicable '

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018-Not Applicable; Not Applicable

(vi) | further report that, | have also referred the following laws. specifically
applicable on the Company having regard to the nature of Industry in which
company is operating:-

(a) The Electricity Act, 2003

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors and Secretarial
‘Standard on General Meetings as issued and revised thereof by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI"). '

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidélines, Standards, etc. Qs mentioned above.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Whole-time Directers
and Non-Executive Directors. There was no change in Key managerial personnel.
Further following changes took place in the office of Board of Directors.

1. Mr. Devendra Singh appointed as additional director w.e.f. 23 March 2023.

Adequate notices were given to all directors fo schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and generally detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance
except in case of special and urgent business, where the meetings were called at
shorter notices, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.




Manisha Gupta MANISHA GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
B. Com (H), L.L.B, FCS COMPANY SECRETARIES
WZ-1003, lind Floor, Rani Bagh, Delhi-110034
Ph: - 011-45053912 }
Mobile: - 9911662021,9911433045
E-mail : manisha.pcs@gmail.com

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to mbni’ror‘; and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| futher report that during the audit period the company has no specific
events/actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

For Manisha Gupta & Associates
(Company Secretaries)

\ h\a.m{? Gupta

Date; -22nd September, 2023 Practicing Co%ﬁ"ﬁ“ﬂ?}\; ecretary

Place: - Delhi Mem. No. F6378

UDIN: -FO06378E001065645 CP No. 6808
Note:-

1. This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed
as' Annexure A' and forms an integral part of this report.



Manisha Gupta MANISHA GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
B. Com (H), L.L.B, FCS COMPANY SECRETARIES

To

WZ-1003, lind Floor, Rani Bagh, Delhi-110034
Ph: - 011-45053912

Mobile: - 9911662021,9911433045

E-mail : manisha.pcs@gmail.com

‘ANNEXURE A’

The Members
JUNIPER GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN:

- U40100DL2011PTC228318)

F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot no. 7
MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka
New Delhi 110075

My report of even date is to be read along with this letfer.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of
the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on our audit. '

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate fo
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes
and practices | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events
etc.Further, my verification fo the compliance of the laws specifically fo the
Company are limited to test check on random basis without going into the
detailed technical scrutiny.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is - fhe responsibility of management. My
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the company. -

Adnishts

Practicing Company-Secretary
Mem. No. F6378

CP No. 6808

Date: -22nd September, 2023
Place: - Delhi
UDIN: -FO06378E001065645
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[Annexure -ITI]

1  Brief outline on CSR Policy of the : The CSR Policy of the Company aims to
Company contribute towards sustainable development of
the society and environment to make planet a
better place for future generations. The CSR
Policy is formulated in accordance with the
provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act”) and rules made thereunder as
amended from time to time and other applicable
laws to the Company.

The Company invests in the activities enlisted in
the CSR Policy individually. The CSR projects
undertaken by the Company are within the broad
framework of Schedule VII to the Act.
2 Composition of CSR Committee : The CSR Committee is not constituted as the
amount to be spent by the Company under sub-
section (5) of Section 135 of the Act does not
exceed Rs. 50 Lakh in any financial year in
accordance.
3  Provide the web-link(s) where Not applicable
Composition of CSR Committee, CSR
Policy and CSR Projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of
the company
4  Provide the executive summary along Not applicable
with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment
of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

5  (a) Average net profit of the company as 84,80,710
per sub-section (5) of section 135.
(b) Two percent of average net profit of 1,69,615
the company as per sub-section (5) of
section 135
(¢) Surplus arising out of the CSR Nil
Projects or programmes or activities of
the previous financial years.
(d) Amount required to be set-off for the Nil
financial year, if any.
(¢) Total CSR obligation for the 1,69,615
financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)].

6  (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both 1,80,000

Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing

Project).

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Nil
Overheads.

(¢) Amount spent on Impact Nil
Assessment, if applicable.

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial 1,80,000

Year [(a)+(b)+H(c)].
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(i) %

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the
Financial Year: '

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund
Amount Unspent CSR Account as per specified under Schedule VII as per
Spent for the subsection (6) of section 135. second proviso to sub-section (5) of
Financial section 135.
Year. (in
Rs.)
Amount. Date of transfer Name of the | Amount. Date of
: Fund transfer.
1,80,000 \ Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. No. Particular | Amount (in Rs.) o
1) ) 3
i Two percent of average net profit of the company as | 1,69,615
per sub-section (5) of section 135
ii. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1,80,000
iii. Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] | 10,385
iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or | Nil
programmes or activities of the previous Financial
Years, if any
v. Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial | 10,385
Years [(ii1)-(iv)] |
|

7 Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:
Q) 2) 3) C)) ) (6) @) 8)
Sl | Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount Deficie
No. | Financial |transferred to| Amount in | Spent in |transferred to|remaining to| ncy, if

Year(s) |Unspent CSR| Unspent the a Fund as | be spent in any
Account CSR Financial specified succeeding
under Account Year (in under Financial
subsection (6) under Rs) Schedule VII |Years (in Rs)
of section 135| subsection as per second
(in Rs.) [(6) of section proviso to
135 (in Rs.) subsection (5)
of section 135,
if any
NA
Total

spent in the Financial Year:

O Yes

M No
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If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

| SI. No. ‘ Short Pincode | Dateof | Amount | Details of entity/ Authority/
| particulars | of the creation | of CSR beneficiary of the registered owner
of the property | amount
property or spent
or asset(s) | asset(s)
[including
complete
address
and
location of
the
property] N
CSR Name | Registered
Registration address
Number, if
| applicable B
|

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal
Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable
property as well as boundaries)

9 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per

subsection (5) of section 135. — N. A.

For and on behalf of the board

Fonh O

Mr. Naresh Mansukhani
(Whole time Director)
DIN: 06990480

Mr. Parag Agrawal
(Whole time Director)
DIN: 02463717

Add: B-39 Jangpura Extension,

S-297, 2nd Floor, Uppal South End

New Delhi-110014 Sector-49, Sohna Road Gurgaon
122018
™y
Place : Gurugram \é‘/
Date : 22 September 2023
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Part “A”;: Subsidiaries
{Information in respect of each subsidiary has been presented with amounts in Rs. in Lakhs)

Form AQOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

* Represents date of incorporation

# Represents date of acquisition

" Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s veporting period
™ Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.
™" Reported where non-current investment.
" Extent of shareholding has been provided and shall be read with period of relationship.

SI. No. | Particular Details -
1 SL No.. 1 2 3 | 4 ' 5 _ 6 7 8 u
2 Name of the | Nisagra  Renewable | Juniper Green Juniper Green Field | Juniper  Green | Juniper Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper Green
subsidiary Energy Private | Sigma Private Private Limited Three Private | Gem Private | Beam Private | Stellar Private | Cosmic Private
| Limited Limited o Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited
3 Date = since  when 27 Janua 23 August
subsidiary was 02 July 2018# 01 March 2019* 01 January 2020* 2020*ry 02 July 2020* 17 August 2021* 2021 % 25 August 2021%*
| acyuired B
| 4 Reporting period” - - - - - B i
| 5 Reporting currency”™ - - - - -
| 6 Share capital 7.504.00 7,205.00 10,737.00 13,130.00 13.00 4.00 96.00 74.00
7 Other Equity 2,260.79 2,895.37 -1,688.40 -2,107.69 -52.72 -37.83 -2.98 -0.65 |
8 Total assets 37,291.92 57,775.15 90,080.58 1,07,387.68 5.78 787.75 2,940.06 2,007.66
9 Total Liabilities 27,527.13 47,674.78 81,031.98 96,365.37 45.50 821.58 2,847.04 1,934.31
10 Investments™ - - - - - - - -
t Turnover  (including 6,577.50 8,888.30 6,999.59 11,122.11 - - - 3.04
| other income) =
12 ProfitlLoss)  before 1,467.29 2,073.15 -3,002.29 -3,256.51 -50.18 -37.31 -0.35 2.70
- taxation
13 | Tax expense
(including pertaining |
to earlier years and 372.52 525.48 -378.61 -381.79 - - - 0.77
deferred tax
expense/credit) |
14 | Profitloss)  afier 1,094.77 1,547.67 2,623.68 2,874.72 50.18 3731 035 1.93
— taxation B
15 Proposed Dividend - - - - - | - P -
16 Extent of : '
Lo 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% | 100.00%
shareholding (%) = I |

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
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"SI | Particular Details
| No. | . ~ i
1 | SL.No. _ 9 10 11 12 13 14 | 15 16
2 | Name of the subsidiary | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper ~ Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green
Beta Private | Transmission Kite Private | Infinite Private | Power Five | Sigma Six Private | India Eight | Alpha Three
| - | Limited Private Limited Limited Limited Private Limited Limited a Private Limited Private Limited
3 Date since when subsidiary ® 09 February 11 February N " # ik
was acgjiired | 08$ober 2021 | 13 January 2022 | 2022% 2002 J 05 July 2022 05 July 2022 | 05 July 2022 07 July 2022
4 Reporting period” : 13 January 2022 - | 09 February 2022 | 11 February 2022 | 05 July 2022 - 31 | 05 July 2022-31 | 05 July 2022 - 31 | 07 July 2022 - 31
| 31 March 2023 | -31 March 2023 | -31 March 2023 March 2023 March 2023 March 2023 March 2023
5 Reporting currency”™
6 | Share capital 11.00 40.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
7 Other Equity -3.67 -170.37 -0.44 -1.97 -0.41 -0.34 -2.29 -3.30
8 Total assets 2,147.90 _ 7.82 0.75 1.85 438.92 0.85 0.40 0.39
9 | Total Liabilities 2,140.57 138.19 0.19 : 8.82 438.33 0.19 1.69 2.69
10 | Investments™ - - - - 3 . - -
11| Turnover (including other 0.27 ) ) ) } ) ) )
income) ) | B .
12| Profit{Loss) pEfote -0.12 -170.37 -0.44 -1.97 -0.41 -0.34 -2.29 -3.30
taxation - | |
13 Tax expense (including
pertaining to earlier years 007 ) } ) § ) } )
and deferred tax ’
{ expense/credit) | | _ ol
14 | Profit/(Loss) after taxation -0.19 -170.37 -0.44 -7.97 -0.41 -0.34 -2.29 -3.30
15 Proposed Dividend ' . - - - ) - . -
et sharcholding |09 002 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
L S 1 | .

* Represents date of incorporation

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned. if different from the holding company’s reporting period
™ Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.
" Reported where non-current investment.
Extent of shareholding has been provided and shall be read with period of relationship.

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza- I, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL2011PTC228318
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| SL.No. | Particular Details
1 | SL No. 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
2 Name of the subsidiary Juniper Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper  Green | Juniper Green | Juniper  Green
Theta Five | Gamma One | Gamma Two | Beta Six Private | ETA Five Private | Ray Two Private | Beam Eight | Beam Six Private
| | Private Limited | Private Limited | Private Limited Limited | Limited Limited Private Limited Limited
3 Ezgeasc‘:ﬁfrgihe“ subsidiary | 7 .1y 2022+ 07 July 2022* 07 July 2022* 07 July 2022* 07 July 2022* 08 July 2022* 08 July 2022* 08 July 2022*
| 4 | Reporting period” 07 July 2022 -31 | 07 July 2022 -31 | 07 July 2022-31 | 07 July 2022 -31 | 07 July 2022 -31 | 08 July 2022 -31 | 08 July 2022 -31 | 08 July 2022 - 31
[ March 2023 March 2023 March 2023 March 2023 March 2023 March 2023 March 2023 March 2023
| 5 | Reporting currency™
|6 ' Share capital 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
7 | Other Equity -0.30 -2.40 -2.34 -5.44 -2.77 -0.49 -2.34 -2.28
8 | Total assets 3.89 18.83 54.13 1.68 0.39 3.291.80 0.35 0.40
9 Total Liabilities 3.19 20.23 5547 6.12 2.16 3,291.29 1.69 1.68
| 10 Investments™” - - - - - . - -
11 | Turnover (including other ) ) ) ) ) ) ) __ g
income) B B
12 Profit/(Loss) before -0.30 -2.40 -2.34 -5.44 2.77 -0.49 -2.34 -2.28
| taxation
13 Tax expense (including
pertaining to earlier years ) ; } } } ) ) :
and deferred tax
o expense/credit) B - N N
14 Profit/(Loss) after taxation -0.30 2.40 -2.34 -5.44 2.77 -0.49 2.34 -2.28
[ 15 Proposed Dividend - - - - . ; ; .
100 | Fen of sharcholding | 100, 00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
| (Yo
* Represents date of incorporation

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company s reporting period
" Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.
" Reported where non-current invesiment.
" Extent of shareholding has been provided and shall be read with period of relationship.

o . ] ]
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SI. No. | Particular Details
1 SI. No. 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33
2 Aame of the subsidiary Juniper  Green | Juniper Green | Juniper Green ;;Jgil;)er g{eﬁz Juniper  Green it;n;l;;er G;Zir; Juniper  Green | Juniper Green | Orange Gadag
Spark Four | Light Ten | Ray One Private Private P Spark Ten Prigvate India Six Private | Sigma  Eight | Wind Power
Private Limited | Private Limited Limited .. Private Limited .. Limited Private Limited | Private Limited
Limited Limited
: gztseai}:l‘fﬁ:(’ih"‘“ subsidiary | ¢ 510 2022% | 08 July 2022% | 08 July 2022% | 11 July 2022% | 13 July 2022* | 13 July 2022% | 15 July 2022* | 19 July 2022% | 26-Sep-2018#
4 Reporting period 08 July 2022 - | 08July2022- | 08July2022- | ! gf“gﬁgﬁ T | 13 July 2022 - 13;{”&:&? T 15July2022- | 19 July 2022 - )
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 2023 31 March 2023 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
5 Reporting currency -
6 Share capital 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
7 Other Equity -3.90 -2.65 -0.34 -2.29 -1.50 -1.29 -1.29 -0.34 332.48
8 Total assets 2.29 1.53 316.44 0.39 3.88 0.44 0.39 1.34 337.27
9 Total Liabilities 5.19 3.18 315.78 1.68 4.38 0.73 0.68 0.68 3.79
10 Investments™" - _ _ - R _ - R R
11 Turnover (including other ) ) ) ) . ) ) ) 17.64
income) .
12 Profit/(Loss) before -3.90 2.65 -0.34 2229 -1.50 -1.29 -1.29 -0.34 14.20
taxation
13 Tax expense (including
pertaining to earlier years ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) 4.61
and deferred tax )
. expense/credit)
14 Profit/(Loss) after taxation -3.90 -2.65 -0.34 -2.29 -1.50 -1.29 -1.29 -0.34 9.59
15 Proposed Dividend - - - - - - - - R
16 ?,}“)em"i of  shareholding 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
0

* Represents date of incorporation
# Represents date of acquisition
Further. pursuant to Sections 230-232 and other relevant provisions of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder a Scheme of Amalgamation of Juniper Green India Private Limited (“Transferor Company”)
with Juniper Green Energy Private Limited (“Transferee Company’') was filed before the Hon 'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench at New Delhi on 23 March 2021. The Appointed Date as per the
Scheme of Amalgamation is 1 April 2021 or such other date as the Hon ble NCLT may approve. Hon’ble NCLT has approved the merger vide order dated 08.09.2022. This scheme effect has been taken in the
books of accounts.

2> Ene,
" Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s reporting period 6

e - , s . ) e -0
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. o <
" Reported where non-current investment. o ~—
" Extent of shareholding has been provided and shall be read with period of relationship. = Ly

0 o 0 0 ~— )
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The following information is as on 31 March 2023:

1 Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence commercial operations
Sr.no. Name of Company Sr. no. Name of Company

I Juniper Green Gem Private Limited 16 Juniper Green Beta Six Private Limited
2 Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 17 Juniper Green ETA Five Private Limited
3 Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited 18 Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited
4 Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 19 Juniper Green Beam Eight Private Limited
5 Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 20 Juniper Green Beam Six Private Limited
6 Juniper Green Transmission Private Limited 21 Juniper Green Spark Four Private Limited
7 Juniper Green Kite Private Limited 22 Juniper Green Light Ten Private Limited
8 Juniper Green Infinite Private Limited 23 Juniper Green Ray One Private Limited
9 Juniper Green Power Five Private Limited 24 Juniper Green India Alpha Private Limited
10 Juniper Green Sigma Six Private Limited 25 Juniper Green Spark Ten Private Limited
11 Juniper Green India Eight Private Limited 26 Juniper Green Light Four Private Limited
12 Juniper Green Alpha Three Private Limited 27 Juniper Green India Six Private Limited
13 Juniper Green Theta Five Private Limited 28 Juniper Green Sigma Eight Private Limited
14 Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited 29 Orange Gadag Wind Power Private Limited
15 Juniper Green Gamma Two Private Limited

2 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Registered office: F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza-1, Plot No. 7 MLU, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075 CIN: U40100DL201 [PTC228318
Corporate office: Plot No. 18, 1 Floor. Institutional Area. Sector 32, Gurugram Haryana-122001 Tel +91-124 4739600, Fax +91-124 4739666 Email: ¢s(wjunipergreenenergy.com
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Part “B”:
Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

| Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

| Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated
| or acquired

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on
| the year end:
a) Number

b) Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint
Venture (actual in Lakh)
Extend of Holding % -
Description of how there is siznificant influence
Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet?

. Profit / Loss for the year

a) Considered in Consolidation (Rs. In Lakh)
b) Not Considered in Consolidation (Rs. In Lakh)

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

For and on behalf of the Board
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited
\
/
Mr. Naresh Mansukhani
(Whole time Director)
DIN: 06990480

Add: B-39 Jangpura Ext.
New Delhi-110014

Date: 2 2 Sc,_p Dor2

Place: Gurugram

Gon

Mr. Parag Agrawal

(Whole time Director)

DIN: 02463717

Add: §-297, 2nd Floor, Uppal South End
Sector-49, Sohna Road

Gurgaon 122018

Vk%

Mr. rashant Pandia
(Company Secretary)
M. No. F12077
Add: F 07, Peepal Apartment, Sector 17,
Dwarka, Delhi- 110078
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